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CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: At t h i s time, l e t the re c o r d 

r e f l e c t t h a t i t i s Wednesday, J u l y 30th, a t 9:00 a.m. At t h i s 

time, we w i l l go ahead and convene the r e g u l a r l y scheduled 

meeting of the New Mexico O i l Conservation Commission. Let the 

record r e f l e c t t h a t a l l t h r e e commissioners, Commissioner 

B a i l y , Commissioner Olson, and Commissioner Fesmire are 

present. We t h e r e f o r e have a quorum. 

The f i r s t order o f business i s t o address the minutes 

of the June 19, 2008, commission meeting and adopt those 

minutes. Have the commissioners had the o p p o r t u n i t y t o review 

the minutes as presented by the secretary? 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: Yes, I have, and I move we adopt 

them. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I s there a second? 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: I've read them also, and I ' l l 

second t h a t . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: A l l those i n fa v o r s i g n i f y by 

saying "aye." 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: Aye. 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: Aye. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Let the re c o r d r e f l e c t t h a t the 

minutes were unanimously adopted, signed by the chairman, and 

conveyed t o the s u b s t i t u t e s e c r e t a r y , Theresa Duran-Saenz. 

The next order of business before the commission i s a 

f i n a l a c t i o n i n Case No. 14000, A p p l i c a t i o n of Harvey E. Yates 
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Company f o r Expansion of the U n i t Area i n Otero County, 

New Mexico. Have the commissioners had the chance t o review 

the order as presented by counsel? 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: Yes, I have, and I b e l i e v e t h a t 

i t a c c u r a t e l y r e f l e c t s the dec i s i o n s t h a t we made i n t h a t case. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commissioner Olson? 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: Yeah. I agree w i t h Commissioner 

B a i l y , and I ' l l second t h a t . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: So a l l those i n favor of adopting 

the order as presented by counsel, s i g n i n g the order, and 

t r a n s m i t t i n g i t t o the s e c r e t a r y , s i g n i f y by saying "aye." 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: Aye. 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: Aye. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Let the recor d r e f l e c t t h a t the 

order was unanimously adopted as presented by counsel, signed 

by the commission, and t r a n s m i t t e d t o the s e c r e t a r y . 

With t h a t , we w i l l go ahead and go o f f the rec o r d . 

MS. BADA: Oh, I have one t h i n g t o clean up on t h a t 

w h i l e we're w a i t i n g . I j u s t wanted t o l e t Commissioner B a i l e y 

and Commissioner Olson know t h a t G a i l MacQuesten and I have 

been working on r e a r r a n g i n g the r u l e s i n two p a r t s , and we're 

l o o k i n g a t p o t e n t i a l l y f i l i n g a p e t i t i o n i n the next few weeks. 

So I j u s t wanted t o l e t you know t h a t , and i f you would l i k e 

copies o f them, l e t us know. 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: Please. 
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COMMISSIONER OLSON: And t h i s i s a r e o r g a n i z a t i o n ? 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: This i s a re — 

MS. BADA: B a s i c a l l y i t ' s a repeal-and-replace. 

We're moving t h i n g s from o l d p a r t s i n t o new p a r t s so t h a t 

they're not a l l scrunched i n t o 15 p a r t s . L i k e i n Part I , 

there's tax c r e d i t s and abatement and a l l those t h i n g s i n one 

p a r t i n s t e a d of having t h e i r own p a r t where you can e a s i l y f i n d 

them. 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: But i t ' s not s u b s t a n t i a l 

changes. I t ' s l i k e a renumbering and r e o r d e r i n g . Okay. 

MS. BADA: Making sure terms are used c o n s i s t e n t l y . 

For example, t h e r e are places we see OCD and there are places 

we see O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n ; t h e r e are places where we see 

D i v i s i o n . We j u s t t r i e d t o go through and make sure they were 

a l l c o n s i s t e n t and t h a t we weren't usin g d i f f e r e n t terms i n 

d i f f e r e n t p a r t s . 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: I ' d l i k e t o have a copy when 

you're done. Thank you. 

MS. BADA: Happily. 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: So do we have t o adopt t h a t as a 

r u l e change? 

MS. BADA: Yes, i t has t o be a r u l e change. 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: I ' d l i k e a copy, too. 

MS. BADA: Okay. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I s there any other business we 
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need t o address before the a t t o r n e y s come back? 

At t h i s time, w e ' l l go o f f the r e c o r d w a i t i n g on 

at t o r n e y s . 

• * * 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Let's go back on the record. The 

next case before the Commission i s Case No. 14055, de novo 

A p p l i c a t i o n of New Mexico O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n f o r a 

Compliance Order Against C&D Management Company doing business 

as Freedom Ventures. Would the a t t o r n e y s l i k e t o enter t h e i r 

appearances a t t h i s time? 

MR. SWAZO: Sonny Swazo on be h a l f of the OCD. 

MR. PADILLA: Earnest P a d i l l a on be h a l f of C&D 

Management Company. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Swazo, how many witnesses do 

you have? 

MR. SWAZO: Two witnesses, Mr. Commissioner. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Are they present t o be sworn? 

MR. SWAZO: Yes, they are. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. P a d i l l a , how many witnesses do 

you have? 

MR. PADILLA: One witness. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: And i s he present t o be sworn? 

MR. PADILLA: He's present. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Would the witnesses please r i s e 

and be sworn? 
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[Witnesses sworn.] 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Swazo, do you have an opening 

statement? 

MR. SWAZO: Yes, I do, Mr. Chair. This i s a 

compliance a c t i o n a gainst C&D Management, a c o r p o r a t i o n t h a t 

operates w e l l s i n New Mexico. We w i l l be addressing two 

catego r i e s o f v i o l a t i o n s : f a i l u r e t o f i l e monthly p r o d u c t i o n 

r e p o r t s and v i o l a t i o n s of the i n a c t i v e w e l l r u l e . 

Compliance problems s t a r t e d when C&D acquired the 

w e l l s . Most were acquired i n 2004. Once C&D acquired the 

w e l l s , i t d i d not f i l e monthly C-115 monthly p r o d u c t i o n 

r e p o r t s . That's the r e p o r t i n g i ssue. Because th e r e i s no 

rep o r t e d a c t i v i t y , i t appears the w e l l s are also i n v i o l a t i o n 

of the i n a c t i v e w e l l r u l e . That's the second type of 

v i o l a t i o n . But because the r e p o r t s a r e n ' t up-to-date, we can't 

t e l l i f w e l l s are r e a l l y i n a c t i v e or j u s t not r e p o r t i n g . I n 

a d d i t i o n , i n an Agreed Compliance Order w i t h OCD, C&D agreed t o 

plu g or produce f i v e w e l l s by September 20, 2007. That has not 

happened. 

So we are asking f o r the f o l l o w i n g : We are asking 

t h a t C&D b r i n g r e p o r t i n g up-to-date by a c e r t a i n date. I f the 

we l l s are i n a c t i v e , b r i n g them i n t o compliance w i t h Rule 201 by 

pluggi n g them, p l a c i n g them on TA s t a t u s , or r e t u r n i n g them t o 

b e n e f i c i a l use. We ask t h a t the order set a date c e r t a i n f o r 

compliance w i t h Rule 201, a u t h o r i z e the OCD t o plug the w e l l s 
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and f o r f e i t the a p p l i c a b l e f i n a n c i a l assurance i f operator 

f a i l s t o meet the deadline. We are also asking f o r p e n a l t i e s 

because the r e p o r t i n g issues — i n a c t i v e w e l l issues are 

knowing and w i l l f u l v i o l a t i o n s . 

The OCD has been working w i t h C&D Management since at 

l e a s t May of 2006 t o t r y and get C&D t o comply w i t h r e p o r t i n g 

requirements. That's a l i t t l e over two years. You w i l l hear 

testimony about the e f f o r t s t o get C&D t o comply w i t h 

r e p o r t i n g , i n c l u d i n g : c a n c e l l a t i o n of a u t h o r i t y t o t r a n s p o r t 

and i n j e c t a f t e r n o t i c e t o the oper a t o r ; f i l i n g a compliance 

case on r e p o r t i n g and other issues; d i s m i s s i n g t h a t case; and, 

e n t e r i n g i n t o an Agreed Compliance Order r e q u i r i n g r e p o r t i n g 

and r e t u r n i n g i n a c t i v e w e l l s t o compliance. I n t h a t order, 

t h e r e was also an agreement. C&D also agreed t o payment of 

p e n a l t i e s -- f i l i n g a new a p p l i c a t i o n which was the basis f o r 

t h i s case, and t h a t was done on December 11, 2007; having t h i s 

case heard before a D i v i s i o n Hearing Examiner on January 

24, 2008; e n t r y o f an order on March 3, 2008; and, now t h i s de 

novo hearing. 

In t h i s time frame, C&D has f i l e d r e p o r t s up t o and 

i n c l u d i n g December 2007. No r e p o r t s have been f i l e d f o r 2008, 

and those r e p o r t s have only been r e c e n t l y f i l e d . Their defense 

i s t h a t C&D i s being run by Tom Kiz e r , and he acquired 

c o n t r o l l i n g i n t e r e s t i n the company i n 2007. He blames the 

p r i o r owners, Chris and Darla J e f f r i e s , f o r the compliance 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
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issues and says no p e n a l t i e s should be assessed ag a i n s t him. 

OCD's p o s i t i o n i s t h a t t h i s case i s ag a i n s t a 

c o r p o r a t i o n , not against any p a r t i c u l a r i n d i v i d u a l . We are 

l o o k i n g f o r p e n a l t i e s t o be assessed against the c o r p o r a t i o n , 

not a g a i n s t Mr. Kizer or the J e f f r i e s . I t doesn't matter who 

owns the c o n t r o l l i n g i n t e r e s t i n the c o r p o r a t i o n when the 

v i o l a t i o n s occurred. But you w i l l also hear testimony t h a t 

Mr. Kizer has been aware of the compliance issues since at 

l e a s t March 2007 when OCD entered i n t o an ACO w i t h 

C&D Management. 

Kizer acquiesced w i t h the OCD and the J e f f r i e s and 

continued t o make r e g u l a t o r y f i l i n g s w i t h the OCD. He i s upset 

t h a t the Notice of Hearing i n t h i s case, when i t was before the 

D i v i s i o n Examiner, was sent t o the f o l k s he says p r e v i o u s l y 

h e l d the c o n t r o l l i n g i n t e r e s t . That i s a nonissue now because 

Mr. Kizer has had n o t i c e of t h i s hearing and t h i s i s a de novo 

hear i n g . 

But t o e x p l a i n the n o t i c e issue, y o u ' l l hear 

testimony t h a t OCD sent t o the f o l k s they were a c t i v e l y working 

w i t h on the compliance issues who were s t i l l making r e g u l a t o r y 

f i l i n g s on behal f of the c o r p o r a t i o n and were s t i l l l i s t e d as 

o f f i c e r s of the c o r p o r a t i o n on the PRC website. 

That concludes my opening statement. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Thank you, Mr. Swazo. 

Mr. P a d i l l a , would you l i k e t o make an opening statement? I f 
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so, now, or would you r a t h e r defer i t ? 

MR. PADILLA: Oh, I ' l l give i t now. Mr. Chairman, 

members of the commission, some of what Mr. Swazo s a i d t o you 

as t o the issues are c o r r e c t . There i s a d i v e r s i t y between the 

management of C&D Management Company o r i g i n a l l y owned by Chris 

and Darla J e f f r i e s , and now Mr. Tom Kiz e r . 

Our s t o r y here today i s t h a t Mr. Kizer purchased the 

shares of the c o r p o r a t i o n beginning i n 2005. They were 

u l t i m a t e l y t r a n s f e r r e d t o him i n February of 2007. I n March of 

2007, Mr. J e f f r i e s entered i n t o the A d m i n i s t r a t i v e Compliance 

Order as -- signed the A d m i n i s t r a t i v e Compliance Order as v i c e 

p r e s i d e n t of the company. At t h a t time, he had no corp o r a t e 

c a p a c i t y . He had no a u t h o r i t y t o sign the A d m i n i s t r a t i v e 

Compliance Order. 

On top of t h a t , the A d m i n i s t r a t i v e Compliance Order, 

which we would l i k e the Commission t o take a d m i n i s t r a t i v e 

n o t i c e o f , i s t h a t Mr. J e f f r i e s a t t h a t time, and the testimony 

w i l l show, t h a t a t a l l times Mr. J e f f r i e s took personal 

r e s p o n s i b i l i t y f o r the compliance issues addressed i n the 

A d m i n i s t r a t i v e Compliance Order. 

Now, the communications, as f a r as compliance, i t ' s 

our p o s i t i o n , have been between the D i v i s i o n and the 

J e f f r i e s -- Chris J e f f r i e s . The January hearing of 2008 h e l d 

before the D i v i s i o n t o enforce the A d m i n i s t r a t i v e Compliance 

Order also was n o t i c e d t o Mr. J e f f r i e s i n Kentucky. By t h a t 
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time, Mr. Kizer was t r y i n g t o f i g u r e out what was going on w i t h 

t h i s compliance issue. And so our p o s i t i o n i s t h a t any 

compliance issues, even though the D i v i s i o n had already been 

communicating i n the r e g u l a r course of business w i t h Mr. Ki z e r 

at h i s Albuquerque address -- what we're conveying here i s t h a t 

Mr. Kizer d i d not r e c e i v e any n o t i c e of the January 2008 

hearing. 

Now, the terms of due process, yes, we're g e t t i n g due 

process here today. But i n terms of assessment of p e n a l t i e s , 

i n terms of enforcement of compliance issues, there should 

be -- and i t i s our p o s i t i o n -- no p e n a l t i e s because they have 

never been addressed t o Mr. K i z e r . Some time a f t e r the January 

hearing, Mr. Ki z e r w i l l t e l l you t h a t he got wind of what had 

happened and so then he s t a r t e d h i m s e l f communicating w i t h the 

D i v i s i o n and came t o me and asked f o r a de novo hearing. And 

here we are today t r y i n g t o address those issues. 

Now, the issue of p e n a l t i e s , as f a r as Mr. Kizer i s 

concerned, i s t h a t t h i s i s a brand new deal f o r him, r i g h t now. 

And t h i s i s r e a l l y the f i r s t time t h a t anyone has asked him f o r 

assessment of p e n a l t i e s or t o pay any k i n d of p e n a l t i e s f o r 

other p u n i t i v e types o f reasons f o r not r e p o r t i n g . 

Now, y o u ' l l also hear today of h i s e f f o r t s since 

February of t h i s year: What he has done t o update i n terms of 

r e p o r t i n g and t h a t s o r t of t h i n g t h a t J e f f r i e s undertook t o do. 

So he i s here i n i t i a l l y t r y i n g t o address those issues. And 
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we're here before the Commission simply because he never had a 

chance t o appear before the D i v i s i o n . So t h a t ' s b a s i c a l l y what 

you're going t o hear today. You're going t o also see some 

correspondence between Mr. J e f f r i e s and Mr. Kizer -- or 

e s s e n t i a l l y Mr. J e f f r i e s s a i d t o Mr. K i z e r , "Get o f f my back. 

I'm doing a l l I can. Stay out of i t . " 

And so he d i d u n t i l he found out about t h i s hearing 

i n January of t h i s year. So t h a t ' s going t o be our s t o r y . And 

then we w i l l ask t h a t no p e n a l t i e s be assessed a t the end of 

the hearing. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Swazo, are you ready t o c a l l 

your f i r s t witness? 

MR. SWAZO: Yes, Mr. Chairman. I c a l l Daniel Sanchez 

t o the stand. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Sanchez, having been 

p r e v i o u s l y sworn i n t h i s case, would you take the stand? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, s i r . 

MR. SWAZO: Before I begin my q u e s t i o n i n g , I would 

l i k e t o p o i n t out I d i d submit the e x h i b i t packet pursuant t o 

OCD r u l e s . E x h i b i t No. 1 -- I'm s o r r y , the OCC r u l e s . The 

f i r s t e x h i b i t , or E x h i b i t No. 1, i s the f i n a n c i a l assurance 

a f f i d a v i t and su p p o r t i n g documents. Most of these w e l l s are 

f e d e r a l and, t h e r e f o r e , they do not have f i n a n c i a l assurance. 

However, the operator has posted s i n g l e - w e l l f i n a n c i a l 

assurance f o r t h r e e s t a t e w e l l s . The amounts r e q u i r e d went up 
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e f f e c t i v e January 1, 2008. And so the f i n a n c i a l assurances 

posted by the operator are i n the o l d amounts. 

The t h r e e w e l l s t h a t the operator has l e t t e r s of 

c r e d i t on are the Michael State No. 001 w e l l and the l e t t e r of 

c r e d i t i s f o r $7,038. And two $5,000 l e t t e r of c r e d i t s f o r the 

Schneider No. 001 and the Muncy Federal No. 001. 

E x h i b i t 40 i s the o r i g i n a l A f f i d a v i t of Notice and 

p u b l i c a t i o n f o r the o r i g i n a l case. And the n o t i c e does i n c l u d e 

the copy of p u b l i c a t i o n . This case was a c t u a l l y p u b l i s h e d i n 

the A r t e s i a D a i l y Press back on the 30th day of -- back i n 

December -- December 16, 2007. So i t was pu b l i s h e d i n the 

A r t e s i a D a i l y Press w i t h regard t o the o r i g i n a l case. 

DANIEL SANCHEZ 

a f t e r having been f i r s t d u l y sworn under oath, 

was questioned and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. SWAZO: 

Q. Would you please s t a t e your name f o r the record? 

A. Daniel Sanchez. 

Q. And Mr. Sanchez, who whom are you employed? 

A. With the New Mexico O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n . 

Q. What i s your t i t l e ? 

A. I'm the Compliance and Enforcement Manager. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Would you l i k e t o approach the 

witness, Mr. Swazo? 
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MR. SWAZO: I'm s o r r y , Mr. Chairman. I'm a l i t t l e 

nervous. Yes. 

I am j u s t handing the witness the witness e x h i b i t 

packet f o r witnesses who t e s t i f y . 

Q. (By Mr. Swazo): Mr. Sanchez, would you e x p l a i n 

your d u t i e s ? 

A. Yes. I supervise the fo u r OCD d i s t r i c t o f f i c e s , 

the Environmental Bureau here i n Santa Fe, and I oversee 

compliance and enforcement issues and programs w i t h i n the 

D i v i s i o n . 

Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the compliance a c t i o n s 

taken a g a i n s t C&D Management? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And would you t u r n t o E x h i b i t 2 and i d e n t i f y t h a t 

e x h i b i t ? 

A. E x h i b i t 2 i s the i n a c t i v e w e l l l i s t f o r C&D 

Operating. 

Q. I'm s o r r y . You s a i d i n a c t i v e w e l l l i s t . 

A. I'm s o r r y . I was on the wrong e x h i b i t . Sorry 

about t h a t . I t ' s the w e l l l i s t , the t o t a l w e l l l i s t , f o r C&D 

Management, and i t shows a t o t a l of 17 w e l l s f o r C&D 

Management. 

Q. Are a l l of the w e l l s the s u b j e c t of t h i s 

compliance action? 

A. Yes. 
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Q. And where i s t h i s l i s t found? 

A. On OCD o n l i n e . 

Q. And i s i t kept i n the normal course of business? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. I s i t ac c e s s i b l e t o the p u b l i c ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And when was t h i s l i s t p r i n t e d ? 

A. This p a r t i c u l a r l i s t was p r i n t e d on A p r i l 

29, 2008 

Q. Why i s i t so out-of-date? 

A. This one was the one t h a t was p r i n t e d before the 

i n i t i a l de novo hearing was scheduled, and i t was c a n c e l l e d . 

Q. Have you had a chance t o review the c u r r e n t w e l l 

l i s t ? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. And when d i d you review t h a t l i s t ? 

A. This morning. 

Q. And does i t show the same 17 wells? 

A. Yes, i t does. 

Q. And i f you look a t the column marked 

" P r o d u c t i o n / I n j e c t i o n , " what does t h a t column show on 

E x h i b i t No. 2? 

A. I t shows the l a s t time these w e l l s r e p o r t e d 

p r o d u c t i o n or i n j e c t i o n . For the m a j o r i t y of them, i t was back 

i n March of 2006, and there are some l a t e r dates than t h a t . 
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Q. Has t h a t changed? When you looked a t the c u r r e n t 

w e l l l i s t , has t h a t e n t r y changed f o r those wells? 

A. Yes, i t has. They have come c u r r e n t through 

December of 2007, i n r e p o r t i n g f o r e i g h t of the w e l l s . 

A c t u a l l y , I b e l i e v e f i v e of the w e l l s were c u r r e n t up t o 

December of 2007 and thr e e of them were through September, I 

be l i e v e i t was. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: September of 2007? 

THE WITNESS: September of 2007. Let me double-check 

t h a t . 

Q. (By Mr. Swazo): I t might be h e l p f u l i f we go 

through the l a s t P r o d u c t i o n / I n j e c t i o n e n t r y f o r the c u r r e n t 

w e l l l i s t , and i f you could p r o v i d e the i n f o r m a t i o n f o r each 

p a r t i c u l a r w e l l . 

So l e t ' s s t a r t w i t h the Amoco No. 001? 

A. Okay. The l a s t p r o d u c t i o n on Amoco No. 001 was 

i n December of 2007. The l a s t p r o d u c t i o n r e p o r t e d was December 

of 2007. 

Q. The Hastie No. 016? 

A. December 2007. 

Q- The 017? 

A. December 2007. 

Q- The 018? 

A. December 2 007. 

Q - The 019? 
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A. August of 2007. 

Q. The 020? 

A. August 2007. 

Q. The 021? 

A. August 2007. 

Q. The Michael State No. 001? 

A. December 2007. 

Q. The Muncy Federal No. 001? 

A. December of 2000. 

Q. So t h a t hasn't changed? 

A. That hasn't changed. 

Q. Muncy Federal No. 002? 

A. This one hasn't changed, e i t h e r . I t ' s showing 

December 2003. 

Q. The Saunders No. 012? 

A. February 2002. No change. 

Q. The Schneider No. 001? 

A. November 2001. No change. 

Q. The Scott Federal No. 001? 

A. December 2003. No change. 

Q. Now, I n o t i c e t h a t t h e r e are f o u r w e l l s -- and 

I ' l l r e f e r t o them as the Shearn w e l l s since they have Shearn 

i n the f i r s t p a r t of the names -- there's no e n t r y f o r the l a s t 

P r o d u c t i o n / I n j e c t i o n column. Could you e x p l a i n t h a t ? 

A. Yes. A l l four of these w e l l s have never a c t u a l l y 
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produced. They were.dry holes, so they were never produced, so 

they would never show any p r o d u c t i o n . 

Q. So i n order f o r a w e l l t o be on t h i s l i s t i n 

order f o r a w e l l t o appear i n the l a s t P r o d u c t i o n / I n j e c t i o n 

column, they would have had t o r e p o r t p r o d u c t i o n a t one time? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Would you please i d e n t i f y E x h i b i t No. 3? 

A. E x h i b i t No. 3 i s the i n a c t i v e w e l l l i s t f o r C&D 

Management, and t h a t one was as w e l l r e p o r t e d on A p r i l 29th, 

2008, and i t shows 13 w e l l s on the i n a c t i v e w e l l l i s t f o r C&D. 

Q. Now, how does a w e l l get t o be on the i n a c t i v e 

w e l l l i s t ? 

A. When a w e l l has f a i l e d t o r e p o r t p r o d u c t i o n or 

i n j e c t i o n f o r a year plus 90 days, i t w i l l f a l l on t h a t l i s t . 

Q. Looking at E x h i b i t No. 3, how many of C&D's w e l l s 

are on the i n a c t i v e w e l l l i s t ? 

A. A l l of them. 

Q. Have you had a chance t o review C&D's c u r r e n t 

i n a c t i v e w e l l l i s t ? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. Has t h a t l i s t changed? 

A. Yes, i t has. 

Q. And how has i t changed? 

A. There are only f i v e w e l l s l i s t e d on the i n a c t i v e 

w e l l l i s t a t t h i s time. 
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Q. And which are those wells? 

A. They are the f o u r -- no, I'm s o r r y , excuse me. 

The Muncy Federal No. 001, the Muncy Federal No. 002, the 

Saunders No. 012, the Schneider No. 001, and the Scott Federal 

No. 001. And t h i s r e p o r t was p u l l e d t h i s morning as w e l l . 

Q. And where i s t h i s l i s t found? 

A. OCD o n l i n e . 

Q. I s i t kept i n the normal course of business? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And i t ' s a c c e s s i b l e t o the p u b l i c ? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. Have OCD i n s p e c t o r s inspected C&D's wells ? 

A. Yes, they have. 

Q. Are such i n s p e c t i o n s documented? 

A. Yes, they are. 

Q. Does OCD keep records of the ins p e c t i o n s ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Are the records made i n the normal course of 

business ? 

A. Yes, they are. 

Q. Was a recor d of OCD i n s p e c t i o n s of the w e l l s 

made? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And i f you look a t E x h i b i t No. 4 through 20, 

could you please i d e n t i f y those E x h i b i t s ? 
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A. E x h i b i t No. 4 through 20 are copies of the w e l l 

i n s p e c t i o n h i s t o r i e s f o r each of the w e l l s f o r C&D Management 

Company's w e l l s . 

Q. And so each e x h i b i t i s f o r a p a r t i c u l a r w e l l ; i s 

t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And how would you know which i n s p e c t i o n i s f o r 

which w e l l ? 

A. The w e l l i n s p e c t i o n h i s t o r y w i l l have the API 

number, and i t w i l l have the w e l l name. I t doesn't always show 

the number so, on the bottom l e f t - h a n d corner, we put the 

number of the w e l l as w e l l . So t h e r e may be m u l t i p l e Amocos, 

so we put whatever number t h a t would be on the bottom. 

Q. And you've had a chance t o review the w e l l 

i n s p e c t i o n h i s t o r i e s ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. What do the w e l l i n s p e c t i o n h i s t o r i e s show i n 

terms of p r o d u c t i o n or c a p a b i l i t y of production? 

A. At t h i s time, most of them show t h a t they were 

capable of producing -- the m a j o r i t y of them. There were a 

number t h a t showed t h a t they were incapable of p r o d u c t i o n . 

Q. Do you know when C&D s t a r t e d a c q u i r i n g these 

w e l l s ? 

A. I b e l i e v e i t was November of 2004. 

Q. And I n o t i c e t h a t some of the dates predate t h e i r 
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ownership. So the i n s p e c t i o n s would i n c l u d e i n s p e c t i o n s p r i o r 

t o C&D ownership? 

A. Yes. 

Q. That's because i t ' s the h i s t o r y f o r w e l l 

i n s p e c t i o n s done f o r the w e l l ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Now, i f you look a t the w e l l i n s p e c t i o n r e p o r t s 

f o r the Shearn w e l l s , what do those r e p o r t s show i n terms of 

pr o d u c t i o n or c a p a b i l i t y of production? 

A. I reviewed them e a r l i e r . The Shearn w e l l s were 

incapable of p r o d u c t i o n at the l a s t i n s p e c t i o n . For the Shearn 

Becky Federal No. 001, the l a s t i n s p e c t i o n back i n September of 

2007 showed t h a t i t was incapable of producing. The casing was 

j u s t above ground l e v e l w i t h no wellhead. 

For the Shearn Federal Freedom Federal No. 002, 

the w e l l i s incapable of producing: casing i s set and covered; 

no p r o d u c t i o n equipment on s i t e . The Shearn Samantha Federal 

No. 001: the w e l l i s incapable a t t h i s time and shows no 

pr o d u c t i o n ; wellhead not connected t o f l o w l i n e ; t u b i n g i n hole. 

The Shearn S h i l o Federal No. 001: the pumpjack i s 

incapable of o p e r a t i n g ; small u n l i n e d p i t t o the west; f l o w l i n e 

disconnected. 

Q. Now, one way t h a t an operator can be i n 

compliance w i t h Rule 201 i s i f they have a w e l l t h a t i s on 

OCD-approved temporary abandonment s t a t u s ; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 
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A. Yes. 

Q. Now, i f you look a t E x h i b i t No. 12 and 

E x h i b i t No. 14. 

A. Okay. 

Q. For E x h i b i t No. 12, there's an e n t r y f o r 

January 14, 2008, and i t i n d i c a t e s t h a t the w e l l i s i n TA 

s t a t u s . I s the w e l l i n TA status? 

A. No. I was k i n d o f curio u s about t h a t , so I went 

i n t o the w e l l f i l e t o check, and the r e have been no forms f i l e d 

t o show t h a t t h e r e was e i t h e r an i n t e n t t o TA or subsequently 

showing t h a t a TA was approved. 

Q. Can you e x p l a i n the process f o r an operator t o 

get a w e l l on TA status? 

A. Yes. When an operator wishes t o get t h e i r w e l l 

on TA s t a t u s , t h e y ' l l submit a form -- I b e l i e v e i t ' s a 

C-103 — and i t ' l l show an i n t e n t t o TA. At t h a t time, the 

d i s t r i c t o f f i c e w i l l approve i t under the c o n d i t i o n t h a t the 

w e l l has mechanical i n t e g r i t y t e s t performed on i t , c e r t a i n 

c o n d i t i o n s on t h a t t e s t i n g , and t h a t i t be witnessed by an OCD 

in s p e c t o r . 

Once t h a t t e s t has been s u c c e s s f u l l y passed, then 

another C-103 w i l l be submitted and a subsequent r e p o r t showing 

the TA, and the d i s t r i c t o f f i c e w i l l approve i t and give a time 

frame f o r t h a t TA. 

Q. Did you see any of those documents i n the w e l l 
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f i l e f o r t h i s p a r t i c u l a r w e l l? 

A. No. 

Q. I f you look a t E x h i b i t No. 14, there's an e n t r y 

t h e r e f o r September 28th, 2006, and i t says, "TA st a t u s end 

date, December 27, 2009." 

Did you v e r i f y whether or not t h i s w e l l i s a c t u a l l y 

on OCD TA status? 

A. Yes. Once again, t h e r e was no paperwork 

i n d i c a t i n g t h a t t h e r e was ever a request t o TA t h a t w e l l . 

There was a previous TA t h a t was approved, but the date of the 

e x p i r a t i o n on t h a t was i n 2005. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: May I ask a ques t i o n , Mr. Swazo? 

Why would t h i s be i n the RBDMS database as TA i f i t was not --

i f i t had not been TA'd? 

THE WITNESS: A l l I can t h i n k of was t h a t i t was an 

e r r o r i n the e n t r y . That's the reason I went back i n t o v e r i f y 

what was i n the w e l l f i l e . I couldn't f i n d a n y t h i n g i n the 

w e l l f i l e t h a t i n d i c a t e d t h e r e was a TA. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Swazo, continue. I apologize. 

Q. (By Mr. Swazo): I f a w e l l was TA'd, would t h e r e 

be -- would the TA s t a t u s appear on the i n a c t i v e w e l l l i s t or 

the w e l l l i s t ? 

A. I t would not show up on the i n a c t i v e w e l l l i s t , 

but i t would appear on the a c t i v e l i s t . 

Q. And there was no i n d i c a t i o n t h a t i t had been 
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TA'd -- t h a t these w e l l s had been TA'd? 

A. No. 

Q. Would you t u r n t o E x h i b i t 22? Would you i d e n t i f y 

t h a t e x h i b i t ? 

A. E x h i b i t 22 i s a copy of Rule 201 -- how t o 

p r o p e r l y abandon a w e l l . 

Q. And what does i t g e n e r a l l y r e q u i r e ? 

A. A w e l l i s i n v i o l a t i o n of Rule 201, i f f o r more 

than a year plus 90 days, i t has not been producing or 

i n j e c t i n g . I t can be put on t e m p o r a r i l y abandoned s t a t u s or 

p r o p e r l y plugged, and i t would be o f f the Rule 201. 

Q. Turn t o E x h i b i t No. 24. Would you i d e n t i f y t h a t ? 

A. This i s an e-mail t h a t was sent on March 

16, 2007, t o Mr. Tom K i z e r , and i t i s b a s i c a l l y s t a t i n g t h a t 

Cheryl O'Connor, the a t t o r n e y f o r the OCD a t t h a t time, was 

going t o send him a copy of the Agreed Compliance Order and 

cover l e t t e r t h a t was agreed t o a t the a d m i n i s t r a t i v e 

conference w i t h the C&D on the 12th of March, I b e l i e v e i t was. 

Q. How do you know t h a t i t was sent t o Tom? 

A. The e-mail address on i t i s Mr. Kizer's e-mail 

address, and t h a t address came from a business card t h a t we 

received from Mr. K i z e r . 

Q. Have you ever received any e-mails from 

Mr. Kizer? 

A. On a couple of occasions, yes. 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 

500 4th Street, NW, Suite 105, Albuquerque, NM 87102 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

Q. And from what e-mail address d i d they come from? 

A. From the e-mail address shown on t h i s p a r t i c u l a r 

e-mail. 

Q. I f you t u r n t o E x h i b i t 25, would you i d e n t i f y 

t h a t e x h i b i t ? 

A. E x h i b i t 25 i s the cover l e t t e r f o r the Agreed 

Compliance Order t h a t was entered i n t o w i t h C&D Management and 

the OCD, and t h i s was dated back on March 16, 2007. 

Q. And who was copied on t h a t l e t t e r ? 

A. Myself, Tim Gum, the D i s t r i c t I I Supervisor, Mike 

Bratcher and Thomas Ki z e r , C&D Management. 

Q. And so t h i s was the l e t t e r t h a t was referenced i n 

the previous e-mail? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Now, before we go any f u r t h e r , i f you look a t the 

f i r s t paragraph the l a s t sentence i n the f i r s t paragraph — 

i t s t a t e s , "The ACO r e c i t e s the v i o l a t i o n s t h a t occurred and 

the p e n a l t i e s t h a t have been imposed against Ameristate and 

t h a t Ameristate agrees t o the f i n d i n g s set out t h e r e i n . " 

A. Yes. Previous t o t h i s p a r t i c u l a r case w i t h 

C&D Management, we had another case w i t h Ameristate, and i t was 

regarding some s i m i l a r v i o l a t i o n s . And I b e l i e v e t h a t 

Ms. O'Connor was using i t as a template and j u s t f o r g o t t o 

change the name from Ameristate t o C&D. 

Q. Did you have a chance t o read t h i s l e t t e r before 
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i t went out? 

A. Yeah. And I d i d i n f o r m Ms. O'Connor t h a t she 

needed t o change the names on i t . And I don't know why i t 

d i d n ' t get done, but i t went out l i k e t h i s . 

Q. Would you please describe what an Agreed 

Compliance Order i s ? 

A. An Agreed Compliance Order i s an agreement 

between the OCD and an operator t o resolve c e r t a i n issues t h a t 

have come up over p o s s i b l e n o t i c e of v i o l a t i o n or an agreement 

t o resolve c e r t a i n acts of non-compliance. 

Q. Would you please i d e n t i f y E x h i b i t No. 26? 

A. E x h i b i t 26 i s the Agreed Compliance Order between 

C&D Management and the O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n . 

Q. And who signed i t ? 

A. For the OCD, I'm the one who signed o f f on i t , 

and f o r C&D Management, i t was Christopher J e f f r i e s , and he 

signed i t as v i c e p r e s i d e n t , and t h i s was on March 21, 2007. 

Q. You t e s t i f i e d t h a t you're f a m i l i a r w i t h the 

compliance a c t i o n s t h a t were taken against C&D Management. Do 

you r e c a l l the compliance a c t i o n s t h a t took place p r i o r t o t h i s 

Agreed Compliance Order? 

A. Yes. O r i g i n a l l y a l e t t e r -- or i t might have a 

been an e-mail — was sent May 22, 2006, t o C&D s t a t i n g t h a t 

they needed t o come up-to-date on t h e i r C-115 r e p o r t i n g . And 

t h a t gave them enough time t o go ahead and make those updates 
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t o those r e p o r t s . Later when they d i d n ' t respond t o t h a t , and 

we d i d n ' t get those r e p o r t s , t h e r e was another l e t t e r sent out 

c a n c e l l i n g t h e i r a u t h o r i t y t o t r a n s p o r t u n t i l those r e p o r t s had 

been brought back up-to-date. 

There was a l s o an i n s p e c t i o n of those w e l l s made by 

the d i s t r i c t o f f i c e , b a s i c a l l y t o v e r i f y whether or not those 

w e l l s were o p e r a t i n g or not. A number of v i o l a t i o n s — I 

b e l i e v e t h e r e were 24 v i o l a t i o n s -- came up from the 17 w e l l s 

d u r i n g t h a t i n s p e c t i o n . 

During t h a t time, we were scheduled t o come t o a 

hearing on those v i o l a t i o n s and the l a c k of compliance on the 

r e p o r t i n g issues. That hearing was stayed, and we entered i n t o 

t h i s agreement w i t h C&D Management t o go ahead and r e s o l v e the 

issues i n s t e a d of going t o h e a r i n g . And w i t h i n t h a t 

agreement -- what had happened was t h e r e was a t o t a l of $24,000 

i n p e n a l t i e s . 

During the agreement -- at t h a t a d m i n i s t r a t i v e 

conference t o s e t t l e the case -- we had agreed t o waive $18,000 

of those p e n a l t i e s and went f o r 6,000 i n s t e a d . 4,000 of t h a t 

would be payable i f by a c e r t a i n date -- I b e l i e v e i t was the 

20th of September, 2007 -- the f o u r Shearn w e l l s had not been 

plugged, and i t gave C&D the o p p o r t u n i t y t o make the 6,000 

remaining p e n a l t i e s p a i d over a two-payment p e r i o d . 

Q. And some of t h i s background i n f o r m a t i o n i s 

a c t u a l l y contained i n the Agreed Compliance Order? 
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A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. And the Agreed Compliance Order, or ACO, c i t e s 

Rule 201 and Rule 1115? 

A. Yes, i t does. 

Q. And i t also c i t e s the basis f o r those v i o l a t i o n s ? 

A. Yes, i t does. 

Q. I'm s o r r y . With regard t o the four Shearn w e l l s , 

t h e r e was a compliance s e t t l i n g ? 

A. Yes. Like I s a i d , I b e l i e v e i t was 

September 20th. Let me f i n d out. September 20th, 2007. 

Q. And what d i d C&D Management promise t o do by 

then? 

A. At the time t h a t the Agreed Compliance Order was 

signed, C&D had l e t us know t h a t they had an operator a v a i l a b l e 

w i t h i n two weeks from t h a t a d m i n i s t r a t i v e conference t o go i n 

and s t a r t p l u g g i n g those w e l l s . So we assumed t h a t by the time 

the Agreed Compliance Order had been signed and r e t u r n e d , and 

the process had gone through i t s paces, t h a t the p l u g g i n g of 

those w e l l s would be s t a r t e d . 

Q. And so C&D Management s a i d t h a t they would s t a r t 

the p l u g g i n g w i t h i n two weeks? 

A. Two weeks. 

Q. This Agreed Compliance Order was signed i n March, 

and they were given a deadline of September 20, 2007? 

A. Yes. We gave them some e x t r a time i n case they 
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ran i n t o problems g e t t i n g equipment or something. 

Q. And what was the consequence i f they d i d n ' t meet 

the deadline? 

A. The o r i g i n a l $4,000 p e n a l t y , $1,000 per w e l l , 

would be imposed, and they would have t o pay t h a t p e n a l t y . 

Q. And t h a t ' s what they agreed to? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Would you please look a t E x h i b i t No. 27 and 

i d e n t i f y t h i s e x h i b i t ? 

A. E x h i b i t 27 i s a l e t t e r of v i o l a t i o n sent out by 

the A r t e s i a d i s t r i c t o f f i c e on May 29, 2007, and i t ' s on th r e e 

w e l l s , a l l of them f o r v i o l a t i o n s of Rule 201, a l a c k of 

r e p o r t i n g . And t h e r e was a c o r r e c t i v e a c t i o n due date given of 

June 14, 2007, t o c o r r e c t t h a t issue. 

Q. And what address was t h a t sent to? 

A. That was sent t o 4801 Lang Northeast, S u i t e 110, 

Albuquerque, New Mexico. 

Q. Now, you t e s t i f i e d t h a t under t h i s LOV, C&D had a 

compliance deadline of June 14, 2007? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Did they meet t h a t deadline? 

A. No, they d i d not. 

Q. And would you please i d e n t i f y E x h i b i t 28? 

A. E x h i b i t 28 i s another l e t t e r of v i o l a t i o n t h a t 

was issued through the A r t e s i a d i s t r i c t o f f i c e on June 4, 2007, 
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on two w e l l s . Once again, v i o l a t i o n s of Rule 201, l a c k of 

r e p o r t i n g w i t h a c o r r e c t i o n a c t i o n due date of June 22, 2007. 

Q. Did C&D Management meet t h a t deadline? 

A. No. 

Q. Now, would you please t u r n t o E x h i b i t s No. 30, 33 

and 35 and i d e n t i f y those e x h i b i t s ? 

A. Each of those i s a sundry n o t i c e on a BLM form. 

And there's a n o t i c e of i n t e n t t o p l u g and abandon the Shearn 

Becky Federal No. 001, the Shearn Freedom Federal No. 002, and 

Shearn S h i l o Federal No. 1. 

Q. On what dates were those documents -- f i r s t of 

a l l , who submitted them? 

A. Darla J e f f r i e s . She l i s t e d her t i t l e as 

p r e s i d e n t , and i t was submitted on March 12, 2007. 

Q. Have you had a chance t o review the w e l l f i l e s 

f o r those w e l l s ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And have there been subsequent sundry n o t i c e s 

f i l e d f o r those w e l l s ? 

A. There have been more recent f i l i n g s by Mr. Ki z e r . 

There are also n o t i c e s of i n t e n t t o p l u g and abandon these 

w e l l s . 

Q. And when were those documents f i l e d ? 

A. These ones were f i l e d on May 8, 2008. 

Q. Would you please i d e n t i f y E x h i b i t s No. 31 and 34? 
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A. Both these e x h i b i t s are also BLM forms. They are 

w e l l re-completion r e p o r t s and lo g s . 

Q. Who were they f i l e d by? 

A. I t looks l i k e Chris J e f f r i e s on A p r i l 27, 2007. 

Q. Did he gi v e a t i t l e ? 

A. Vice p r e s i d e n t . 

Q. And I want t o go back r e a l q u i c k l y t o those 

sundry n o t i c e s , the n o t i c e s of i n t e n t t h a t were r e c e n t l y f i l e d 

by Mr. K i z e r . Have those w e l l s been plugged? 

A. Not as of today. 

Q. Are those the most recent f i l e s f o r those w e l l s ? 

A. Yes, they are. 

Q. Would you please i d e n t i f y E x h i b i t No. 36? 

A. E x h i b i t 36 i s a l e t t e r I r e c e i v e d from C&D 

Management on September 19th. I t a c t u a l l y showed up on the 

20th. I t ' s dated September 19, 2007, and i t was asking f o r an 

extension of the p l u g g i n g f o r the fo u r Shearn w e l l s and the 

Muncy Federal No. 2. 

Q. And i n the l e t t e r does he i n d i c a t e -- does C&D 

Management i n d i c a t e when they would have a r i g a v a i l a b l e t o r i g 

up on the w e l l s ? 

A. The e a r l i e s t a v a i l a b l e date was October 1 of 

2007, according t o the l e t t e r . 

Q. And are any of those w e l l s plugged? 

A. No. 
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Q. Would you please i d e n t i f y E x h i b i t 37? 

A. E x h i b i t 37 i s a l e t t e r from C&D 

Management/Freedom Ventures dated February 29th, 2008, signed 

by Mr. Thomas Ki z e r . And i t ' s t o Mr. Richard Inge, which i s an 

in s p e c t o r f o r the OCD out of the A r t e s i a o f f i c e . And i t ' s 

addressing the l e t t e r s of v i o l a t i o n t h a t he had issued e a r l i e r 

on a w e l l i n 2007 f o r repeated non-compliance, no p r o d u c t i o n 

r e p o r t s , and he s t a t e s t h a t he's working w i t h a Ms. Debbie 

McKelvey -- McKelvey O i l Reporting Services i s the address --

and t h a t he's working w i t h t h i s woman t o b r i n g those r e p o r t s 

up-to-date. 

Q. And does he i n d i c a t e an e-mail address? 

A. His e-mail address, yes. I t ' s 

oilfreedom@aol.com. 

Q. Would you please look a t E x h i b i t No. 39? 

A. Okay. 

Q. And could you i d e n t i f y i t ? 

A. E x h i b i t 39 i s a document from the PRC, Public 

Regulation Commission, website showing C&D Management Company 

as a business i n New Mexico. And i t shows t h e i r c u r r e n t 

o f f i c e r s as being Darla J e f f r i e s , p r e s i d e n t and Chris J e f f r i e s , 

v i c e p r e s i d e n t . And t h i s was p u l l e d o f f the website on 

January 22nd, 2008, which was a couple days p r i o r t o the 

o r i g i n a l hearing on t h i s issue. 

Q. What address do they give? Or what address i s 
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given f o r C&D Management? 

A. 513 Don Lyle Road, Edmonton, Kentucky. 

Q. And do you know where the PRC acquires t h i s 

i n f o r m a t i o n from? 

A. D i r e c t l y from the ope r a t o r . 

Q. Did you have a chance t o review t h i s r e c o r d some 

time a f t e r t h i s ? I mean, d i d you have a chance t o review the 

PRC website t o determine whether or not t h i s i n f o r m a t i o n has 

changed? 

A. Yes. I have a more c u r r e n t copy of A p r i l 10th of 

2008, and the i n f o r m a t i o n s t i l l hasn't changed. 

Q. I n t h a t document, and also i n t h i s document, does 

Tomas Kizer's name appear anywhere? 

A. No. 

Q. Mr. Sanchez, i n t h i s case, you're asking f o r 

c i v i l p e n a l t i e s . Well, l e t me ask you t h i s , Mr. Sanchez: What 

e x a c t l y are you asking f o r i n t h i s case? 

A. We're asking t h a t C&D Management come i n t o 

compliance w i t h Rule 201 on the w e l l s t h a t are s t i l l a t issue. 

We're asking them t o comply w i t h Rule 1115, the r e p o r t i n g 

requirements. We're asking t h a t the f o u r Shearn w e l l s be 

plugged as o r i g i n a l l y agreed t o i n the Agreed Compliance Order. 

I f those w e l l s do not get plugged, we're asking the Commission 

t o a l l o w the OCD t o p l u g those w e l l s and f o r f e i t the a p p l i c a b l e 

f i n a n c i a l assurance from C&D. And we're asking f o r c i v i l 
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p e n a l t i e s . The c i v i l p e n a l t i e s we're asking f o r are $4,000 f o r 

not meeting the deadlines of the Agreed Compliance Order of the 

plu g g i n g of fo u r Shearn w e l l s , and we're asking f o r $1,000 per 

month f o r the l a c k of r e p o r t i n g d a t i n g back t o A p r i l of 2006 

a l l the way t o May of 2008. And t h a t ' s a t o t a l of $26,000. So 

a t o t a l p e n a l t y amount of $30,000. 

Q. Now, I want t o back up j u s t a minute. You're 

asking f o r an order r e q u i r i n g the operator t o b r i n g the w e l l s 

i n t o compliance w i t h Rule 201. Are you g i v i n g them a deadline? 

A. I would l i k e t o see t h a t done by the end of 

August. We've had assurances from C&D t h a t these w e l l s would 

be plugged over a long p e r i o d of time. And I understand t h a t 

they are scheduled t o be plugged next week. So I f i g u r e i f we 

give them u n t i l the end of August, t h a t ' s p l e n t y of time i n 

case they run i n t o any issues t r y i n g t o p l u g these w e l l s . 

Q. Are you also l o o k i n g f o r a deadline, a set date, 

f o r compliance w i t h the r e p o r t i n g requirements? 

A. Yes. Once again, we have had i n f o r m a t i o n from 

the company t h a t they do have the r e p o r t s ready t o be 

submitted. So I would expect t h a t those be submitted w i t h i n 

two weeks of t h i s hearing. 

Q. And what are you asking f o r , i f anything, i f the 

operator f a i l s t o pl u g these w e l l s ? I'm s o r r y -- i f the 

operator f a i l s t o comply w i t h the Commission's order. Are you 

asking f o r anything? 
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A. Not a t t h i s time. I hadn't thought about t h a t 

y e t . 

Q. Now, you're asking f o r c i v i l p e n a l t i e s . Can you 

e x p l a i n why they are an important p a r t of the compliance 

process? 

A. I t h i n k the p e n a l t i e s -- what I've t r i e d t o do i n 

the past i s avoid the use of p e n a l t i e s and work toward 

compliance. I t has worked very w e l l w i t h a l a r g e number of 

operators. When we run i n t o a s i t u a t i o n where there's j u s t a 

t o t a l of l a c k of compliance, and OCD s t a f f has worked very hard 

t o t r y t o b r i n g those i n t o compliance and has shown good f a i t h 

e f f o r t t o work w i t h these operators, then I f e e l t h a t p e n a l t i e s 

are important as an i n c e n t i v e t o come i n t o compliance and 

remain i n compliance once t h a t ' s happened. 

Q. Do they help w i t h enforcement? 

A. Yes. I've seen over the past t h a t they have 

d e f i n i t e l y helped w i t h our enforcement e f f o r t s . 

Q. What would happen i f an operator thought t h a t 

t here were no consequences t o t h e i r non-compliance? 

A. I t h i n k t h i s i s a good case. We've sent l e t t e r s 

t o the company, and they would not respond. We've can c e l l e d 

t h e i r a u t h o r i t y t o t r a n s p o r t . We d i d n ' t get a response. We've 

had Agreed Compliance Orders, which the deadlines and 

agreements i n the Agreed Compliance Order were not met. I 

b e l i e v e i f t h e r e were no consequences t o the agreements t h a t 
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are entered i n t o , then no one would comply -- or very few 

people would comply i f they knew there were no consequences. 

MR. SWAZO: With t h a t , I have no other questions. I 

pass the witness. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. P a d i l l a , cross-examination? 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. PADILLA: 

Q. Mr. Sanchez, l e t me ask you f i r s t about the 

Shearn w e l l s . Those are a l l f e d e r a l w e l l s ; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. They're on a f e d e r a l lease? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. What j u r i s d i c t i o n does the OCD have w i t h respect 

t o w e l l s on f e d e r a l leases? 

A. We have c e r t a i n -- i t depends on the type of 

w e l l . I n j e c t i o n w e l l s , they are under the underground 

i n j e c t i o n c o n t r o l program through the EPA, which the OCD has 

t o t a l j u r i s d i c t i o n over. On other w e l l s t h a t are f e d e r a l 

w e l l s , the OCD s t i l l has the enforcement a c t i o n and the 

compliance issues t h a t we would have w i t h the State w e l l s i n 

terms of cleanup and p r o d u c t i o n . 

Q. When you say "cleanup and p r o d u c t i o n " -- w e l l , 

l e t me ask t h i s f i r s t — are any of the Shearn w e l l s i n j e c t i o n 

w ells? 

A. No. 
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Q. How about the Muncy Federal? I s t h a t an 

i n j e c t i o n w e l l ? 

A. Not t h a t I'm aware o f . 

Q. Does the OCD approve the p l u g g i n g procedure f o r 

plu g g i n g these w e l l s , the f e d e r a l w e l l s , the f i v e w e l l s t h a t 

you're t a l k i n g about and the w e l l s t h a t are l i s t e d i n -- l e t me 

d i r e c t your a t t e n t i o n t o -- I thought I put a tab i n t h a t , but 

I d i d n ' t . I'm s o r r y . 

Okay. On E x h i b i t No. 36 -- l e t me d i r e c t your 

a t t e n t i o n t o t h a t . 

A. Okay. 

Q. That's a l e t t e r addressed t o you, r i g h t ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. By Mr. J e f f r i e s ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And i t ' s dated December 19, 2007. Were you i n 

communication w i t h the BLM or the f e d e r a l agency d e a l i n g w i t h 

any compliance issues w i t h regard t o these f e d e r a l wells? 

A. The d i s t r i c t o f f i c e has -- over the l a s t two 

years, the OCD has been working i n a c o l l a b o r a t i v e e f f o r t w i t h 

the BLM on a number of issues regarding compliance, going from 

e v e r y t h i n g from p i t issues, cleanup on w e l l s i t e s , c l o s i n g 

w e l l s , p l u g g i n g w e l l s . 

When the BLM gets p l u g g i n g procedures i n , they w i l l 

share those w i t h the l o c a l OCD o f f i c e . And i f we care t o be 
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the r e f o r a plu g g i n g , or whatever other compliance issue t h a t 

comes up, we w i l l be on l o c a t i o n f o r those. But the OCD and 

the BLM have been working t o g e t h e r now f o r a t l e a s t two years, 

i f not longer, not only w i t h OCD people going onto BLM 

p r o p e r t i e s and performing i n s p e c t i o n s , but BLM employees 

l o o k i n g at s t a t e leases and p r i v a t e leases d u r i n g normal 

business out and about i n the f i e l d and s t u f f . They r e l a y 

i n f o r m a t i o n back and f o r t h between the two agencies t o p r e t t y 

much increase the enforcement and compliance t h a t i s going on 

out i n the o i l f i e l d s r i g h t now. 

Q. Do you have any agreement w i t h the BLM over 

shared r e s p o n s i b i l i t y , r e g u l a t o r y r e s p o n s i b i l i t y , over f e d e r a l 

w e l l s ? 

A. I don't b e l i e v e we have a mutual agreement or 

mutual understanding on t h a t a t t h i s time. I t i s , at t h i s 

p o i n t , an i n f o r m a l agreement t h a t we have w i t h them and t h a t 

we've been working w i t h them on. 

Q. Do you have anything i n w r i t i n g concerning these 

f i v e w e l l s w i t h the BLM? 

A. No, I don't. 

Q. No th ing s ay ing , "Please get C&D Management 

Company t o p l u g these w e l l s " ? 

A. No. But what we do on an i n f o r m a l bas i s i s 

i n f o r m a t i o n - - when w e l l s are go ing t o be coming up f o r 

p l u g g i n g , the BLM has s t a r t e d a program where they are no 
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longer i s s u i n g long-term TA s t a t u s deadlines. They are g i v i n g 

operators on c e r t a i n w e l l s t h a t have been out of o p e r a t i o n f o r 

some time a s h o r t e r time frame -- s i x months, sometimes a 

year -- depending on the i n d i v i d u a l circumstances. And those 

are r e l a y e d t o our d i s t r i c t o f f i c e s so t h a t when we come upon 

them, we are aware t h a t they have s p e c i f i c dates t o have those 

w e l l s e i t h e r plugged or put back i n t o p r o d u c t i o n . 

Q. On f e d e r a l w e l l s , what agency gives temporary 

abandonment status? 

A. The BLM. 

Q. Now, you mentioned i n your testimony something 

about p l u g g i n g procedures. Who issues t h a t on f e d e r a l w e l l s ? 

A. That would be the BLM. 

Q. Let me d i r e c t your a t t e n t i o n t o E x h i b i t No. 25, 

which i s a l e t t e r dated March 16, 2007. 

A. Okay. 

Q. Your testimony i n c l u d e d testimony concerning the 

mistake t h a t was made on t h a t l e t t e r t o Ameristate. Do you 

know who Ameristate was? 

A. I remember the name, but I j u s t don't -- i t ' s 

been a long time, so r i g h t o f f the top o f my head I couldn't 

answer t h a t . 

Q. When d i d you f i r s t n o t i c e t h i s mistake? 

A. At the time any of these l e t t e r s t h a t went out, 

Cheryl O'Connor, the a t t o r n e y a t the time, would forward them 
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t o me j u s t before they went out j u s t t o b a s i c a l l y e d i t and 

review. 

Q. Did Ms. O'Connor also c r a f t the A d m i n i s t r a t i v e 

Compliance Order? 

A. Yes, she d i d . 

Q. Were you present when t h a t A d m i n i s t r a t i v e 

Compliance Order, which i s E x h i b i t 26, was negotiated? 

A. Yes, I was. 

Q. With whom d i d you negot i a t e ? 

A. With Chris J e f f r i e s , and i t was over the phone. 

Q. Let me d i r e c t your a t t e n t i o n t o E x h i b i t 26 on 

page 3 of 8, paragraph 13. 

A. Okay. 

Q. The very bottom l i n e of t h a t page s t a t e s , 

" J e f f r i e s " -- s t a r t i n g at the second l i n e a t the bottom --

" J e f f r i e s i s r e p r e s e n t i n g C&D a t t h i s time and i s t a k i n g 

personal r e s p o n s i b i l i t y f o r those v i o l a t i o n s . " 

Can you e x p l a i n t o the Commission why "personal 

r e s p o n s i b i l i t y " was w r i t t e n i n t h a t f a s h i o n i n t h i s sentence? 

A. That p a r t of the agreement was w r i t t e n by 

Ms. O'Connor and I d i d n ' t question the language i n t h a t p a r t of 

i t . 

Q. Well, you're the compliance o f f i c e r , r i g h t ? 

A. Yes, s i r . That's r i g h t . 

Q. You're the d i r e c t o r of compliance? 
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A. Yes. 

Q. Wouldn't t h a t t e l l you t h a t Mr. J e f f r i e s was 

t a k i n g personal r e s p o n s i b i l i t y f o r the v i o l a t i o n s t h a t are 

under c o n s i d e r a t i o n i n the a d m i n i s t r a t i v e order? 

A. No. I read i t as Mr. J e f f r i e s accepting 

r e s p o n s i b i l i t y as C&D Management t o the issues t h a t were 

discussed i n the a d m i n i s t r a t i v e conference. And they were put 

i n t o at the Agreed Compliance Order. I f there was an issue 

w i t h t h a t , Mr. J e f f r i e s , or anyone w i t h i n C&D Management, had 

the o p p o r t u n i t y t o review t h a t agreement before they signed i t . 

And i f they found i t t o be unacceptable, we would have worked 

t h a t out. And t h a t wasn't the case. 

Mr. J e f f r i e s reviewed the document and had i t f o r 

several days. Anyone else i n v o l v e d w i t h C&D Management could 

have reviewed t h a t document. And, i n s t e a d , we d i d get i t 

signed and r e t u r n e d t o us. 

Q. The f i r s t p a r t of t h a t paragraph, subparagraph A, 

says t h a t Mr. K i z e r purchased C&D from Chris and Darla 

J e f f r i e s , r i g h t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And i t also goes on t o say t h a t , w i t h regard t o 

the l a s t sentence, i t says t h a t " c e r t a i n of the v i o l a t i o n s 

predate the sale of the company." 

A. Yes. 

Q. And then i t goes on t o s t a t e t h a t t h a t i s the 
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reason why J e f f r i e s i s t a k i n g personal r e s p o n s i b i l i t y , r i g h t ? 

A. I don't see where you're reading t h a t . 

Q. Well, i t ' s a — 

A. Like I s a i d , you know, c e r t a i n v i o l a t i o n s predate 

the sale of the company and, t h e r e f o r e , J e f f r i e s i s 

rep r e s e n t i n g C&D a t t h i s time and i s t a k i n g personal 

r e s p o n s i b i l i t y f o r those v i o l a t i o n s . 

Like I s a i d , when we had the a d m i n i s t r a t i v e 

conference, he was r e p r e s e n t i n g C&D Operating. We weren't 

t a l k i n g t o him as Mr. Chris J e f f r i e s . We were t a l k i n g t o him 

as C&D Management. And as C&D Management, he took 

r e s p o n s i b i l i t y f o r the v i o l a t i o n s found and the r e s p o n s i b i l i t y 

t o b r i n g those v i o l a t i o n s i n t o compliance. 

Q. Now, you have c o l l e c t e d c e r t a i n f i n e s under t h i s 

a d m i n i s t r a t i v e order, r i g h t ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And from whom d i d you c o l l e c t ? 

A. They came from C&D Management. 

Q. Were they sent through Mr. J e f f r i e s ? 

A. I b e l i e v e he i s the one who signed o f f on the 

check -- t h a t ' s s u b j e c t t o check. 

Q. And t h a t was out of the Kentucky, r i g h t ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Now, i n September when you sent t h i s -- t h i s 

l e t t e r was sent t o you on E x h i b i t 36, from Mr. J e f f r i e s t o you, 
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d i d you extend the deadline t h a t was p r e v i o u s l y imposed f o r 

pl u g g i n g the w e l l s l i s t e d on the l e t t e r ? 

A. No, I d i d not. 

Q. And what happened a f t e r t h a t ? 

A. At t h a t time, I b e l i e v e we went ahead and decided 

t h a t we were going t o go ahead and take i t t o hearing. The 

reason t h a t I d i d not extend the request was a t the o r i g i n a l 

admin conference, he had already t o l d us t h a t w i t h i n two weeks 

he was going t o have -- he already had a plugger a v a i l a b l e . 

And we t o l d him up f r o n t , you know, i f f o r some reason t h a t 

changes, you need t o l e t us know w e l l before the due date on 

t h a t so we can work w i t h you on t h a t . We d i d n ' t hear anything 

from Mr. J e f f r i e s or C&D Management at a l l d u r i n g t h a t time 

u n t i l I got the l e t t e r which I rec e i v e d on the day t h a t the 

plug g i n g was due. 

Q. When was the f i r s t time you a c t u a l l y d e a l t w i t h 

Tom Kizer? 

A. I'm t h i n k i n g i t was February or March of 2007. 

I ' d t o have check t h a t out, but I b e l i e v e me and Ms. O'Connor 

had a di s c u s s i o n w i t h Mr. K i z e r . 

Q. Do you remember the nature of discussion? 

A. Not r e a l l y . Just t h a t he was -- he had purchased 

p a r t of C&D Management, and he wanted t o know what was going on 

w i t h the compliance issues. 

Q. Do you remember a conversation or some 
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con v e r s a t i o n r e g a r d i n g Mr. Kizer's assumption of r e s p o n s i b i l i t y 

f o r v i o l a t i o n s ? 

A. No. Not o f f the top of my head. 

Q. Do you remember Ms. O'Connor t e l l i n g him t h a t he 

should not take r e s p o n s i b i l i t y f o r v i o l a t i o n s at t h a t p o i n t ? 

A. I b e l i e v e what she t o l d him d u r i n g t h a t meeting 

was t h a t unless he was the a c t u a l operator of record, t h a t we 

would s t i l l be d e a l i n g w i t h the C&D Management and t h e i r 

c orporate r e p r e s e n t a t i v e s . 

Q. The r e p r e s e n t a t i v e s from Kentucky, r i g h t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And t h a t would be Chris and Darla J e f f r i e s ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Let me ask you, d i d you t e s t i f y a t the 

January 2008 hearing? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Did you t e s t i f y t h a t Mr. Kizer had been given 

n o t i c e o f t h a t hearing? 

A. I b e l i e v e I d i d . And -- w e l l , about n o t i c e of 

t h a t hearing? 

Q. Yes. 

A. Oh, t h a t . No, I don't remember. I don't 

remember i f he was given n o t i c e on t h a t one or not. A l l I know 

i s t h a t we had met w i t h him p r i o r t o t h a t . But I r e a l l y don't 

remember i f he was n o t i c e d f o r t h a t hearing or not. 
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Like I s a i d , the c u r r e n t operator of r e c o r d a t the 

time was s t i l l C&D Management under the names of Carla and 

Chris J e f f r i e s -- Darla and Chris J e f f r i e s . 

Q. I n Kentucky? 

A. I n Kentucky. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Can I c l a r i f y something? When you 

say " i n Kentucky," you're not l i m i t i n g t h e i r a u t h o r i t y . They 

d i d n ' t l i m i t t h e i r a u t h o r i t y . They were j u s t l o c a t e d i n 

Kentucky, r i g h t ? 

THE WITNESS: That's r i g h t , s i r . They were l o c a t e d 

i n Kentucky. That was the address of re c o r d t h a t we had f o r 

the company. 

Q. (By Mr. P a d i l l a ) : Did the OCD, t o your 

knowledge, have an Albuquerque address f o r C&D Management? 

A. Not f o r C&D Management. We had i t f o r Freedom 

Ventures. And t h a t was the address t h a t we used up u n t i l the 

l e t t e r s of v i o l a t i o n went out. At t h a t time, I'm not r e a l l y 

sure how the Albuquerque address was put i n other than by 

C&D Management. The OCD cannot change an address or i n c l u d e an 

address. I t has t o come d i r e c t l y from the ope r a t o r . So I 

assumed whatever address came up as an Albuquerque address was 

submitted by C&D Management. 

Q. What do the bonds f o r these s t a t e w e l l s -- what 

address i s shown on those? 

A. That I'm not sure. 
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Q. At the January hea r i n g , you were t r y i n g t o --

p a r t of the a p p l i c a t i o n was t o take the bonds, r i g h t ? 

A. I f the OCD had t o go i n and p l u g the w e l l s , yes. 

Q. Your E x h i b i t 27 and E x h i b i t 28, seems l i k e --

w e l l , l e t me ask t h i s : Do those l e t t e r s come out of your 

A r t e s i a o f f i c e ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Why would the A r t e s i a o f f i c e have had an 

Albuquerque address? 

A. Lik e I s a i d before, t h a t ' s the one issue I can't 

say. Because when they send these t h i n g s out, they send them 

out t o the address of record. Sometimes there's two d i f f e r e n t 

addresses of rec o r d : one of them where s p e c i f i c f i l i n g s w i l l 

be sent t o ; others are somehow i n t e g r a t e d i n t o the RBDMS system 

where the l e t t e r s are generated. And the only way those can be 

put i n th e r e i s by the operator. The OCD does not have the 

a u t h o r i t y t o change addresses. I t has t o come from the 

operator. So the operator had t o have given t h a t address as 

the address of record. So how i t a c t u a l l y got i n t h e r e , I do 

not know. But I know i t d i d have t o come from the company. 

Q. But i t ' s an address of record, r i g h t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And going t o your E x h i b i t 1, which i s the n o t i c e 

of hearing f o r January, t h a t address was not given, r i g h t , f o r 

use? 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 

500 4th Street, NW, Suite 105, Albuquerque, NM 87102 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

48 

MR. SWAZO: Mr. Chair, I'm going t o voice an 

o b j e c t i o n . I don't understand the relevance of t h i s . I f i t ' s 

p u r e l y a n o t i c e issue as f a r as due process n o t i c e , t h a t i s 

being heard by t h i s whole de novo h e a r i n g . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Swazo, I t h i n k you can b r i n g 

t h a t issue up on r e d i r e c t . I ' l l go ahead and o v e r r u l e the 

obj e c t i o n . 

THE WITNESS: I wasn't sure who the n o t i c e went out 

t o . I don't review the n o t i c e s . 

Q. (By Mr. P a d i l l a ) : But you would agree w i t h me 

t h a t i s the address of record, r i g h t ? 

A. Yes. And l i k e I s a i d b e f o r e , there could be more 

than one address of record, and we run i n t o t h a t issue a number 

of times. 

Q. When you have more than one address of record, 

and you have a hearing before the D i v i s i o n , do you normally 

send paperwork on both addresses? 

A. I don't do t h a t p a r t of the f i l e s , so I don't 

know. That's done by the a t t o r n e y s . 

Q. You don't know? 

A. No, s i r . 

Q. Let me d i r e c t your a t t e n t i o n t o E x h i b i t 14, which 

i s a w e l l i n s p e c t i o n h i s t o r y f o r the Saunders w e l l . 

A. Okay. 

Q. You t e s t i f i e d about the n o t a t i o n f o r 9/28/2006. 
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And i t s t a t e s , "TA s t a t u s and date 12/27/09." 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Now, the OCD doesn't have a n y t h i n g t o do w i t h 

t h a t , does i t ? 

A. Not i f i t was a f e d e r a l w e l l . But we do receive 

the paperwork from the BLM on a l l these w e l l s , and i f there was 

a date on th e r e , we would have probably entered i t i n t o our own 

system t o keep t r a c k o f the w e l l s . 

Q. Do you know whether or not t h i s p a r t i c u l a r w e l l 

i s a u t h o r i z e d as a t e m p o r a r i l y abandoned w e l l u n t i l 2009 as 

st a t e d i n t h a t n o t a t i o n ? 

A. According t o our w e l l f i l e s , t h e r e i s no 

paperwork t h a t was ever submitted t o the BLM or t o the OCD t h a t 

shows t h a t t h a t w e l l i s on temporary abandonment s t a t u s . 

Q. Did you check the f e d e r a l records? 

A. No. I d i d not check the f e d e r a l records. 

MR. PADILLA: I don't have any f u r t h e r questions, 

Mr. Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Why don't we go ahead and take a 

break f o r ten minutes. We w i l l reconvene at 20 t o 11 a t which 

p o i n t , Mr. Swazo, you can begin your r e d i r e c t . 

MR. SWAZO: Thank you. 

[Recess taken from 10:30 a.m. t o 10:48 a.m., and 

testimony continued as f o l l o w s : ] 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Let's go back on the record. This 
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i s the c o n t i n u a t i o n of Case No. 14055. Again, l e t t h e . r e c o r d 

r e f l e c t t h a t a l l three commissioners are present. 

And I b e l i e v e , Mr. Swazo, you were about t o begin 

your r e d i r e c t examination, i f you have one? 

MR. SWAZO: Yes, s i r . 

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. SWAZO: 

Q. Mr. Sanchez, Mr. P a d i l l a questioned you about OCD 

j u r i s d i c t i o n over the f e d e r a l w e l l s . Do the OCD r u l e s also 

apply t o f e d e r a l w e l l s ? 

A. Yes, they do. Some of them do. 

Q. What about w i t h regards t o Rule 201? 

A. Yeah, they do. 

Q. So a w e l l operator who operates a f e d e r a l w e l l 

would have no immunity from having an i n a c t i v e w e l l on f e d e r a l 

land? 

MR. PADILLA: C a l l s f o r a l e g a l c o n c l u s i o n . 

Obj e c t i o n . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I'm going t o o v e r r u l e t h a t . He's 

the enforcement and compliance manager. I t ' s probably w i t h i n 

h i s purview. 

THE WITNESS: No, he would not. 

Q. (By Mr. Swazo): Could you please describe the 

procedures w i t h regard t o the pl u g g i n g of i n a c t i v e w e l l s on 

f e d e r a l lands? Describe the procedures w i t h regard t o OCD. 
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A. I don't b e l i e v e I have a l l the d e t a i l s on e x a c t l y 

how the process goes. 

Q. Well, I'm s o r r y . Let me rephrase my question 

because I asked i t badly, and I r e a l l y wanted t o ask a 

d i f f e r e n t -- I want t o ask i t i n a d i f f e r e n t way. 

Mr. P a d i l l a t a l k e d about the BLM and TA s t a t u s f o r 

f e d e r a l w e l l s . Could you please describe the procedure as f a r 

as how the w e l l could be TA'd and i n compliance w i t h OCD 

Rule 201? 

A. Yes. The operator, again, f i l e s the proper 

paperwork w i t h the BLM as an i n t e n t t o TA. The BLM, as the OCD 

does, w i l l send out an i n s p e c t o r . They w i l l run a mechanical 

i n t e g r i t y t e s t on t h a t w e l l , and t h e y ' l l go ahead and approve 

i t a t t h a t p o i n t . 

Once again, the a d d i t i o n a l paperwork i s sent i n under 

a n o t i c e of sundry, and t h a t i s the paperwork t h a t w i l l have 

the a c t u a l approval and the time frame f o r the TA. 

Q. At what p o i n t would a w e l l meet OCD standards 

w i t h regard t o TA status? 

A. Whether i t i s on approved OCD s t a t u s or approved 

BLM s t a t u s . 

Q. And t h a t ' s a f t e r an MIT has been done? 

A. A f t e r an MIT has been performed, and the 

paperwork has been submitted, and f i n a l approval has been 

issued by e i t h e r one of the agencies. 
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Q. Now, w i t h regard t o -- you had mentioned a 

telephone conference. Did you i n f a c t d i d OCD have a 

conference, an a d m i n i s t r a t i v e conference, w i t h C&D Management? 

A. Yes, we d i d . 

Q. And who was present a t the conference? 

A. From what I remember, i t was myself, 

Cheryl O'Connor, and I b e l i e v e we had Tim Gum and Mike Bratcher 

on another l i n e , because I'm almost p o s i t i v e i t was h e l d up 

here, and they p a r t i c i p a t e d by phone. 

Q. And what about C&D Management? 

A. I t was Mr. J e f f r i e s . 

Q. Did he p h y s i c a l l y appear or t e l e p h o n i c a l l y 

appear? 

A. T e l e p h o n i c a l l y . 

Q. Now, please look a t E x h i b i t No. 26. 

A. Okay. 

Q. Page 3. Mr. P a d i l l a questioned you about t h i s 

paragraph, paragraph 13. And was t h i s i n f o r m a t i o n o btained 

from Mr. J e f f r i e s a t the a d m i n i s t r a t i v e conference? 

A. Yes, i t was. 

Q. And Mr. J e f f r i e s was a c t u a l l y making t h a t 

r e p r e s e n t a t i o n , t h a t he was t a k i n g r e s p o n s i b i l i t y . 

A. He made t h a t r e p r e s e n t a t i o n f o r the company. 

Q. That was not a de t e r m i n a t i o n t h a t OCD made? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 
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Q. E s s e n t i a l l y what t h i s i s , i s h i s e x p l a n a t i o n t o 

the v i o l a t i o n s ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Mr. P a d i l l a questioned you about payments 

received from C&D Management. Do you process those payments? 

A. No. I don't even see them i n most cases. 

Q. So you don't know who sent them? 

A. No. They wouldn't go t o me. 

Q. And w i t h regard t o the paperwork, who's 

responsible f o r d r a f t i n g the a p p l i c a t i o n and m a i l i n g i t out? 

A. The a t t o r n e y . 

Q. And the a t t o r n e y would have determined which 

addresses t o send the documents to? 

A. Yes. 

MR. SWAZO: I don't have any other questions. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. P a d i l l a , do you have a n y t h i n g 

on recross? 

MR. PADILLA: Yes, I do. 

RECROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. PADILLA: 

Q. Mr. Sanchez, on the A d m i n i s t r a t i v e Compliance 

Order, which i s E x h i b i t No. 26, Mr. Swazo asked you questions 

concerning paragraph 13. Does t h a t s t a t e i n any way t h a t 

Mr. J e f f r i e s i s t a k i n g personal r e s p o n s i b i l i t y on be h a l f of C& 

Management? 
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A. I b e l i e v e i t speaks f o r i t s e l f . J e f f r i e s i s 

re p r e s e n t i n g C&D at t h i s time and i s t a k i n g personal 

r e s p o n s i b i l i t y f o r those v i o l a t i o n s . 

Q. And i t doesn't say on be h a l f of C&D Management, 

r i g h t ? 

A. He i s r e p r e s e n t i n g C&D Management. 

Q. But he's not t a k i n g personal r e s p o n s i b i l i t y on 

behalf of C&D Management? 

A. I b e l i e v e t h a t would be a l e g a l i n t e r p r e t a t i o n I 

wouldn't be comfortable making. 

Q. You s a i d i t speaks f o r i t s e l f . 

A. I t h i n k i t does. But you're t r y i n g t o make i t 

sound l i k e more of a l e g a l argument, which I ' d r a t h e r not get 

i n t o . 

Q. I t doesn't say i n t h e r e . 

A. A l l I see i s t h a t J e f f r i e s i s r e p r e s e n t i n g C&D 

and i s t a k i n g r e s p o n s i b i l i t y . Other operators t h a t I have 

worked w i t h on Agreed Compliance Orders --

Q. I'm not asking you about other operators. 

A. Well, I'm t r y i n g t o c l a r i f y t h i s statement by 

doing so, i f i t ' s a l l r i g h t . 

Q. I'm j u s t asking what t h i s paragraph says. 

A. Okay, then. I n my o p i n i o n , i t says he i s a c t i n g 

as a C&D r e p r e s e n t a t i v e . 

Q. And t h a t ' s i n your opinion? 
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A. I n my o p i n i o n . 

Q. Right. 

MR. PADILLA: That's a l l I have. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commissioner Bailey? 

EXAMINATION 

BY COMMISSIONER BAILEY: 

Q. You presented E x h i b i t s 19 and -- w e l l , 21 was not 

presented even though i t has the p r o d u c t i o n r e p o r t s f o r the 

company. 

A. Yes, ma'am. 

Q. But you d i d say t h a t t h e r e had been f i l i n g s as of 

December '07 f o r c e r t a i n w e l l s . 

A. Yes, ma'am. 

Q. Can we assume t h a t the t o t a l s i n E x h i b i t 21 under 

2007 would be higher than zero f o r any of the w e l l s t h a t are 

s t i l l i n production? 

A. I t h i n k t h a t t h a t would be a good assumption. 

This p a r t i c u l a r e x h i b i t was f o r the other witness, so I d i d n ' t 

review i t . And I wasn't questioned about i t through my 

a t t o r n e y . So I r e a l l y d i d n ' t have a chance t o take a look a t 

t h a t . What I was l o o k i n g a t was the a c t u a l a c t i v e w e l l l i s t 

f o r the company which shows the l a s t p r o d u c t i o n or i n j e c t i o n 

dates. 

Q. Okay. But we don't have any handle at a l l i n 

t h i s hearing on any p r o d u c t i o n since those previous dates since 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 

500 4th Street, NW, Suite 105, Albuquerque, NM 87102 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

56 

2006? 

A. Not t h a t I'm aware o f . Ms. Prouty might be able 

t o c l a r i f y t h a t question f o r you, though. 

Q. What are the s i g n i f i c a n t d i f f e r e n c e s between the 

BLM and the OCD requirements f o r temporary abandonment? Do you 

know t h a t ? 

A. From j u s t what I've seen working w i t h both, 

the y ' r e p r e t t y s i m i l a r from my observations, but I haven't 

worked d i r e c t l y w i t h a BLM i n s p e c t o r on how they've gone 

through i t . But, you know, I go through the paperwork as i t 

comes i n . E s p e c i a l l y when we're l o o k i n g at cases l i k e these. 

But i t appears t o be s i m i l a r t o the OCD's method of TA'ing a 

w e l l . 

Q. So i n your o p i n i o n , there's r e a l l y no c o n f l i c t 

between the two agency requirements, and so what OCD enforces 

i s j u s t as acceptable as what BLM enforces on f e d e r a l lands? 

A. Yes, ma'am. 

Q. We've looked a l o t at E x h i b i t 26, the compliance 

order. Did you a t any time ever r e c e i v e a l e t t e r from 

Mr. K i z e r r e f u t i n g any of the r e c i t a l s t h a t are shown i n t h i s 

compliance order? 

A. No, we d i d n o t . 

Q. And so the statement i n the famous paragraph 13 

on page 3 t h a t K i zer took over management i n September of 2005 

was never r e f u t e d or questioned by Mr. Kizer? 
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A. No, i t was not. 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: That's a l l the questions I 

have. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commissioner Olson? 

EXAMINATION 

BY COMMISSIONER OLSON: 

Q. Mr. Sanchez, I guess we're coming back t o those 

p r o d u c t i o n r e p o r t s f o r 2007/2008 showing zero on 

E x h i b i t No. 21. Has the r e ever been any i n d i c a t i o n of why they 

f a i l e d t o f i l e r e p o r t s ? 

A. Just here i n our discussions at the time t h i s 

case got going, Mr. J e f f r i e s was unaware of New Mexico 

r e g u l a t i o n s . He assumed t h a t the Kentucky r e g u l a t i o n s were 

s u f f i c i e n t t o address any of the issues we had. And they 

d i d n ' t have r e p o r t i n g requirements i n Kentucky. 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: I ' d l i k e t o c l a r i f y t h a t p o i n t 

because t h a t seems so p e c u l i a r t o me t h a t I went o n l i n e and 

found where Kentucky does r e q u i r e annual r e p o r t i n g of monthly 

p r o d u c t i o n as s t a t e d i n KO -- 805 KOR1: 180 Production 

Reporting, seen i n the Kentucky L e g i s l a t i v e Research Committee. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: That's not s u r p r i s i n g . 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: I ' d l i k e t o put t h a t one t o 

r e s t r i g h t now. Kentucky does have r e p o r t i n g requirements. 

THE WITNESS: And Mr. J e f f r i e s ' response t o us was 

t h a t they d i d not, and he was going by Kentucky r u l e s and 
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r e g u l a t i o n s . 

Q. (By Commissioner Olson): But I guess, then, he 

signed an agreement t o provid e records back i n 2007; i s t h a t 

c o r r e c t ? And a t the same time why d i d he not f i l e ? Did he 

give any i n d i c a t i o n of why he d i d not f i l e a nything a f t e r he 

agreed t o f i l e r e p o r t s ? 

A. No. He had no reason, and t h a t was why we went 

ahead and brought the r e s t of the case forward and had the 

a c t u a l h e a r i n g i n January of '08. We would get no response t o 

the deadlines t h a t we had agreed t o , no response t o the 

plug g i n g issues other than the one l e t t e r r e q u e s t i n g an 

extension a t the end of the time frame. I t was j u s t a lack of 

response from the company. 

Q. And so you're saying, though, t h a t you understand 

now t h a t Mr. Ki z e r had f i l e d f o r P&A i n those w e l l s w i t h the 

BLM back i n I t h i n k you sai d May? 

A. I n May, yes. 

Q. And why haven't they been P&A'd t o date now? 

A. I don't t h i n k the i n t e n t s have been approved y e t . 

That might be a questio n t h a t Mr. Kizer can c l a r i f y . 

Q. Okay. 

A. But I don't t h i n k they've been approved a t t h i s 

p o i n t . 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: I t h i n k t h a t ' s a l l I have at the 

moment. 
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EXAMINATION 

BY CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: 

Q. Mr. Sanchez, l e t ' s look a t E x h i b i t 14 f o r j u s t a 

minute. I t would seem t o i n d i c a t e , a t l e a s t w i t h respect t o 

t h i s one w e l l , t h a t t h e r e i s some s o r t of document -- e i t h e r be 

i t f e d e r a l or OCD -- approving the TA s t a t u s . And you s a i d 

t h a t you had checked the f e d e r a l r e c o r d of the w e l l f i l e on 

t h i s w e l l , and t h e r e was no TA s t a t u s submitted t o the f e d e r a l 

agency, e i t h e r . 

A. I had checked the OCD w e l l f i l e which contains 

any of the BLM documents t h a t are submitted t o the OCD. There 

was one t h a t showed a TA s t a t u s w i t h a deadline of 2005 i n 

ther e from the BLM. But a f t e r t h a t t here were no other forms 

t h a t were submitted f o r TA'ing the w e l l . 

Q. Okay. So i t would not have been " o f f i c i a l l y " --

f o r l a c k of a b e t t e r word -- TA'd by the OCD w i t h o u t t h a t 

document; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Who's resp o n s i b l e f o r f o r w a r d i n g t h a t document? 

Does the BLM forward i t t o us or does the operator f i l e i t ? 

A. The BLM u s u a l l y forwards i t t o us. And they've 

always been p r e t t y good at g e t t i n g them t o us i n a t i m e l y 

manner. 

Q. And E x h i b i t 12 on the Muncy Federal No. 001, i n 

January 2008, i t i n d i c a t e s the w e l l i n TA s t a t u s a l s o , and you 
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found no documentation t o support t h a t ? 

A. None. 

Q. On E x h i b i t 25 -- E x h i b i t 25 was a cover l e t t e r 

f o r the Agreed Compliance Order, r i g h t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And the Ameristate i s a typo? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And you t a l k e d t o Mr. J e f f r i e s a f t e r t h a t , and he 

understood t h a t you were t a l k i n g about C&D and not Ameristate? 

A. Yes. 

Q. So w h i l e t h i s may have been a typo, i t d i d n ' t 

appear t o s i g n i f y a d e f e c t i n the n o t i c e t o C&D t h a t they had a 

problem? 

A. No, i t d i d not. 

Q. To the best of your knowledge -- and, again, t h i s 

may be a question I need t o ask Mr. Kizer -- t o the best of 

your knowledge, i s Mr. J e f f r i e s s t i l l w i t h C&D? 

A. That I do not know. 

Q. I don't t h i n k we need t o t a l k about E x h i b i t 26 

anymore, do you? 

A. I hope not. 

Q. What i s the f e d e r a l time p e r i o d f o r a TA? I 

t h i n k you touched on t h a t j u s t q u i c k l y . 

A. C u r r e n t l y , i t ' s on a case-by-case basis. But 

from our discussions w i t h the BLM and t h i s c o l l a b o r a t i v e 
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e f f o r t , what they ' r e t y i n g t o do i s avoid having numerous 

w e l l s , even on BLM land, continue on TA s t a t u s , j u s t as a way 

of h o l d i n g on t o the w e l l or not having t o deal w i t h p l u g g i n g 

the w e l l . And what we've seen over t h i s past year i s j u s t 

about every request f o r a TA s t a t u s has been given no more than 

a year. Most of them have been s i x months. And i t ' s b a s i c a l l y 

saying, produce i t or pl u g i t by t h i s time frame. 

Q. And what i s the OCD time p e r i o d f o r temporary 

abandoned status? 

A. I t ' s -- i n the past, i t ' s been f i v e years. 

Recently we've been going fewer years on those as w e l l and i t ' s 

a case-by-case. I t j u s t r e a l l y depends on the s i t u a t i o n . But 

we're c u t t i n g down on the time frame as w e l l . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I have no more que s t i o n s . 

Mr. Swazo, were there some of those e x h i b i t s t h a t you want 

t o -- oh, I'm s o r r y . 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: Just something t h a t I was 

l o o k i n g a t . G e t t i n g back t o E x h i b i t 26, I n o t i c e on page 3, I 

guess, i n number 12, t h a t the OCD had looked a t a number of 

v i o l a t i o n s other than t h i n g s t h a t you've mentioned here today, 

such as v i o l a t i o n of our p i t r u l e s f o r d i s c h a r g i n g i n t o or 

using -- the use of an u n l i n e d d r i l l i n g p i t and d i s c h a r g i n g 

i n t o a p i t w i t h o u t a p e r m i t . 

But at t h i s p o i n t , you're j u s t seeking p e n a l t i e s f o r 

the r e p o r t i n g requirements and the P&A requirements and not f o r 
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other v i o l a t i o n s t h a t have been noted? 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: Okay. That's a l l I have. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Swazo, d i d you want t o admit 

some of these e x h i b i t s ? 

MR. SWAZO: Yes. I wanted t o admit a l l o f the 

e x h i b i t s w i t h the exception of E x h i b i t s 38, 29 and 32. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. P a d i l l a , you want t o take a 

second t o see i f you have any o b j e c t i o n t o those? 

MR. PADILLA: E x h i b i t s 38, 29 and 32? 

MR. SWAZO: Yes. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Those are the thr e e t h a t he's not 

a d m i t t i n g a t t h i s time. 

MR. PADILLA: Are you going t o go through them 

through another witness? 

MR. SWAZO: Possibly. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I t h i n k you're o p t i o n s are t o 

o b j e c t , not demand. 

MR. PADILLA: Oh, I'm j u s t c u r i o u s . 

MR. SWAZO: And a c t u a l l y , 21 a l s o . The reason being 

i s because I'm going t o go ahead and i n t r o d u c e t h i s e x h i b i t 

through Ms. Prouty. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. So, Mr. P a d i l l a , i f I 

understand c o r r e c t l y , there's no o b j e c t i o n t o E x h i b i t s 1 

through 20, 22 through 28 --
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MR. PADILLA: Mr. Chairman, I d o n ' t have any 

o b j e c t i o n t o any of these t h i n g s , but I do t h i n k , f o r example, 

t h a t he had Mr. Sanchez t e s t i f y concerning, I b e l i e v e , some of 

these r e p o r t s t h a t were authored by Darla J e f f r i e s , and I would 

l i k e t o have them i n c l u d e d i n the rec o r d . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: You have t h a t o p t i o n on your case. 

MR. SWAZO: I a c t u a l l y have no o b j e c t i o n . I f 

Mr. P a d i l l a would l i k e t o have those e x h i b i t s entered, I have 

no o b j e c t i o n and move f o r the admission of those e x h i b i t s as 

w e l l . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: You're not making t h i s very easy. 

Which r e p o r t s by Darla J e f f r i e s are you t a l k i n g about? 

MR. PADILLA: Well, s p e c i f i c a l l y , I t h i n k , 

E x h i b i t 32. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: What we can go ahead and do i s 

admit a l l E x h i b i t s 1 through 40-E -- was t h a t i t ? 

MR. SWAZO: Yes. 

MR. PADILLA: I have no o b j e c t i o n , then. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. We'll go ahead, and admit 

a l l of the O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n ' s E x h i b i t s 1 through 40-E 

at t h i s time. 

[ A p p l i c a n t ' s E x h i b i t s 1 through 40-E admitted i n t o 

evidence.] 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Swazo, do you have anyt h i n g 

w i t h respect t o the commissioner's questions? 
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MR. SWAZO: No, I don't. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. P a d i l l a , do you have any? 

MR. PADILLA: No. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: At t h i s time, we w i l l excuse t h i s 

witness. Mr. Swazo, you can c a l l your next witness. 

MR. SWAZO: I would l i k e t o c a l l Jane Prouty t o the 

stand. 

JANE PROUTY 

a f t e r having been f i r s t d u l y sworn under oath, 

was questioned and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. SWAZO: 

Q. Would you please s t a t e your name f o r the record? 

A. Jane Prouty. 

Q. With whom are you employed? 

A. The O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n . 

Q. And what i s your t i t l e ? 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Hang on j u s t a second. 

Ms. Prouty, you've been p r e v i o u s l y sworn? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, I have. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Thank you. 

Q. (By Mr. Swazo): And what i s your t i t l e ? 

A. I'm the bureau c h i e f o f the automation and 

records bureau. 

Q. And what do your d u t i e s e n t a i l ? 
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A. They i n c l u d e -- I'm r e s p o n s i b l e f o r processing of 

w e l l p r o d u c t i o n and d i s p o s i t i o n and the e l e c t r o n i c systems t h a t 

support our permits and the w e l l p r o d u c t i o n . I do our 

s t a t i s t i c s and data g a t h e r i n g . I'm i n charge of e l e c t r o n i c 

d e l i v e r y such as the i n a c t i v e w e l l r e p o r t , the f i n a n c i a l 

assurance r e p o r t , the -- most items v i a the web. I work w i t h 

the budget, and I t h i n k t h a t i n c l u d e most of i t . 

Q. Well, as p a r t of your d u t i e s , were you i n v o l v e d 

w i t h the compliance a c t i o n s against C&D Management r e l a t e d t o 

i t s r e p o r t i n g ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Before we t a l k about t h a t , could you please 

describe the r e p o r t i n g process and how i t works? 

A. Okay. Operators r e p o r t t h e i r p r o d u c t i o n on the 

C-115, and they can do t h a t i n any number of ways. I t ' s 

u n l i m i t e d i f they have -- i f they choose t o or have a software 

package, they can use t h a t package and the output of t h a t --

whatever they choose t o use -- i s read by our system. 

Most operators choose t o use our Excel spreadsheet, 

which i s a v a i l a b l e on the web. And i t looks e x a c t l y l i k e a 

C-115. So they use the Excel spreadsheet t o put i n the w e l l s 

f o r the month, the p r o d u c t i o n , the d i s p o s i t i o n . And then they 

get a user ID f o r the web, and t h a t data from the spreadsheet 

i s attached by a l i t t l e b u t t o n and then v a l i d a t e d whether a l l 

the w e l l s -- i t goes through about probably 40 v a l i d a t i o n s : 
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whether those w e l l s are operated by t h a t o perator; whether the 

w e l l completions have been approved; whether t h a t operator i s 

the r i g h t one; whether they missed any w e l l s t h a t should have 

been r e p o r t e d ; whether p r o d u c t i o n balances t o d i s p o s i t i o n --

t h a t k i n d of t h i n g . 

So they press a b u t t o n t o v a l i d a t e i t and i f i t 

passes a l l the e d i t s , then they immediately press a b u t t o n t o 

submit the C-115, and then we approve i t . 

Q. So r e p o r t i n g i s done on l i n e ? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. What i f an operator has an economic or other 

hardship and needs t o f i l e or i s unable t o f i l e o n l i n e due t o 

t h a t hardship, i s t h e r e -- does the OCD p r o v i d e any 

a l t e r n a t i v e s ? 

A. Yes. I n Rule 1115, i f they have an economic or 

other hardship, they j u s t apply t o the D i v i s i o n t o f i l e on 

paper. 

Q. How common i s t h a t ? 

A. We have a maximum of about ten who have ever 

asked f o r i t since t h a t r u l e went i n t o e f f e c t i n 2005, and 

maybe seven of them are s t i l l f i l i n g on paper. 

Q. And C&D d i d not request t h a t i n t h i s case? 

A. No. 

Q. When d i d o n l i n e r e p o r t i n g s t a r t ? 

A. I n November of 2004. 
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Q. I s there any help f o r operators w i t h the o n l i n e 

r e p o r t i n g process? 

A. Yes. The t o o l s t o do the f i l i n g are on our 

website, and they can f i n d them under a f r e q u e n t l y asked 

question or under the C-115 i n s t r u c t i o n s i n our forms areas. 

So they can download the Excel spreadsheet; they download an 

add-in t o Excel t h a t generates the f i l e . There are 

i n s t r u c t i o n s on the C-115; f o r example, how you code water 

versus how you code o i l , t h a t s o r t of the t h i n g . 

And then there are i n s t r u c t i o n s on how t o get a user 

ID, and t h e r e are also i n s t r u c t i o n s on how t o f i l e on the web. 

We have f l o w c h a r t s t h a t we p u b l i s h . So there's a l o t of 

m a t e r i a l a v a i l a b l e on the web. Also, t h e r e are people who help 

i f anyone c a l l s i n . And t h a t help has been given t o C&D, 

mainly by David Bradshaw when he was here. 

Q. Now, w i t h regard t o the d r a f t i n g of the C-115 

r e p o r t s , does an operator have t o submit a C-115 r e p o r t 

immediately a f t e r i t ' s d r a f t e d , or can an operator submit i t a t 

some l a t e r date? 

A. They're separate processes, so they can f i l l out 

the C-115 and then at a l a t e r time s i g n onto the web and 

submit -- v a l i d a t e and submit the r e p o r t . 

Q. Can a r e p o r t t h a t has been submitted and approved 

be subsequently amended? 

A. Yes. There's no l i m i t t o the time frame or the 
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number o f amendments. 

Q. Would you please t u r n t o E x h i b i t No. 23 and 

i d e n t i f y t h a t f o r the record? 

A. This i s Rule 1115. 

Q. And what does t h i s r u l e g e n e r a l l y r e q u i r e ? 

A. I t says t h a t the operator s h a l l f i l e a monthly 

r e p o r t f o r any w e l l completion where the C-104 has been 

approved. And t h a t ' s the a u t h o r i z a t i o n t o t r a n s p o r t , and f o r 

a l l i n j e c t i o n , they should f i l e a C-115. 

Then i t goes -- paragraph B t a l k s about the time 

frame t o f i l e and t h a t ' s w i t h i n , b a s i c a l l y , 1 1/2 months a f t e r 

the p r o d u c t i o n month, and the t h i r d i s t h a t they are r e q u i r e d 

t o f i l e e l e c t r o n i c a l l y except f o r the hardship requests t h a t I 

mentioned. Well, t h a t ' s i n paragraph B, the hardship request. 

The t h i r d one i s i f the operator doesn't f i l e , what a c t i o n s 

they might take and we might take. 

Q. So t h i s r u l e s t a t e s t h a t an operator has one 

month and 15 days t o f i l e i t s r e p o r t f o l l o w i n g a month o f 

pr o d u c t i o n . So l e t ' s say i f an operator was f i l i n g i t s 

p r o d u c t i o n r e p o r t f o r March, when would t h a t r e p o r t be due? 

A. May 15th, unless May 15 was a Saturday or a 

Sunday or a h o l i d a y , and then i t would be the business day 

a f t e r t h a t . 

Q. And t h a t ' s p r o v i d e d f o r i n the ru l e ? 

A. Yes. 
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Q. Then i s t h e r e a reason why an operator has one 

month and 15 days do f i l e i t s r e p o r t s ? 

A. Yes. I t ' s assumed t o take a w h i l e t o get the 

i n f o r m a t i o n from the t r a n s p o r t e r s . And t h i s gives them a 

chance t o get t h a t s t r a i g h t e n e d out so they have a l l the 

i n f o r m a t i o n they need t o be able t o f i l l out what happened t o 

the p r o d u c t i o n and what was produced. 

Q. So i t takes i n t o account the time t h a t the 

operator needs t o acquire the i n f o r m a t i o n and enter i t and f i l e 

i t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Why i s i t important t o f i l e r e p o r t s ? 

A. One, the i n t e r e s t holders are dependent. That's 

t h e i r o n l y way of knowing what was produced out of the area 

t h a t they h o l d , t h a t they own. The other i s taxes and 

r o y a l t i e s have t o be p a i d on those amounts, and they have t h e i r 

own deadlines, so t h a t ' s i m p o r t a n t . 

And then a l s o , as you can t e l l from the news l a t e l y , 

a l o t of p u b l i c e n t i t i e s spend a l o t of time -- and p r i v a t e 

e n t i t i e s -- assessing f u t u r e revenues based on how much i s 

being produced, so they have t o be on time and c u r r e n t -- what 

volumes are coming i n . Also, people want t o know what 

p r o d u c t i o n i s coming from what zones f o r f u r t h e r e x p l o r a t i o n , 

so we need an accurate record of t h a t . There are probably 

other reasons, but those are the ones t h a t come t o mind. 
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Q. I s i t also an important aspect o f c o r r e l a t i v e 

r i g h t s ? 

A. Yes. And I'm not even -- I've heard the term 

c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s , but I'm not t h a t f a m i l i a r w i t h i t . I f you 

mean whether people got p a i d p r o p e r l y f o r what was produced, 

t h a t was what I was i n t e n d i n g t o r e f e r t o . 

Q. What happens i f no r e p o r t s are f i l e d ? 

A. I f no r e p o r t s are f i l e d ? 

Q. I'm s o r r y . I f no r e p o r t s are f i l e d . 

A. I f they're not f i l e d , then the people w i t h the 

r i g h t s don't know i f they' r e p a i d the proper amount, i f they're 

p a i d at a l l . They have n o t h i n g t o compare a g a i n s t . The taxes 

and r o y a l t i e s , although they are f i l e d s e p a r a t e l y w i t h those 

d i v i s i o n s c o l l e c t i n g taxes and r o y a l t i e s , they use our data t o 

compare against the p r o d u c t i o n t o make sure than an adequate 

amount was p a i d . So they can't a s c e r t a i n -- e i t h e r they don't 

know t h a t they d i d n ' t get t a x and r o y a l t y payments because they 

have nothin g t o compare ag a i n s t . And then i f they d i d get tax 

and r o y a l t y payments, they don't know i f they're the c o r r e c t 

amount. 

Then the people doing p r o j e c t i o n s f o r the State don't 

have the i n f o r m a t i o n . And people t r y i n g t o determine i f t h i s 

or t h a t zone i s an a c t i v e zone don't have anything t o go on 

from t h a t . 

Q. What about the impact t o OCD? 
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A. We don't have, and we don't need, a f u l l y 

automated system t o t r a c k l a t e f i l i n g s because most people 

honor the deadline. So i t ' s more l a b o r - i n t e n s i v e than you 

would t h i n k t o determine -- t o generate l e t t e r s and contacts t o 

the people who d i d n ' t f i l e . So we -- w e l l , I -- query the data 

f o r who was supposed t o f i l e , who d i d f i l e , who d i d n ' t f i l e , 

generate l e t t e r s , send them out, f i l e them i n a system. I put 

i n the l e t t e r s t h a t they need t o contact me and l e t me know why 

they d i d n ' t f i l e . And then I need t o take a l l those c a l l s . 

U s u a l ly people a c c i d e n t a l l y f i l e a d i f f e r e n t month 

and put the wrong month on t h e r e . So u s u a l l y i t ' s a quick 

t h i n g t o get s e t t l e d out. So i t takes a long time t o create --

determine who should get l e t t e r s , make sure they a c t u a l l y had 

w e l l s t o r e p o r t t h a t month and they d i d n ' t t r a n s f e r t h e i r 

w e l l s , send the l e t t e r s , and t a l k w i t h each of the people t o 

solve whatever t h e i r problem was g e t t i n g the items f i l e d , then 

re-query l a t e r whether everyone c a l l e d me and everyone f i l e d 

and f i l e a l l t h a t i n f o r m a t i o n . So i t ' s l a b o r - i n t e n s i v e and 

c o s t l y . 

Q. And what happens i f r e p o r t s a r e n ' t f i l e d t i m e l y , 

i f r e p o r t s are f i l e d l a t e ? 

A. E v e r y t h i n g -- i t ' s almost the same as not having 

the i n f o r m a t i o n . Because there's never -- a l l the consequences 

of them not f i l i n g , p e r i o d , happen. Wrong p r o j e c t i o n s are 

made, wrong assessments are made, i n t e r e s t owners don't b e l i e v e 
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they're due anyth i n g because they t h i n k we're c o l l e c t i n g the 

data, as we should, on time. So they b e l i e v e t h a t n o t h i n g was 

produced. And t h a t ' s what's p u b l i s h e d on the web, t h a t n o t h i n g 

was produced when t r u l y something was produced. 

So our data i s p u b l i s h e d t o the i n d u s t r y , and anyone 

who wants t o p i c k i t up — PI and everybody and every 

month people expect a l l of the data t o be t h e r e a f t e r 45 days. 

Q. Now, t u r n t o E x h i b i t 21. Would you please 

i d e n t i f y t h a t e x h i b i t ? 

A. This i s a summary balancing r e p o r t . 

Q. And what does i t show? 

A. I t shows one l i n e per month of p r o d u c t i o n and 

d i s p o s i t i o n r e p o r t i n g . For example, the month of January 2005, 

there were 1,205 MCF of gas produced by C&D, and the same 

amount was t r a n s p o r t e d . There was no gas used on lease or 

anything e l s e . There could be other c a t e g o r i e s l i k e gas l i f t 

or whatever. 

Then i t moves onto o i l , and i t shows t h a t the 

beginning of the month balance was 211 b a r r e l s , 69 a d d i t i o n a l 

b a r r e l s were produced, so n o t h i n g was t r a n s p o r t e d t h a t month. 

And t h a t means 69 i s added t o 211 and i t comes t o 280 f o r the 

end-of-month balance. So i t shows one r e p r e s e n t a t i v e l i n e f o r 

every month. 

Q. This document s t a t e s summary balance and r e p o r t . 

By "summary," I take i t t h a t i t means t h a t i t summarizes or 
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i t ' s a l l the of the p r o d u c t i o n from C&D w e l l s f o r a p a r t i c u l a r 

year -- I'm s o r r y — month? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And when was t h i s r e p o r t issued? 

A. I t ' s dated i n two places. At the top, you can 

see A p r i l 29, 2008. 

Q. And have you had a chance t o review C&D's c u r r e n t 

summary balance and re p o r t s ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. What does i t show? 

A. I t shows a d d i t i o n a l months r e p o r t e d a f t e r A p r i l . 

Here, we go. I ran an updated r e p o r t on Ju l y 26, and t h i s one, 

whereas the r e p o r t on A p r i l 29 stopped at March 2006, the 

cu r r e n t one goes t o December of 2007. 

Q. Have they f i l e d -- has C&D Management f i l e d any 

re p o r t s f o r 2008? 

A. No. 

Q. But they d i d f i l e a r e p o r t f o r up t o and 

i n c l u d i n g December 2007? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Now, I wanted t o t a l k about t h e i r r e p o r t s and 

when those r e p o r t s were f i l e d . Do you know when the r e p o r t f o r 

A p r i l 2006 was f i l e d ? 

A. Yes. I t was f i l e d on June 6, 2008, a t 9:44 p.m. 

Q. And what about the r e p o r t f o r May 2006? 
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A. June 7th, the f o l l o w i n g day. 

Q. And what about the r e p o r t s f o r June 2006 through 

and i n c l u d i n g December 2007? 

A. They were a l l f i l e d June 17, 2008, a few seconds, 

one a f t e r the ot h e r . 

Q. Do operators have t o f i l e f o r w e l l s t h a t never 

produced? 

A. They do. I t ' s always confusing. I f we've 

approved the C-104 f o r the w e l l , from t h a t moment on, they need 

t o r e p o r t zero i f i t hasn't produced y e t . I f i t was a dry hole 

and never completed, then they don't need t o r e p o r t i t on the 

C-115. Or i f they've plugged the zone, they don't need t o 

re p o r t i t on the C-115. 

Q. Now, could you please e x p l a i n t o the Commission 

what steps your bureau was t a k i n g t o get the operator t o f i l e 

i t s r e p o r t s ? 

A. I was f i r s t made aware t h a t C&D wasn't f i l i n g due 

to a c a l l from Taxation and Revenue. The operator change took 

place a very long time a f t e r C&D took o p e r a t o r s h i p , so I 

wasn't -- they were a new operator t o us. And when I learned 

t h a t they hadn't f i l e d , I c a l l e d Darla J e f f r i e s and spoke w i t h 

her and asked her when the r e p o r t s would be coming i n . And 

t h a t was i n May of 2006. I don't know i f I s a i d t h a t . Excuse 

me. Let me be sure. I had t o w r i t e down the dates. March of 

2006. 
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And I spoke t o Darla, and she s a i d t h a t wasn't her 

problem because t h e r e was a d i f f e r e n t o p erator of the w e l l s . 

And I t o l d her t h a t we weren't aware of t h a t and no operator 

change had taken place. So t o us, she was the operator of the 

w e l l s , and she had t o f i l e d the C-115s. And she agreed t o do 

t h a t . 

She d i d n ' t take any a c t i o n . The f i r s t C-115 we ever 

received from C&D was November 22, 2006, so i n A p r i l and May 

and June, David Bradshaw sent her e-mails and spoke w i t h her i n 

2006 and worked w i t h her. I don't know every a c t i o n . Let's 

see. He c a l l e d her on May 3, 2006, and on J u l y 17, 2006, and 

he also sent e-mails. 

David Bradshaw worked w i t h Darla on -- l e t me get the 

dates r i g h t -- t o help her set up Debby McKelvey t o f i l e the 

C-115s on A p r i l 11, 2006. Yeah, A p r i l l l t h . And then the 

f i r s t C-115 was a c t u a l l y f i l e d i n November. So we sent 

contacts a l l d u r i n g t h a t time. I don't have copies of a l l o f 

those. I do have copies of a l l of the l e t t e r s I've sent t h i s 

year. There's been s i x of them f o r delinquency 115s. 

Q. Okay. I j u s t want t o c l a r i f y some dates. Do you 

r e c a l l , g e n e r a l l y , when you received t h a t c a l l from Tax and 

Rev? 

A. A c t u a l l y , yes, because I s t i l l have the e-mail. 

That was on March 3, 2006. 

Q. And do you know when C&D Management became 
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operator of these w e l l s ? 

A. E f f e c t i v e October 1st, 2004. Although they 

d i d n ' t f i l e t h operator change the operator change they 

submitted -- I don't know. I d i d n ' t look up what day they 

submitted i t . The form was generated A p r i l 13, 2005. So 

between October 2004 and A p r i l 2005, the OCD wasn't aware of 

t h i s . But they d i d s i g n on i n A p r i l 2005, because t h a t ' s when 

the operator change form was generated, and we approved i t . 

U s u a l l y t h e r e are a few days i n v o l v e d where everybody signs i t . 

We approved i t on A p r i l 25, 2005. So i t was the 

f o l l o w i n g March t h a t Taxation and Revenue s a i d we don't have 

r e p o r t s back t o October when they made t h i s e f f e c t i v e . And as 

f a r as I know, i t was t h a t day t h a t I c a l l e d Darla and used the 

phone number l i s t e d on the operator change form and spoke t o 

her, and t h a t s t a r t e d the process of c a l l i n g her. 

Q. And so you t e s t i f i e d t h a t the f i r s t C-115 r e p o r t 

t h a t they ever f i l e d was i n November 2006? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Are you i n v o l v e d i n c a n c e l l i n g the a u t h o r i t y of 

operators t o t r a n s p o r t ? 

A. I n the sense t h a t the Rule 1115 says t h a t i f the 

operator doesn't submit the C-115 w i t h i n a c e r t a i n time frame, 

th e r e -- a u t h o r i z a t i o n can be can c e l l e d . I t ' s i n the l e t t e r s 

t h a t I send. And i f I don't receive responses, I l e t the 

at t o r n e y s know t h a t I d i d n ' t receive the response we requested 
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i n the l e t t e r , and the a t t o r n e y s i n i t i a t e the l e t t e r . 

Q. And d i d t h a t happen w i t h -- d i d OCD pursue t h a t 

matter? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And you've t e s t i f i e d t h a t you sent l e t t e r s out 

t h i s year --

A. Yes. 

Q. -- s t i l l t r y i n g t o get compliance f o r r e p o r t i n g ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Do you know the exact dates? 

A. Yes. This i s l o o k i n g l i k e my desk. Okay. 

February l l t h I sent a l e t t e r f o r the r e p o r t i n g month of 

October 2007. March 13th I sent a l e t t e r f o r the r e p o r t i n g 

month of December 2007 and November 2007. And J u l y I sent a 

l e t t e r f o r February 2008 and March 2008. 

Q. And what address was those l e t t e r s sent to? 

A. A l l of these were sent t o 4801 Lang, Northeast, 

S u i t e 110, Albuquerque, 87109. 

Q. I s t h a t C&D Management's o p e r a t o r - o f - r e c o r d 

address ? 

A. Yes. This i s the address. Our r u l e s r e q u i r e the 

operators t o n o t i f y us of an address w i t h i n 30 days of changing 

an address, and they sign onto the web t o do t h i s or they 

n o t i f y us i n w r i t i n g . And t h i s i s the address t h a t i s on the 

web, or from t h i s time frame. 
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Q. A c t u a l l y , I misspoke. I meant address of record. 

This i s C&D Management's address of record? 

A. Ri g h t . 

Q. I n t h i s case -- now, I want t o speak about the 

operator a d m i n i s t r a t o r r e g i s t e r form. What i s an operator 

a d m i n i s t r a t o r form? 

A. I t ' s the form t h a t we use t o -- we request t h a t 

an executive of the company sign a form a u t h o r i z i n g someone 

else or t h a t person t o use OCD o n l i n e , or e l e c t r o n i c r e p o r t i n g 

system. 

Q. Who was the operator a d m i n i s t r a t o r i n t h i s case? 

A. There have been two. I n order t o do the operator 

change t r a n s a c t i o n i n e a r l y 2005, Darla J e f f r i e s requested --

submitted an operator a d m i n i s t r a t o r form and signed i t and 

signed i t as p r e s i d e n t and named h e r s e l f as the operator 

a d m i n i s t r a t o r . So she was the operator a d m i n i s t r a t o r a t 

t h a t — from l a t e 2004 on. 

And then I re c e i v e d a subsequent form from Thomas 

Kiz e r , and he dated i t March 21st, 2008, and he designated 

h i m s e l f as operator a d m i n i s t r a t o r . 

Q. Now, there's a m a i l i n g address i n d i c a t e d on 

Mr. Kizer's operator a d m i n i s t r a t o r form. I s t h a t the same 

address where you sent those l e t t e r s ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And what address does he give f o r h i s e-mail 
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address? 

A. oilfreedom@aol.com. 

Q. So i f I understand you c o r r e c t l y , Darla J e f f r i e s 

was the operator a d m i n i s t r a t o r u n t i l Mr. Kizer submitted the 

subsequent operator a d m i n i s t r a t o r form? 

A. Rig h t . 

Q. Can an operator a d m i n i s t r a t o r a u t h o r i z e other 

i n d i v i d u a l s t o submit forms on b e h a l f of an operator? 

A. Yes. That's the p o i n t . They can e i t h e r use i t 

themselves or they can a u t h o r i z e other people i n t h e i r company. 

Q. And was t h a t done i n t h i s case? 

A. Yes. Darla J e f f r i e s a u t h o r i z e d Debbie McKelvey 

to process f o r her. And t h a t was -- she d i d t h a t on 

A p r i l 11, 2006. 

Q. Was Ms. McKelvey C&D's -- I guess the t i t l e would 

be "user"? 

A. I t ' s c a l l e d "operator user." 

Q. Has she been the operator user of C&D Management 

c o n t i n u a l l y since A p r i l 11, 2006? 

A. No. She sent us two l e t t e r s i n 2007 s t a t i n g t h a t 

she wished t o be removed on September 22nd, 2007, and on 

January 13, 2007 . 

Q. Was Ms. McKelvey removed as a r e s u l t of those 

l e t t e r s ? 

A. Yes. 
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CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: What were those dates again? 

THE WITNESS: One l e t t e r — I don't know what day we 

received i t -- she dated i t January 13th, 2007, and September 

22nd, 2007. 

Q. (By Mr. Swazo): A f t e r Ms. McKelvey was removed, 

were any other operator users authorized? 

A. No. But the reason Debbie McKelvey sent two 

l e t t e r s was t h a t Darla J e f f r i e s a l s o set her up again on 

March 2nd, 2007. So t h a t ' s i n between Debbie McKelvey's two 

l e t t e r s . So Debbie has always been the operator user except 

f o r the times where she removed h e r s e l f . So she removed 

h e r s e l f January 13th. Darla set her up on March 2nd, and then 

Debbie removed h e r s e l f on September 22nd. 

Q. A f t e r Mr. Kizer submitted h i s operator 

a d m i n i s t r a t o r , d i d he --

A. Thank you. Yes. I'm s o r r y . Yes. She was 

r e i n s t a t e d . Mr. Kizer sent me a l e t t e r dated March 21st, 2008, 

saying t h a t Debbie McKelvey i s a u t h o r i z e d t o prepare l e t t e r s , 

so I set her user ID t o be used by C&D. 

Q. And you t e s t i f i e d t h a t Mr. Kizer submitted h i s 

operator a d m i n i s t r a t o r form on March 22nd, 2008? 

A. I b e l i e v e the two pieces of paper were faxed i n 

toge t h e r . Yes. His operator a d m i n i s t r a t o r form and then a 

l e t t e r t o a u t h o r i z e Debbie McKelvey. 

Q. Are you able t o determine which person a c t u a l l y 
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submitted the C-115s t h a t have been submitted thus f a r i n t h i s 

case? 

A. Yes. Our system captures t h a t . 

Q. And who was i t ? 

A. Debbie McKelvey has submitted a l l of them. 

Q. Does Ms. McKelvey own a business, or i s she a 

p r i v a t e p a r t y or --

A. Yes. Her business i s c a l l e d McKelvey O i l 

Reports, LLC, i n Hobbs, and I looked i t up, and she c u r r e n t l y 

f i l e s C-115s f o r 13 ope r a t o r s . 

Q. Have you d e a l t w i t h her f r e q u e n t l y w i t h regard t o 

r e p o r t i n g the C-115 re p o r t s ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Now, I wanted t o t a l k about p e n a l t i e s . I n t h i s 

case, OCD i s a seeking p e n a l t i e s . Do you t h i n k c i v i l p e n a l t i e s 

are important? 

A. I do. I've t a l k e d about t h a t i t ' s very 

l a b o r - i n t e n s i v e t o t r a c k a l l of 600 operators and whether 

they've r e p o r t e d a l l of the r i g h t w e l l s , e s p e c i a l l y when th e r e 

are r e t r o a c t i v e t r a n s a c t i o n s l i k e t h i s where we don't even know 

i f someone i s the operator of the w e l l f o r f i v e months l a t e r . 

Almost a l l of our operators f i l e on time. I t ' s an 

extremely high percentage. The months I've measured have been 

99.5 percent. I can't say t h a t ' s an average f o r every s i n g l e 

month. But people take t h a t very, very s e r i o u s l y . And they 
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spend a l o t of resources paying t h e i r s t a f f t o c o l l e c t the data 

on time and get i t t o us on time and complying. And they 

expect us t o demand t h a t a l l operators meet t h a t l e v e l of 

compliance so t h a t t h e y ' r e a l l on an even p l a y i n g f i e l d . 

And i f we have operators who are producing and not 

r e p o r t i n g t o us and not making the amount of o i l and gas 

a v a i l a b l e t o the p u b l i c l i k e other operators are doing, then 

the operators who are complying w i t h the r u l e s are both 

exposing themselves u n n e c e s s a r i l y and then a l s o paying money t o 

meet deadlines t h a t are unnecessary. So they make i t very 

c l e a r t o us t h a t they expect us t o h o l d everyone t o the same 

standards. And we t r y t o do t h a t r e a l l y hard i n the C-115 

area. Because otherwise, when we're g i v i n g out data, people 

have no way of knowing what's i n c l u d e d and what i s not i n c l u d e d 

i n t h e r e . So one i s j u s t t o make i t f a i r f o r a l l the operators 

who do comply. 

The other i s , i t gives out i n c o r r e c t i n f o r m a t i o n . 

And people are making judgments, revenue e s t i m a t i o n s , 

e s t i m a t i o n s on whether t o do e x p l o r a t i o n s i n c e r t a i n areas, 

based on i n c o r r e c t data. So the way t o ask everyone t o take i t 

very s e r i o u s l y i s t o warn them i n advance w i t h the l e t t e r s t h a t 

we send, t o make sure they understand the g u i d e l i n e s through 

the phone c a l l s and i n s t r u c t i o n s we have, and then t o make sure 

they comply w i t h i t . 

Q. Do you t h i n k they are warranted i n t h i s case? 
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A. I do. I know I p e r s o n a l l y spoke w i t h Darla i n 

March of 2006, so I know she was aware t h a t -- even though she 

sa i d she hadn't been aware up u n t i l t h a t time, from t h a t p o i n t 

forward, she was aware t h a t C-115s were r e q u i r e d . And they 

h i r e d an i n d i v i d u a l who makes a l i v i n g f i l i n g C-115s f o r 

companies who also knows the deadlines. So, w i t h o u t being 

p r i v y t o the conversations, perhaps i t took place t h a t they 

were due at c e r t a i n time frames. 

We worked a l o t . We had tel e c o n f e r e n c e s . We walked 

her through how t o do t r a n s a c t i o n s . This was David Bradshaw 

who d i d t h i s . He walked her through how t o set up Debbie 

McKelvey the f i r s t t ime. We d i d e v e r y t h i n g we could. So they 

were very aware C&D Management was very aware of the 

requirements t o f i l e on time, and i t took a l o t of our time t o 

do t h a t . I can't t h i n k of a reason where they might not have 

known something. Because I , myself, was on the phone w i t h them 

i n the f i r s t c o n t a c t , and I know they knew the r u l e s . 

Q. And so you've been t r y i n g t o get C&D t o come i n t o 

compliance since 2006? 

A. Yes -- f o r 2004. Because i t was already 

r e t r o a c t i v e a t t h a t time. 

MR. SWAZO: I don't have any other questions. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: You have a couple of e x h i b i t s . Do 

you want t o admit them? 

MR. SWAZO: Not a t t h i s time. 
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CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: They're already admitted. I'm 

s o r r y . Mr. P a d i l l a , do you have any questions of t h i s witness? 

MR. PADILLA: Yes, I do. 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. PADILLA: 

Q. Ms. McKelvey, you t e s t i f i e d about c o r r e l a t i v e 

r i g h t s . Can you give me a d e f i n i t i o n of c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s ? 

A. I'm Jane Prouty. 

Q. I'm s o r r y , Ms. Prouty. Excuse me. 

A. No. I t h i n k I t e s t i f i e d I can't give you a 

d e f i n i t i o n of c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s , so i t would probably be a 

problem i f I d i d r i g h t now. 

Q. You s a i d t h a t i t was impo r t a n t , as I understood 

your testimony, t h a t C-115s be f i l e d i n order t o p r o t e c t 

c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s . I s t h a t a f a i r statement? 

A. I don't t h i n k so, since I've s a i d I don't know 

what t h a t means. Let me j u s t t r y t o be more c l e a r . I'm the 

person who receives c a l l s from i n t e r e s t owners saying, "How do 

I know i f I got p a i d the r i g h t amount?" 

And I look up data f o r them. When n o t h i n g has been 

f i l e d , they have no way of knowing. Those are the people I 

work w i t h . So w i t h o u t using the term, c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s , 

people i d e n t i f y themselves t o me as i n t e r e s t owners due 

r o y a l t i e s . The Taxation and Revenue Department explains t o me 

t h a t school d i s t r i c t s a r e n ' t being p a i d and t a x e n t i t i e s aren't 
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being p a i d i f I can't f i n d data f o r them. 

So I d i d n ' t use the word c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s i n my 

answer because i t ' s those who r e c e i v e the -- the b e n e f i c i a r i e s 

of taxes, the r o y a l t y payers -- excuse me -- the r o y a l t y 

b e n e f i c i a r i e s and the p r i v a t e i n t e r e s t owners are the ones who 

contact me. 

Q. Do you know whether the purchasers o f o i l and gas 

pr o d u c t i o n a u t o m a t i c a l l y deduct taxes and pay those d i r e c t l y ? 

I n other words, you take a company l i k e Navajo R e f i n e r y . Do 

you know whether they pay taxes s t r a i g h t out of the production? 

A. I don't t h i n k i t ' s s t r a i g h t out of p r o d u c t i o n . I 

t h i n k i t ' s a f t e r i t ' s processed. But, yes, the i n d i v i d u a l 

operator does not -- w e l l , l e t me say I don't know e x a c t l y , 

because I'm not t h e r e . What I do know i s when taxes are pa i d , 

the Taxation and Revenue Department and the State Land O f f i c e 

compare the taxes t h a t are p a i d and the statements they are 

given t o our data. And t h a t was why Taxation and Revenue 

c a l l e d me and s a i d , "Why don't you have any C-115s? I can't 

t e l l a n y t h i n g about t h i s company." 

So the process they go through i s not p a r t of O i l 

Conservation D i v i s i o n ' s process. But the v a l i d a t i o n , the need 

t o have the data t h e r e , Taxation and Revenue and the Land 

O f f i c e , have very formal r e p o r t s they run through t h a t matches 

what the operator says they s o l d t o Navajo R e f i n i n g , i n your 

example, compared t o what Navajo R e f i n i n g r e p o r t s . And i n t h i s 
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case, they don't have anyt h i n g l i k e t h a t . 

Q. Okay. So i n other words, e s s e n t i a l l y your 

testimony i s t h a t r e p o r t i n g i s i m p o r t a n t , among other t h i n g s , 

f o r v a l i d a t i o n of production? 

A. D e f i n i t e l y . 

Q. Royalty payments? 

A. And i t ' s not v a l i d a t i o n of p r o d u c t i o n , t o my 

knowledge. I t ' s v a l i d a t i o n of t r a n s p o r t e d volumes. 

Q. Right. Do you know when Debra -- or Darla 

J e f f r i e s -- being the — what do you c a l l i t -- the operator --

not the operator user, but the --

A. A d m i n i s t r a t o r ? 

Q. Operator a d m i n i s t r a t o r . 

A. When I rec e i v e d the operator a d m i n i s t r a t o r form 

from Mr. Ki z e r . So I processed i t on March 23rd. He signed i t 

March 21st, 2008. 

Q. Okay. So up u n t i l t h a t time, Darla J e f f r i e s had 

been the person a t the wheel, i n other words, as f a r as 

r e p o r t i n g t o the OCD? 

A. She had au t h o r i z e d Debbie McKelvey, so but i f 

you're asking i f she was the operator a d m i n i s t r a t o r , she was. 

Q. I f you had any correspondence t o send t o C&D 

Management, where would you send i t before Mr. Kizer f i l e d h i s 

a d m i n i s t r a t o r document? 

A. As I sa i d , we have one address t h a t we use and 
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i t ' s each operator's -- Rule, I t h i n k i t ' s 100, says t h a t 

w i t h i n 30 days of a change of address, they must n o t i f y the OCD 

of the address. I use t h a t address i n our system. There are 

two ways t o get i t i n t h e r e . You can con t a c t OCD i n w r i t i n g 

and we enter i t . On you can si g n on t o the web and update t h a t 

address. 

So I don't know. And my system t h a t generates the 

l e t t e r s -- i t ' s j u s t my queri e s , i t ' s not a system -- i t p u l l s 

the c u r r e n t address of record. So t h a t ' s why -- from the f i r s t 

l e t t e r I had here today from me was February 11, so I know 

February l l t h the address was Albuquerque. I don't know p r i o r 

t o t h a t . I don't have copies w i t h me. 

Q. February 11, 2008? 

A. That was the f i r s t l e t t e r I had t h a t I mailed 

t h i s year. 

Q. And since t h a t time, you have been using the 

Albuquerque address? 

A. Probably since before. That's j u s t the f i r s t 

l e t t e r I have w i t h me. I don't know when the address changed. 

Q. Do you have anything t h e r e i n f r o n t of you t h a t 

says -- uses a Kentucky address? 

A. The change of operator done i n 2005 has Darla as 

the p r e s i d e n t w i t h a Kentucky address. The operator 

a d m i n i s t r a t o r form she submitted i n order t o do t h a t has a 

Kentucky address. I t h i n k those are the only two t h i n g s I 
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r e f e r r e d t o . They were done i n 2004 -- no -- 2005. 

Q. Does a David Bradshaw work f o r your bureau? 

A. He doesn't now, but he d i d . 

Q. Do you have any correspondence whether he was 

corresponding t o C&D Management using the Albuquerque address 

i n March of 2007? 

A. David tended t o send most t h i n g s v i a e-mail and 

he kept a spreadsheet on what he sent, but I d i d n ' t have a copy 

of i t . I t h i n k I could get i t , but I don't have i t . I 

t h i n k -- I know he had many conversations w i t h Darla h e r s e l f , 

t r a i n i n g her on d i f f e r e n t t h i n g s . So I b e l i e v e he e-mailed t o 

her and then spoke t o her on the phone. I know he had -- he 

and Daniel p a r t i c i p a t e d i n a conference w i t h her i n 2007 --

March -- asking about C-115s. 

So I can't t e l l you about w r i t t e n correspondence t h a t 

he d i d s p e c i f i c a l l y because I d i d n ' t look at copies of i t . But 

Darla was the person I heard of t h a t he spoke w i t h . 

Q. I f he used -- i f he mailed something i n March of 

2007 t o the Albuquerque address r e q u e s t i n g C-115s, would t h a t 

address be an address of record at t h a t time? 

A. I'm not f a m i l i a r w i t h what he mailed. As I s a i d , 

he tended t o e-mail. So I don't know f o r sure. He and I might 

have had d i f f e r e n t -- as I sa i d , we don't have a computer t h a t 

generates these. We do i t ourselves. My p r a c t i c e i s t h a t I 

p i c k the one address, but I can't swear where he got an address 
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or a nything. 

MR. PADILLA: May I approach the witness? 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE. You may, s i r . 

Q. (By Mr. P a d i l l a ) : To be f a i r , Ms. Prouty, we 

have an E x h i b i t No. 7. This I understand i s a l e t t e r from --

MR. SWAZO: Mr. Chairman, I'm a c t u a l l y going t o 

ob j e c t t o the admission of any e x h i b i t s . 

Rule 19.15.14.1211 B(2) s p e c i f i c a l l y s t a t e s , " I n 

cases t o be heard by the Commission, each p a r t y s h a l l i n c l u d e 

copes of a l l e x h i b i t s t h a t i t proposes t o o f f e r i n evidence at 

the hearing w i t h the pre-hearing statement." 

I d i d not r e c e i v e t h i s e x h i b i t l i s t u n t i l now, and I 

submitted my e x h i b i t l i s t t o Mr. P a d i l l a i n A p r i l . And I'm 

moving t o exclude the admission of t h i s e x h i b i t or any e x h i b i t s 

from t h i s packet. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. P a d i l l a ? 

MR. PADILLA: Mr. Chairman, most of these are 

business records of the O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n . 

T h e o r e t i c a l l y , I could ask f o r these t o be -- f o r 

a d m i n i s t r a t i v e n o t i c e t o be taken f o r most of these records. 

In terms of the pre-hearing statement, we i d e n t i f i e d 

p r e t t y much what we were going t o have and i n t r o d u c e at the 

hearing. I don't t h i n k i t ' s a mystery one way or the other, 

you know. And I don't t h i n k i t p r e j u d i c e s Mr. Swazo one way or 

the other on not having had these. 
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What I'm asking Ms. Prouty t o t e s t i f y t o i s a l e t t e r 

generated by the OCD. She t e s t i f i e d about addresses of record, 

and I'm simply asking her -- t o help her out, r e a l l y -- about 

Mr. Bradshaw's communication t o the Albuquerque o f f i c e of C&D 

Management. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. P a d i l l a , i f I remember the 

pre-hearing statement c o r r e c t l y , you d i d n ' t have these l i s t e d 

as e x h i b i t s , d i d you? 

MR. PADILLA: I d i d n ' t have them a l l , but I g e n e r a l l y 

described what we would have i n terms of correspondence and 

th i n g s of t h a t nature. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: But doesn't the r u l e c a l l f o r a 

copy of the e x h i b i t s ? 

MR. PADILLA: Yes, i t does. But i t also -- but I'm 

also arguing t h a t no one i s p r e j u d i c e d by not having had these 

today. 

MR. SWAZO: Well, I would say I'm at an u n f a i r 

disadvantage. Because Mr. P a d i l l a has gained an advantage over 

me because he's been able t o look a t the documents t h a t I 

submitted and he's had them f o r a couple of months. Meanwhile, 

I'm -- t h i s i s given t o me as a s u r p r i s e r i g h t now. And I have 

to prepare my case and look a t h i s e x h i b i t s . So I t h i n k i t 

does create an u n f a i r advantage i n favor of Mr. P a d i l l a . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. P a d i l l a , I t h i n k the 

Commission can take a d m i n i s t r a t i v e n o t i c e of anyth i n g i n the 
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OCD records. And I don't mind you p r o v i d i n g copies of OCD 

documents and t o have them on the rec o r d . But j u s t a quick 

glance through here, t h e r e are t h i n g s i n here t h a t are not p a r t 

of OCD records. There's some i n f o r m a t i o n from Wyoming, State 

Land O f f i c e m a t e r i a l s -- so what I'm going t o do i s al l o w you 

over lunch t o c a l l out the t h i n g s t h a t we can take 

a d m i n i s t r a t i v e r e c o r d of and w e ' l l use them t o help understand 

your arguments. 

But the other t h i n g s t h a t are not p a r t of the record 

and were not submitted i n compliance of the r u l e s w i t h the 

pre-hearing statement, I t h i n k we're going t o have t o not 

admit. So why don't we go ahead and take a lunch break, come 

back a t 1 o'clock, and we w i l l a l l o w you t o use copies of 

anything t h a t we could take a d m i n i s t r a t i v e n o t i c e o f , but the 

other m a t e r i a l s w i l l not be admitted. 

MR. PADILLA: A l l r i g h t . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: And w e ' l l reconvene at 1 o'clock. 

[Noon recess was taken from 11:58 a.m. t o 1:10 p.m.] 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Let's go back on the rec o r d . This 

i s the c o n t i n u a t i o n of Case No. 14055. I b e l i e v e , Mr. P a d i l l a , 

you were about ready t o continue your cross-examination? 

MR. PADILLA: Yes. For the record, I've also gone 

back and depleted my e x h i b i t s c o n s i d e r a b l y , so the only records 

we have l e f t are OCD records. And Mr. Swazo, see i f he has any 

f u r t h e r o b j e c t i o n s . But I ' l l continue w i t h my 
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cross-examination. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Please, s i r . 

Q. (By Mr. P a d i l l a ) : Ms. Prouty, I b e l i e v e you 

t e s t i f i e d t h a t you d e a l t w i t h Darla J e f f r i e s u n t i l about March 

of 2008 of t h i s year; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. No. 

Q. Of record? 

A. I t h i n k I was -- no -- I t h i n k she was the 

operator a d m i n i s t r a t o r --

Q. Right. 

A. -- u n t i l -- what t h a t -- we don't keep t r a c k of 

operator a d m i n i s t r a t o r s . They -- how do I say -- i f they are 

e x i s t e n t or not. When someone has a need t o sign on t o our 

system, they send i n a new operator a d m i n i s t r a t o r form. But 

Darla wasn't using the system. Debbie McKelvey was using the 

system. So the operator a d m i n i s t r a t o r was Darla J e f f r i e s u n t i l 

Mr. K i z e r sent i n a form. But t h a t ' s not of recor d or 

anyt h i n g . I t ' s j u s t who i s the c u r r e n t operator a d m i n i s t r a t o r . 

Q. But Darla J e f f r i e s remained u n t i l 2008, even 

though she had designated Debbie McKelvey. 

A. Right. U n t i l I rec e i v e d n o t i f i c a t i o n from 

Mr. K i z e r . 

Q. Okay. What records do you have up t o 

December 2007 f o r C&D Management? I mean, i n terms of C-115s? 

A. Okay. Now I'm -- so -- up u n t i l which date, 
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please? 

Q. The end of December 2007. 

A. A l l r i g h t . At t h a t p o i n t , C-115 -- no -- not a l l 

of them. Some C-115s through the end of 2005 had been f i l e d , 

not a l l of them. Some were not f i l e d u n t i l l a t e A p r i l 2007. 

No. Excuse me. You asked me a t the 2007. Some were not f i l e d 

u n t i l March of 2008. No. That's not t r u e . Those were 

amendments. Okay. A l l i n i t i a l f i l i n g -- by the end of 2007, 

we had C-115 r e p o r t s through March o f 2006. 

Q. Okay. What I'm t r y i n g t o get a t i s who brought 

up the records t o date? Did Darla J e f f r i e s b r i n g them up t o 

the end -- brought them up t o the end of December 2007? Who 

f i l e d c o r r e c t i o n s , or whatever i t was, t o complete the f i l i n g s ? 

Did Darla J e f f r i e s do i t ? And I know t h a t Ms. McKelvey d i d i t . 

But i n terms of under whose d e s i g n a t i o n were the updates made 

t o the end of December 2007? 

A. Any t r a n s a c t i o n -- u n t i l Mr. Ki z e r faxed i n an 

operator a d m i n i s t r a t o r form, Darla J e f f r i e s was the operator 

a d m i n i s t r a t o r . 

Q. I r e a l i z e t h a t , but up t o t h a t time, the records 

had been sporadic -- or maybe you got some, maybe you d i d n ' t --

and you d e a l t w i t h or t r i e d t o get them from Ms. J e f f r i e s , 

r i g h t ? 

A. Well, I t h i n k you showed me a l e t t e r where we 

mailed the l e t t e r t o Mr. Kizer saying t h a t he would be shut i n 
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i f he d i d n ' t submit a C-115 f o r March 2007. 

Q. Okay. A f t e r March 2008, was the r e a f i l i n g of a 

bunch of C-115s t o complete C-115 r e p o r t i n g through the end of 

December 2007? 

A. Yes. 

Q. When was t h a t done? 

A. Five r e p o r t s were f i l e d i n March of 2008. Three 

of those were amendments, so two new r e p o r t s f o r the p r i o r 

p e r i o d of time. And then i n June of 2008, i t looks l i k e 21 

were f i l e d , but I could be wrong. I d i d n ' t do a r e a l accurate 

count. 

Q. There were a bunch f i l e d i n June of 2008? 

A. R i g h t . The f i r s t f i l i n g -- okay. The f i r s t time 

A p r i l 2006 was f i l e d through December 2007 was i n June of 2008. 

Q. And t h a t was done under Mr. Kizer's operator 

a d m i n i s t r a t o r designation? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Through Ms. McKelvey? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. Since t h a t time, have you received any 

other C-115 rep o r t s ? 

A. No. 

Q. Okay. Have you had any communications w i t h 

Ms. McKelvey concerning 2008 r e p o r t i n g ? 

A. She e-mailed me yesterday and s a i d t h a t Mr. Kizer 
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t o l d her he had sent C-115s t o her o f f i c e , but she wasn't 

t h e r e . 

Q. Where was she? 

A. I don't know. 

Q. She wasn't a t her o f f i c e , I take i t ? 

A. I d i d b r i n g her note -- but -- here we go. 

Yesterday a t 2:28: 

"Jane, I'm f i l i n g C-115s f o r C&D Management and have 

f i l e d through December 2007. Mr. Kizer from C&D e-mailed me t o 

t e l l me t h a t he had sent the necessary records f o r me t o get 

those r e p o r t s caught up. However, I am on v a c a t i o n and unable 

t o work on them. I f the necessary records have been sent t o my 

o f f i c e by C&D, I w i l l work on g e t t i n g those caught up when I 

r e t u r n . Let me know i f you have any questions." 

Q. Okay. I s t h e r e any d e f i c i e n c y beyond or before 

December 31st, 2007, t o your knowledge? 

A. C u r r e n t l y ? 

Q. Yes. 

A. Other than being f i l e d , i n general, two years 

l a t e , no. Not t o my knowledge. 

Q. Do you know the reason why Ms. McKelvey removed 

h e r s e l f as being the operator user some time between January 

and September 2007? 

A. Well, i t was two times. 

Q. Two times. 
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A. No, I don't. 

Q. She d i d n ' t t e l l you? 

A. She j u s t made i t very c l e a r she was not -- l e t me 

see. I brought those l e t t e r s . She s a i d she was not doing work 

w i t h them. 

I n January 2007, she s a i d , " I w i l l be no longer 

a s s i s t i n g C&D Management w i t h t h e i r C-115 f i l i n g s or any other 

matter. Please remove me." And her l e t t e r i n September sa i d , 

"This i s t o n o t i f y you t h a t I w i l l no longer be f i l i n g C-115s 

f o r C&D Management. Please remove my name as an o n l i n e user." 

Q. Did she send t h a t l e t t e r by copy t o Darla 

J e f f r i e s — any of those l e t t e r s ? 

A. No. Not t h a t I see. 

Q. Looking a t E x h i b i t No. 21 submitted by the 

D i v i s i o n -- do you have t h a t i n f r o n t of you? 

A. Yes. 

Q. You t e s t i f i e d t h a t t h i s p a r t i c u l a r e x h i b i t was 

p r i n t e d on A p r i l 29, 2008, r i g h t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. So a new r e p o r t would r e f l e c t p r o d u c t i o n through 

the end of 2007, r i g h t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. I t would complete the r e p o r t i n g f o r 2006 and 

2007, c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes. I a c t u a l l y don't i t would show f i l i n g . 
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I don't know i f i t shows p r o d u c t i o n . 

Q. Well, i t would show f i l i n g , r i g h t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Whether or not t h e r e was any production? 

A. And the r e i s , yes. 

MR. PADILLA: Okay. That's a l l I have. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Any r e d i r e c t , Mr. Swazo? 

MR. SWAZO: Yes, s i r . 

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. SWAZO: 

Q. Debbie McKelvey i s w i t h McKelvey O i l Reports, 

LLC; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. I j u s t put i t away. That's what her s t a t i o n e r y 

says, yes. 

Q. Who's responsible f o r s u b m i t t i n g an operator 

a d m i n i s t r a t o r form? 

A. The operator i s . And then i t says, "The operator 

a d m i n i s t r a t o r r e g i s t r a t i o n form must be signed by the p r e s i d e n t 

or v i c e p r e s i d e n t of the c o r p o r a t i o n . " 

And i t goes on t o describe t h a t . Did you want t o 

hear the r e s t of th a t ? 

Q. Sure. 

A. Okay. "The operator a d m i n i s t r a t o r 

r e g i s t r a t i o n " -- w e l l , i t s t a r t s o f f : "The purpose of the form 

i s t o i d e n t i f y one i n d i v i d u a l per operator whose name w i l l be 
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deemed t o be on each OCD permit or form f i l e d e l e c t r o n i c a l l y by 

t h a t D i v i s i o n . " 

And I'm s k i p p i n g some. The form also i d e n t i f i e s : 

"One operator a d m i n i s t r a t o r w i l l a u t h o r i z e users t o 

submit e l e c t r o n i c permits or forms. The operator a d m i n i s t r a t o r 

r e g i s t r a t i o n form must be signed by a p r e s i d e n t or a v i c e 

p r e s i d e n t of the c o r p o r a t i o n , or by an employee of the 

c o r p o r a t i o n duly a u t h o r i z e d by corporate r e s o l u t i o n or power of 

a t t o r n e y t o approve and sign an O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n form 

on b e h a l f of the c o r p o r a t i o n i f i t does business i n a corporate 

form; a manager i f i t does business as a l i m i t e d l i a b i l i t y ; a 

pa r t n e r i f i t does business as a p a r t n e r s h i p ; or, the operator 

i n d i v i d u a l l y i f i t i s a sole p r o p r i e t o r s h i p . 

"The s i g n a t u r e of the operator a d m i n i s t r a t o r a f f i x e d 

t o t h i s form s h a l l be deemed t o appear on a l l e l e c t r o n i c a l l y 

f i l e d forms as i f a c t u a l l y so appearing." 

Q. So i f an operator wanted t o change an operator 

a d m i n i s t r a t o r , who would be resp o n s i b l e f o r f i l i n g t h a t form? 

A. Someone who met the c o n d i t i o n s . Someone who was 

a p r e s i d e n t or a v i c e p r e s i d e n t of the c o r p o r a t i o n or an 

employee of the c o r p o r a t i o n duly a u t h o r i z e d by power of 

at t o r n e y , e t c . 

Q. Do you know what C&D Management's address of 

record was i n March of 2007? 

A. No. 
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Q. The l e t t e r s t h a t you sent t o C&D Management, 

where would you have obtained those? The address where you 

sent your l e t t e r s t o C&D Management, where would you have 

obtained those addresses? 

A. What I do -- and David worked f o r me, so probably 

he d i d what I d i d -- we can e-mail them. But i f we were 

w r i t i n g -- we would e-mail t o two places: one, the e-mail ID 

we have on the operator a d m i n i s t r a t o r form, plus the -- we can 

keep t r a c k of e-mails as they come t o us. So we would also 

send a copy t o the l a s t person who e-mailed us, or m u l t i p l e . 

On the paper l e t t e r s , we send out m u l t i p l e copies. 

What my process i s , i s I send a copy t o the operator's -- the 

address t h a t I have from what they t u r n e d i n on the web. Then 

some come back t o me, e i t h e r by the post o f f i c e , or the 

operator w i l l c a l l and say t h i s person d i e d , or t h i s person i s 

now the charge. This i s the address where y o u ' l l f i n d them. 

So I don't resend the l e t t e r . I w i l l send another 

l e t t e r t o the new address the company gave me -- the a t t o r n e y ' s 

name, whatever I'm given -- and anyone e l s e . I u s u a l l y don't 

send a l e t t e r t o the company f i l i n g on b e h a l f because we don't 

consider them t o be r e s p o n s i b l e . But sometimes I've done t h a t 

as w e l l . So i n i t i a l l y we send one l e t t e r , but by the time i t ' s 

done, we may have sent s e v e r a l l e t t e r s t o any address we hear 

about. I don't change the address of rec o r d based on t h a t . I 

j u s t do send m u l t i p l e l e t t e r s t r y i n g t o f i n d someone. 
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Q. Did Mr. Kiz e r submit an operator a d m i n i s t r a t o r 

form i n March of 2007? 

A. No. 

Q. When was the e a r l i e s t time he submitted an 

operator a d m i n i s t r a t o r form? 

A. March 21, 2008. 

MR. SWAZO: I don't have any other questions. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. P a d i l l a , a n y t h i n g on those 

subjects? 

RECROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. PADILLA: 

Q. Ms. Prouty, the l e t t e r I showed you t h i s morning 

was dated March of 2007 sometime, r i g h t ? 

A. (Witness nods head.) 

Q. And t h a t was t o the Albuquerque address? 

A. (Witness nods head.) 

Q. I s t h a t a yes? You're nodding your head. 

A. I'm s o r r y . Yes. Yes. That's two yeses. 

MR. PADILLA: That's a l l I have. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. Commissioner Bailey? 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: No questions. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commissioner Olson? 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: No questions. 

// 

// 
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EXAMINATION 

BY CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: 

Q. Ms. Prouty, f o r the record, we t a l k e d a l i t t l e 

b i t about David, David Bradshaw. Could you, f o r the record, 

t e l l us who David Bradshaw was and what he d i d . 

A. He was a management a n a l y s t w i t h OCD, and he took 

over the compliance program. And one of h i s 

r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s -- w e l l , he processed a l l operator 

a d m i n i s t r a t o r forms w h i l e he was here and set up new user IDs. 

He consulted w i t h operators w i t h t h e i r questions on C-115s or 

anything t o do w i t h OCD o n l i n e f i l i n g . He handled the 

compliance program and t r a c k e d compliance a c t i v i t i e s and 

developed a nice system of c h a r t i n g the s t a t u s of d e l i n q u e n t 

C-115s so we always knew how many operators were i n compliance 

and weren't. And he was i n charge of a l l of t h a t . He 

worked -- I b e l i e v e he t e s t i f i e d a t some hearings based on the 

l e t t e r s he had sent. That's a l l I can t h i n k o f . 

Q. Who i s the a u t h o r i z e d operator a d m i n i s t r a t o r f o r 

C&D now? 

A. Thomas K i z e r . 

Q. Okay. And t h a t changed i n March of t h i s year? 

A. Yes. 

Q. What was i t immediately p r i o r t o t h a t ? 

A. Darla J e f f r i e s . 

Q. Okay. So Darla J e f f r i e s was up t o March of 2008 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 

500 4th Street, NW, Suite 105, Albuquerque, NM 87102 



102 

and since then i t ' s Mr. Kizer? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And I b e l i e v e Mr. P a d i l l a touched on t h i s , but 

you have no idea why Ms. McKelvey was un-appointed and then 

reappointed i n 2006? 

A. I t appeared t h a t she un-appointed h e r s e l f , 

because she sent me the l e t t e r . U s u ally i t ' s the operator who 

w i l l l e t me know t h a t t h i s person i s n ' t a ttached t o t h e i r 

company anymore. So I don't know why, but she n o t i f i e d us each 

time. 

Q. But she d i d reappoint h e r s e l f , then, l a t e r i n 

2006? 

A. No. You can't do t h a t . Darla J e f f r i e s set her 

up t o be a user again i n between those two l e t t e r s . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I have no f u r t h e r questions. 

Mr. Swazo, anyt h i n g on those subjects? 

MR. SWAZO: No. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. P a d i l l a ? 

MR. PADILLA: No. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Ms. Prouty, thank you very much. 

MR. SWAZO: With t h a t , I r e s t my case. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. P a d i l l a , are you ready t o 

present your witness? 

MR. PADILLA: I ' l l c a l l Tom Kiz e r a t t h i s time. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Kizer, you've been p r e v i o u s l y 
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sworn i n t h i s case; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, s i r . 

THOMAS KIZER 

a f t e r having been f i r s t d u l y sworn under oath, 

was questioned and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. PADILLA: 

Q. Mr. Kiz e r , s t a t e your f u l l name, please. 

A. Thomas Ki z e r , K - i - z - e - r . 

Q. Where do you l i v e , Mr. Kizer? 

A. I l i v e i n the State of Nevada, i n the C i t y of Las 

Vegas, Clark County. 

Q. Mr. Kiz e r , do you -- what's your r e l a t i o n s h i p t o 

C&D Management Company? 

A. I was i n v o l v e d w i t h o i l and gas on the f r i n g e , 

doing t h i n g s i n v o l v e d w i t h t u b u l a r s --

Q. What's your p o s i t i o n now? 

A. Excuse me. I'm s o r r y . I'm the p r e s i d e n t of C&D 

Management. I'm s o r r y . 

Q. How long have you been pre s i d e n t ? 

A. As of February 21st of 2007. 

Q. How d i d you become i n v o l v e d w i t h C&D Management 

Company? 

A. I was working w i t h a gentleman by the name of 

B i l l Goodwin. He's the p r e s i d e n t of the Tennessee O i l and Gas 
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A s s o c i a t i o n . And I was t r y i n g t o work a p r o j e c t w i t h h i s 

o r g a n i z a t i o n . At the time, he had s a i d he had somebody t h a t he 

might want t o i n t r o d u c e me t o t h a t had some p r o p e r t y l o c a t e d 

here i n New Mexico. And t h a t gentleman was Mr. J e f f r i e s . And 

the p r o p e r t y a t the time was 740 acres of p r o p e r t y i n Eddy 

County, i n A r t e s i a . 

Q. And d i d you u l t i m a t e l y e n t e r i n t o a t r a n s a c t i o n 

w i t h --

A. At t h a t time, what we d i d was -- I wasn't sure 

about the purchase of the p r o p e r t y and the l i k e and the 

circumstances t h a t he was under and the l i k e . What we d i d i s I 

d i d n ' t have the a v a i l a b l e funds f o r i t . What I d i d was I s a i d , 

"Can I give you payments w i t h i t ? " 

And he says, "When we f i n i s h the payments, what w e ' l l 

do i s w e ' l l go ahead and t r a n s f e r . " And he s a i d at the time 

t h a t he would go ahead and continue t o manage the p r o p e r t y and 

work the p r o p e r t y . But I d i d n ' t have any involvement w i t h the 

pr o p e r t y . And t h i s was back i n 2005 when I met him. 

And we had o r i g i n a l l y exchanged -- I had exchanged 

some funds w i t h him, but there was n o t h i n g t h a t was t r a n s f e r r e d 

other than the funds going towards payment, t o the u l t i m a t e 

t r a n s a c t i o n . 

Q. Did you buy the o u t s t a n d i n g shares or d i d you buy 

the assets? 

A. I bought the outstanding shares from Kentucky — 
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from C&D Kentucky. I t was a Kentucky c o r p o r a t i o n t h a t they had 

s t a r t e d w i t h . And they had l i c e n s e d themselves t o do business 

i n New Mexico as a f o r e i g n c o r p o r a t i o n under C&D Management, 

which i s Chris and Darla J e f f r i e s and under Freedom Ventures. 

Q. At t h a t time, who were the o f f i c e r s of C&D 

Management? 

A. At the time, the o f f i c e r s were the p r e s i d e n t of 

the company, Darla J e f f r i e s , v i c e p r e s i d e n t was Chris J e f f r i e s . 

Q. Can you t e l l the Commission why you d i d n ' t j u s t 

purchase the assets i n s t e a d of buying the shares? 

A. Yes, I can. At the time when I came over, 

Mr. J e f f r i e s was working f o r a company by the name of Young O i l 

out of Kentucky. Young O i l appeared t o be a very reputable 

company. He was the v i c e p r e s i d e n t of the company of Young 

O i l . He h e l d h i m s e l f out as the p r e s i d e n t . I went back t h e r e 

t o meet w i t h him. 

Mr. J e f f r i e s was s t a r t i n g another company by the name 

of H J e t . He was the v i c e p r e s i d e n t of t h a t company, very 

knowledgeable of what he was doing i n the business -- t o me. 

And he had e s t a b l i s h e d the Ogrid number out here i n New Mexico. 

He had e s t a b l i s h e d vendors t h a t were working the w e l l s . We had 

accounts set up w i t h them. And I thought I could come i n , keep 

e v e r y t h i n g s t a t u s -- keep e v e r y t h i n g going the same r a t h e r than 

change the company, and t h a t , so I could j u s t continue on. At 

the time, I thought the company had a good r e p u t a t i o n . Why not 
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keep i t ? There was n o t h i n g t h a t was out of l i n e , you know, at 

t h a t time. So th e r e was r e a l l y no need f o r me t o change 

anything t h a t t h e r e was a t t h a t time. 

Q. So when d i d you o f f i c i a l l y take over the company, 

i f there was a time t h a t you took over? 

A. We t r i e d t o get the t r a n s a c t i o n done before, but 

as time goes on, J e f f r i e s -- and, as you can see, he's not 

here, so i t t e l l s you something -- but he d i d n ' t f o l l o w through 

w i t h a few of the t h i n g s t h a t he was supposed t o be doing. And 

I was t r y i n g t o get the t h i n g closed up because I had p a i d 

him -- f i n i s h e d paying him the funds, and he had allowed h i s 

c o r p o r a t i o n and t h a t t o be lapsed. 

We were t r y i n g t o move e v e r y t h i n g over t o Wyoming 

where I wanted t o move the c o r p o r a t i o n , because I had no 

involvement w i t h Kentucky. And I wanted t o move i t t o Wyoming 

f o r tax purposes and the l i k e t h ere and have e v e r y t h i n g 

t r a n s f e r r e d completely over and t h a t . And also make sure t h a t 

we kept the f o r e i g n c o r p o r a t i o n of C&D i n New Mexico. That was 

the primary t h i n g and t h a t . 

So we had e s t a b l i s h e d r e l a t i o n s h i p s w i t h the B e t t e r 

Business Bureau and a number of other t h i n g s l i k e t h a t , so i t 

was important f o r me t o t r y t o keep t h a t up. And he l e t the --

something lapsed i n Kentucky. I t couldn't get through. 

F i n a l l y , he worked t h a t and got i t r e i n s t a t e d , and I got i t t o 

my a t t o r n e y i n Wyoming, Mr. Bagley, who coordinated the 
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exchange and the l i k e and t h a t . 

Q. A f t e r you moved the c o r p o r a t i o n -- w e l l , l e t me 

ask you t h i s : When d i d you move the c o r p o r a t i o n t o Wyoming? 

A. I t was i n 2008. No, excuse me. I t was 2007. I t 

was i n March. We f i r s t had t o take over the c o r p o r a t i o n i n 

Kentucky, so we could get a ho l d and take the c o r p o r a t i o n and 

then i t t r a n s f e r r e d i n t o Wyoming, and t h a t was on 

March 8, 2007. 

Q. Who were the o f f i c e r s of the c o r p o r a t i o n a f t e r 

you moved i t t o Wyoming? 

A. I was the only o f f i c e r . I was p r e s i d e n t t h e r e . 

I was the only o f f i c e r . 

Q. Have you had any other o f f i c e r s i n the 

c o r p o r a t i o n since t h a t time? 

A. None. 

Q. What d i d you do about t a k i n g over the o i l and gas 

operations here i n New Mexico a f t e r March of 2007? 

A. Well, at t h a t time i n March of 2007, the OCD had 

s t a r t e d a compliance matter w i t h Chris a t t h a t time. And th e r e 

were a number of issues t h a t they were g e t t i n g -- I guess they 

were n e g o t i a t i n g . I wasn't p r i v y t o t h a t , those conversations 

at a l l . I was t o l d not t o get i n v o l v e d w i t h them, t h a t 

J e f f r i e s , he had e-mailed me and t o l d me t h a t i t was h i s 

r e s p o n s i b i l i t y , he's having conferences w i t h Daniel and the 

other people on the telephone t o discuss --
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Q. With you say D a n i e l , you're p o i n t i n g --

A. Oh, excuse me. Mr. Sanchez and Ms. O'Connor. I 

asked t o get i n v o l v e d w i t h i t , and he s a i d j u s t stay out of i t . 

I'm f u l l y r e s p o n s i b l e . I'm t a k i n g on the -- t h e y ' r e g i v i n g me 

p e n a l t i e s and I'm g i v i n g them a plan of a c t i o n of what I'm 

doing t o get the w e l l s i n order and b r i n g e v e r y t h i n g 

up-to-date. And I was asked not t o get i n v o l v e d w i t h i t . Just 

t o s i t aside and t h a t . 

And then t h e r e was the hearing t h a t came up, and I 

guess they had worked something out where he d i d n ' t have t o 

appear. I showed up anyway here i n Santa Fe. And t h a t day, 

the case, i t had been taken o f f t h e r e because they were going 

t o go and n e g o t i a t e a d e a l . 

At t h a t time, Ms. O'Connor was here, Cheryl was here, 

and she asked me t o go up t o the room and say h e l l o . Because I 

d i d n ' t r e a l l y have any other purpose. So she asked me t o come 

i n t o the room, i n t o her o f f i c e , and she was t y p i n g something. 

She was g e t t i n g ready t o leave w i t h i n the week. At t h a t time, 

Mr. Sanchez came i n and i n t r o d u c e d h i m s e l f , and he was t h e r e 

f o r a few minutes, and he was the gentleman I was going t o be 

d e a l i n g w i t h and the l i k e i n the f u t u r e and t h a t . 

I spoke w i t h Ms. O'Connor, and she s a i d a t t h a t 

time -- she had Mr. J e f f r i e s on the telephone l i n e , and she was 

t a l k i n g about the agreement t h a t they had n e g o t i a t e d before. 

And she s a i d t o Mr. J e f f r i e s -- she s a i d t o me, "Who's going t o 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 

500 4th Street, NW, Suite 105, Albuquerque, NM 87102 



109 

take r e s p o n s i b i l i t y of these matters here?" 

And she h e l d the phone, and she covered up the phone 

and she s a i d , "Tom, you don't want the r e s p o n s i b i l i t y of these, 

do you?" 

And I s a i d , "No, why would I take r e s p o n s i b i l i t y ? " 

She s a i d , "Don't take r e s p o n s i b i l i t y of them." 

So she was very k i n d . She was very n i c e . And t h a t ' s 

what she s a i d and then she got back on the phone and t a l k e d t o 

him. She s a i d , "You don't want r e s p o n s i b i l i t y . " 

And t h a t ' s when she repeated t o me, " J e f f r i e s i s 

t a k i n g personal f i n a n c i a l r e s p o n s i b i l i t y of these." And she 

v e r b a l i z e d i t and then she memorialized i t i n t h a t No. 26. 

Daniel wasn't t h e r e a t t h a t time. He had walked out already of 

the room. I don't know why Ms. O'Connor i s n ' t here t o say i t , 

but t h a t ' s what she d i d t e l l me on t h e r e . And t h a t was the --

I d i d n ' t n e g o t i a t e any of t h a t agreement. I wasn't p r i v y t o 

i t . I wasn't given copies t h a t they say t h a t were e-mailed t o 

me. 

And I went back and I e-mailed O'Connor asking her 

f o r a copy of i t A p r i l 21st. I have an e-mail. And i t s a i d 

she's no longer w i t h the OCD and t h a t I ' d have t o get them from 

Mr. Sanchez. I never got any of the t h i n g s , any of the copies 

of the agreement on t h e r e . I d i d n ' t f i n d t h a t t here was any 

cause t o -- I could have changed the c o r p o r a t i o n and gone t o a 

d i f f e r e n t one and t h a t . But here he had taken on the 
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r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s o f those t h i n g s b e f o r e , so I d i d n ' t t h i n k 

there was any cause t o a l l of a sudden change the whole 

corporate t h i n g . 

Here I had a company t h a t ' s k i n d of set up going, 

he's t a k i n g r e s p o n s i b i l i t y of these t h i n g s , and t h a t was i t . 

A f t e r t h a t p e r i o d of time, I d i d n ' t hear -- get any 

communications a t a l l from the o r g a n i z a t i o n whatsoever. 

Q. Let me stop you t h e r e . What you're t a l k i n g about 

i s the a d m i n i s t r a t i v e E x h i b i t No. 26 issued by the OCD, r i g h t ? 

A. I'm s o r r y , s i r ? 

Q. You're t a l k i n g now about the agreement -- or the 

A d m i n i s t r a t i v e Compliance Order? 

A. Rig h t . No. 26. The one t h a t was made w i t h 

Mr. J e f f r i e s . 

Q. And t h a t ' s dated the 26th day of March 2007? 

A. I t ' s the 26? He dated — I t h i n k i t says March 

16th on here. And he signed i t on March 21st, J e f f r i e s d i d . 

Q. Okay. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: 2007 or 2008? 

THE WITNESS: This goes back t o 2007. 

Q. (By Mr. P a d i l l a ) : Now, i n March 21st, 2007, when 

he signed t h i s , was he v i c e p r e s i d e n t of C&D Management? 

A. No. No. He wasn't. 

Q. Did he have a u t h o r i t y t o b i n d C&D Management a t 

t h a t time? 
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A. No, he d i d n ' t . Not i n t h i s c a p a c i t y . No, he 

d i d n ' t . 

Q. Did you have any communication exchanges between 

and a f t e r t h a t time w i t h Mr. J e f f r i e s ? 

A. Yes. Before and a f t e r . 

Q. What were they about? 

A. Well, before i t was, I was t r y i n g t o get i n v o l v e d 

w i t h the n e g o t i a t i o n s , the communications, and he j u s t s a i d , 

"Stay the F out of i t . I'm t a k i n g f u l l r e s p o n s i b i l i t y . " 

Later on, we went back w i t h some e-mails back and 

f o r t h because I was t r y i n g t o determine what he was completing 

w i t h the w e l l s . And he s a i d he had e v e r y t h i n g , i t ' s under 

c o n t r o l . He's communicating d i r e c t l y w i t h the OCD. They're 

going t o get the w e l l s plugged and t h e i r b r i n g i n g the r e p o r t s 

up-to-date on t h a t . 

Q. What was your — when d i d you a c t u a l l y become 

more i n v o l v e d i n terms of checking out compliance issues w i t h 

the OCD? 

A. Well, d u r i n g t h a t p e r i o d from a f t e r they had 

signed the compliance order u n t i l probably November a t t h a t 

time, I t h i n k these gentlemen communicated d i r e c t l y w i t h Chris. 

I d i d n ' t receive any i n f o r m a t i o n . Nobody t a l k e d t o me. He was 

the one conducting -- mainly i t was issues r e g a r d i n g the 

compliance order t h a t he had signed on a personal b a s i s . I 

f i g u r e d he was t a k i n g care of them on t h a t . 
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And then as f a r as the other matters, I was j u s t 

l e t t i n g the w e l l s k i n d of go along, because what we would have 

l i k e d t o have done i s p e r m i t t e d and gone out and d r i l l e d some 

more w e l l s . And I was w a i t i n g f o r these matters t o be cl e a r e d 

up. So i t was j u s t s i t t i n g and w a i t i n g . Obviously, i t wasn't 

the r i g h t t h i n g t o do. 

Q. This morning someone s a i d -- the questi o n was 

asked whether or not you ever o b j e c t e d t o the A d m i n i s t r a t i v e 

Compliance Order entered i n March of 2007? 

A. No. And I had no w r i t t e n o b j e c t i o n . As I say, 

when we sat there and she t o l d me about -- O'Connor t o l d me 

about what was going on, J e f f r i e s appeared t o be t a k i n g care of 

t h i n g s . Coming out of March i n t h a t area, t h e r e was no reason. 

E v e r y t h i n g was being done. I f i g u r e d t h a t he was going t o take 

and p l u g h i s w e l l s . He had received funds t o pl u g the w e l l s . 

He had funds. He had the resources. We made c e r t a i n t h a t he 

had the resources t o take care of the contamination matters, 

made sure he had the resources t o take care of the records and 

e v e r y t h i n g . 

So e v e r y t h i n g was moving along. Something went wrong 

on h i s s i d e . I don't know what i t was on t h e r e . Something 

went wrong i n Kentucky, maybe w i t h h i s other companies or 

something. And then a l l of a sudden the communication j u s t cut 

o f f completely. 

Q. Now, l e t ' s t a l k about the address. What's your 
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o f f i c i a l m a i l i n g address? 

A. The address t h a t we have used here f o r C&D i s 

4806 Lang, Northeast, Suite 110 Albuquerque, New Mexico, 87109. 

Q. You mainta i n an o f f i c e there? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And d i d you re c e i v e from the OCD c e r t a i n 

communications? 

A. What I rec e i v e d a t t h a t o f f i c e was a c t u a l l y 

minimal. I got -- I re c e i v e d l e t t e r s from Jane. I t h i n k maybe 

from Dorothy --

Q. When you say "Jane," do you mean Ms. Prouty here? 

A. Yes. I'm s o r r y -- reg a r d i n g the C-115s and t h a t . 

And I got those over t o J e f f r i e s t o make sure they got them 

up-to-date. I received l e t t e r s from Richard i n the O i l 

Conservation D i v i s i o n i n A r t e s i a , and I also r e c e i v e d items 

from the Bureau of Land Management i n t h a t o f f i c e a t t h a t time. 

And t h a t was back i n -- goes back as f a r as February of 2007 

when we o r i g i n a l l y -- when we advised the f o l k s of the address. 

Q. When d i d you f i n d out t h a t t here had be been, or 

was going t o be, a hearing i n January of 2008 concerning 

enforcement of the A d m i n i s t r a t i v e Compliance Order? 

A. I n February of February 29th -- there's a copy 

of the fax i n one of your e x h i b i t s t here -- and i t was under 

h i s e x h i b i t s . I received a l e t t e r from Richard Inge? 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Inge. 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 

500 4th Street, NW, Suite 105, Albuquerque, NM 87102 



114 

THE WITNESS: Inge — i n A r t e s i a . I t was reg a r d i n g a 

couple of the State w e l l s i n t h e r e and having t o do w i t h the 

f i l i n g s w i t h the C-115s. And so I wrote him back a l e t t e r 

asking him about them because J e f f r i e s was t o have brought 

those up, and I d i d n ' t know which ones he was r e f e r r i n g t o on 

the r e . I d i d n ' t hear back from Richard. 

I n s t e a d I rec e i v e d a fax from Sonny. That's the 

f i r s t time I had heard from Sonny, and i t was a complete order 

s t a t i n g t h a t the bonds t h a t were i n our name were being -- and 

i t s t a t e d t h i s was being done. And t h a t was the order. That 

was the f i r s t -- t h a t was on March 4. 

Q. (By Mr. P a d i l l a ) : That was -- when you say 

"Sonny," you're t a l k i n g about Mr. Swazo? 

A. Mr. Swazo, a t t o r n e y Swazo. And I immediately got 

on the phone and s a i d , "What's -- why d i d n ' t anybody t e l l me 

about t h i s or anything?" I s a i d , " I ' l l come out immediately. 

I ' l l be th e r e tomorrow." 

And a t t h a t time, I t h i n k i t was on a Wednesday, he 

sa i d he was going t o be gone f o r the weekend, and we'd have t o 

make i t the f o l l o w i n g week on March 12th. I showed up and the 

two gentlemen here were t h e r e . 

Q. When you say the "two gentlemen" --

A. Mr. Swazo and Sanchez here. And they were 

present. And I had not received a n y t h i n g . I was -- I went i n 

the o f f i c e , and I asked them what i s a l l t h i s about? And i t ' s 
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c l e a r t h a t i t o r i g i n a t e d from J e f f r i e s not t a k i n g care of those 

matters t h a t he and O'Connor agreed t o back i n March. 

Q. Do you know whether Mr. J e f f r i e s appeared at the 

January 2008 hearing? 

A. J e f f r i e s has not appeared f o r a n y t h i n g . He 

hasn't appeared f o r a n y t h i n g . No, he d i d n ' t . He d i d n ' t t e l l 

me about i t , although I had t a l k e d t o him before. I d i d n ' t 

hear any t h i n g from t h i s o f f i c e , from the OCD. And I j u s t heard 

about i t t h a t day. And I immediately came, and I sat down i n 

the o f f i c e w i t h these gentlemen. And we sat, and we t a l k e d f o r 

maybe 45 minutes. And I asked, "Well, what can I do? What can 

be done about t h i s ? " 

And they j u s t s a i d t h e r e i s b a s i c a l l y n o t h i n g t h a t 

can be done. That the time -- the p e r i o d had run out t h a t I 

could do any t h i n g . That was number one. Number two, I asked 

them, "Well, why d i d n ' t you send me anything?" I asked Sonny. 

And Sonny s a i d , "Well, I'm not r e q u i r e d t o go out and 

f i n d you," and t h a t . 

And he s a i d -- I s a i d , " I d i d t h i s . " 

He showed me a couple of documents -- and I don't see 

very w e l l . I t h i n k one was one of the corporate documents from 

the State, and the other one was a p u b l i s h i n g t h a t he had made 

or a paper t h a t he had f i l e d i n A r t e s i a . And I d i d n ' t know 

e x a c t l y how t o respond. And they p r o v i d e d me w i t h a copy of 

i t . 
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I went back down t o A r t e s i a , and t h a t . And I went 

back home, and I thought about i t , and I thought, w e l l , gosh 

darn, these people have been sending me l e t t e r s t o Albuquerque 

since May of 2007 -- maybe as e a r l y as March. 

Q. When you say "those people," who are those 

people? 

A. Oh, I mean the OCD. I've been r e c e i v i n g them 

from the O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n i n A r t e s i a and t h i s o f f i c e 

here i n 2007. And I s t a r t e d l o o k i n g through t h i n g s i n terms of 

how d i d they miss my address? And these people are t a k i n g my 

bonds, they're t a k i n g p r o p e r t y . And I came across the State 

Land s i t e t h e r e t h a t was t h e r e . And I saw the r e t h a t i t s a i d I 

had given them n o t i c e on February 21st of 2007. And I p r i n t e d 

i t out t h e r e . This was on March 19th. I p r i n t e d i t out, and I 

was going t o send i t over t o Mr. Swazo and the l i k e . 

And then I went back on the s i t e days l a t e r , and I 

saw t h a t date had been mod i f i e d , changed. So n o t h i n g e l s e on 

the e n t i r e website was changed except t h a t date. That date 

showed March 7th, 2008, as the l a s t date t h a t somebody used i t . 

That would show t h a t t h a t ' s the date t h a t i t was updated. 

Somebody had changed the website d u r i n g t h a t time. 

And I t o l d E r nie, I sent him the l e t t e r and s a i d , 

" L i s t e n , you guys had t h i s n o t i c e . You guys a t l e a s t had t h i s 

since t h a t date." 

I brought out -- I sent them copies of the bonds and 
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r i g h t on the capture bonds they have 4801 -- w e l l , these are 

the f i n a n c i a l bonds t h a t they're going t o t r y t o r e q u i r e me t o 

f o r f e i t . They have the address of C&D Management. And I'm 

saying, why i s i t t h a t you couldn't send me a n o t i c e or 

something w i t h i t ? And I d i d n ' t r e a l l y get a response. 

B a s i c a l l y , I d i d n ' t get a response or a n y t h i n g w i t h i t . 

Then I had t o contact Ernie t o f i n d out i f I had any 

r i g h t s or anything on i t , because I was t o l d you don't have 

anything. I t ' s over. Forget i t . And had I waited a l i t t l e 

l onger, I may have blown the dates. As you can see, I came 

r i g h t at the l a s t moment and t h a t . 

So nobody has ever responded as f a r as why those 

dates -- n o t h i n g else on t h a t e n t i r e web page has ever changed 

except t h a t date. And the only t h i n g I c o u l d f i g u r e -- and 

i t ' s complete s p e c u l a t i o n on my p a r t and my o p i n i o n -- i s t h a t 

somebody wanted t o change t h a t date t o show t h a t I had only d i d 

i t j u s t i n March of 2008 and they d i d n ' t have any previous 

knowledge of i t . 

Q. P r i o r t o t h a t time, what had been shown on t h a t 

website? 

A. February 21st of 2007. And then i t changed t o 

March 7th of 2008. At the bottom of t h a t website i t has an 

address of the a d m i n i s t r a t o r t h a t I could c o n t a c t w i t h i t . And 

I d i d w r i t e him an e-mail. And he wrote me back an e-mail, and 

he s a i d , " I d i d not change i t . I t was changed by Dorothy 
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P h i l l i p s . She was ordered t o change i t on March 7 t h . " 

Q. Of what year? 

A. Of 2008. I have the e-mails here and t h a t t h a t I 

received from him. And he s a i d he was ordered t o change i t by 

Dorothy P h i l l i p s . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I f you have e-mails, who i s he? 

THE WITNESS: I t ' s Joe Saiz or something? I have i t . 

Hold on. This i s our o r i g i n a l . Here i t i s . Here i t i s . His 

name i s Joe Mraz, M-r-a-z on here. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: And who does he work f o r ? 

THE WITNESS: I t has here he's Joe Mraz. I found the 

c h a r t . His website i s slo.state.newmexico -- s t a t e -- I guess 

Land Management. I don't know what t h a t i s . 

And he says, " I found t h a t the changes were made on 

the ONGUARD system base by Dorothy P h i l l i p s w i t h the OCD on 

March 7th, 2008. I cannot change t h a t screen. Only Dorothy at 

the OCD can change i t . Do you have her number? Try and give 

her a c a l l t h e r e . " 

So I was — the reason I was concerned was i s t h a t as 

I s a i d , i f I'm going t o be f o r f e i t i n g p r o p e r t y and the l i k e , I 

t h i n k i t ' s f a i r t h a t somebody at l e a s t advise me and l e t me 

know. And the r e was a l o t of paperwork t h a t was submitted and 

i s evidence t h a t you have i n your f i l e s t h a t we were going t o 

be s u b m i t t i n g t o show t h a t t here was another address i n th e r e 

besides Kentucky, you know? 
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MR. PADILLA: Can I approach the witness? 

THE WITNESS: I don't mean t o argue the case, but --

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Why don't you l e t him f i n i s h ? Are 

you done? 

THE WITNESS: But, yeah — I ' l l l e t you guys go 

ahead. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: You may approach, Mr. P a d i l l a . 

Q. (By Mr. P a d i l l a ) : Mr. Ki z e r , l e t me show you 

what we've marked as your E x h i b i t No. 6. What i s t h a t ? 

A. This i s a l e t t e r from -- t h i s i s the l e t t e r from 

Richard. 

Q. Are the r e other papers attached there? 

A. Yes. I t ' s dated June 7th -- June 4t h . 

Q. Can you t e l l us b r i e f l y what's i n t h a t e x h i b i t ? 

A. This e x h i b i t i s regarding the two s t a t e w e l l s , 

the Schneider -- yeah, the Schneider and the Michael lease 

here. And i t ' s r e g a r d i n g on the p r o d u c t i o n here on what i s 

going on w i t h the w e l l s . This was the copy of the l e t t e r here 

on February 29th of t h i s year t h a t I e-mailed Richard j u s t t o 

f o l l o w up t o t r y and get something moving w i t h these 

v i o l a t i o n s . 

Because I was p r e t t y c l e a r t h a t Chris -- Chris 

f i n a l l y t o l d me over a telephone conversation. I s a i d , "Chris, 

are you going t o get these w e l l s done or not?" 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: You mean Chris J e f f r i e s ? 
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THE WITNESS: Yeah. Chris J e f f r i e s . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. 

THE WITNESS: And he f i n a l l y t o l d me. He goes, 

" L i s t e n , I have no money. I'm not going t o do i t . " 

I s a i d , "Well, you could have t o l d me a long time 

ago. I have given you money t o do i t . What happened t o i t ? 

Why d i d n ' t you t e l l me before? I ' l l go ahead and w e ' l l t r y and 

get something done w i t h them." 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: When was t h i s conversation? 

THE WITNESS: This was probably i n January. He had 

already known of t h i s h earing. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: January of? 

THE WITNESS: Of 2008. 

Q. (By Mr. P a d i l l a ) : Where are those l e t t e r s 

addressed? 

A. These l e t t e r s are addressed t o C&D Management, 

d.b.a. Freedom Ventures a t 4801 Lang, S u i t e 110, Albuquerque, 

New Mexico. There's another one here on May 29th of 2007 here, 

addressed t o the 4801 Lang Northeast. 

Q. Did you receive l e t t e r s or correspondence at any 

time from the A r t e s i a o f f i c e of the O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n ? 

A. Yes, I d i d . That's where these l e t t e r s are from. 

Q. Okay. What else i s i n t h a t e x h i b i t , Mr. Kizer? 

A. You have a l e t t e r here from Chris J e f f r i e s t o 

Mr. Sanchez here on September 20th r e g a r d i n g a compliance here. 
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He's s t a t i n g asking f o r more time from Mr. Sanchez. The 

w e l l s t h a t they have l i s t e d here are the Shearns and the 

Muncys. The Muncys -- they keep t a l k i n g about f o u r w e l l s and 

f i v e w e l l s . There are some orders t h a t g i v e the Shearns and 

other ones i n c l u d e the Muncys. I know they only got permits on 

the Shearns and not the Muncys on here. 

The other has t o do w i t h the cash i e r ' s check t h a t was 

sent by J e f f r i e s t o -- not a cashier's check. I t was -- t h i s 

i s on OCD E x h i b i t No. 13 -- I guess p a r t of the agreement t h a t 

he had was he was t o pay them $6,000 i n increments of 3,000 and 

3,000. J e f f r i e s sent the f i r s t $3,000 and the check was good, 

I b e l i e v e . I don't know what accounts or anyth i n g i t 

o r i g i n a t e d from. 

But the second check t h a t he sent t o them I found 

out, i n 2008, t h a t the check had bounced. That's when I 

received a copy of t h i s . This was i n the compliance order. 

And t h a t check t h a t bounced was from a company -- drawn on 

Global Management. That's one of J e f f r i e s ' companies i n 

Kentucky -- f o r $3,000. And t h a t check was r e t u r n e d f o r 

n o n - s u f f i c i e n t funds. 

I t a l k e d t o the a t t o r n e y , Mr. Swazo, about t h i s i n 

2008 at t h a t time, and I contacted 

Q. Was t h a t before or a f t e r the hearing? 

A. I'm sorry? 

Q. Before or a f t e r the hearing? 
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A. A f t e r the h e a r i n g . I t was -- when we 

communicated, i t was probably i n March then. And I t o l d him I 

would use a l l my e f f o r t s t o get the money from J e f f r i e s t o make 

t h a t check good. And the check was here f o r t e n days or so 

before they found i t . I got J e f f r i e s t o w r i t e a check. I t was 

a cashier's check. I t was r e m i t t e d by h i m s e l f p e r s o n a l l y . I t 

wasn't on the C&D account, and i t was sent t o the OCD here on 

i t . 

I d i d n ' t see other than the l e t t e r t h a t they sent out 

t o J e f f r i e s t o t r y t o recover t h a t amount. You've got t o push 

the guy a l i t t l e b i t . And he came up w i t h the money. He sent 

the $3,000. That was i t on t h a t . 

Q. Were you being copied on t h i s correspondence 

between OCD — 

A. I d i d not receive copies -- any correspondence 

o t h e r than the C-115 v i o l a t i o n s and the t h i n g s from Richard out 

of A r t e s i a . I d i d n ' t r e c e i v e copies of any correspondence 

between the OCD on St. Francis here and Mr. J e f f r i e s r e g a r d i n g 

any of the s t a t u s of the w e l l s or a n y t h i n g . I was t o l d by 

Mr. J e f f r i e s at t h a t time t h a t he was h a n d l i n g them, t h a t he 

was t a k i n g care of them, t h a t he was g e t t i n g the a p p r o p r i a t e 

extensions, and t h a t he was g e t t i n g the r e p o r t s up-to-date. 

Later I found out t h a t he d i d n ' t b r i n g them a l l 

up-to-date. That's when, here i n March -- and then I 

commissioned Ms. McKelvey t o go back t o June of 2006 and b r i n g 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 

500 4th Street, NW, Suite 105, Albuquerque, NM 87102 



123 

them a l l up. And she brought them up t o 2007. And the reason 

she d i d n ' t have those f i l e d up a t t h a t time, because we were 

running i n t o the problem -- a t t h a t time, I was p r e t t y i n v o l v e d 

i n h a n d l i n g the r e p o r t s and t h a t . I t was q u i t e expensive t o 

get those r e p o r t s up-to-date and e v e r y t h i n g , so I ran a l i t t l e 

b i t behind w i t h them. And she s a i d she had run the time f o r 

t h a t month or two-month p e r i o d , and then she j u s t k i n d of l e t 

them go t h e r e . 

We have them. I have them w i t h me. She's going t o 

f i l e them. She's i n Arkansas now. And she's going t o go ahead 

and get those f i l e d on t h a t . But I was the one t h a t brought 

them up-to-date. 

Q. For what period? 

A. For t h i s year, 2008, from January 1st up t o r i g h t 

now. 

Q. Have you given her a l l the data f o r her t o 

complete --

A. She has a l l the data. What we d i d was -- d u r i n g 

t h i s same time i n February — 

Q. Of what year? 

A. This year, 2008. The Bureau of Land Management 

came out t o the p r o p e r t y , and they sealed our c o n t a i n e r s . We 

couldn't s h i p . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Your tanks? 

THE WITNESS: Yeah. They sealed our tanks. The 
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reason f o r t h a t was, i s t h a t , according t o Tony Ferraro here, 

we d i d n ' t have a bond, a f e d e r a l bond. 

Q. (By Mr. P a d i l l a ) : Where does Tony Ferraro work? 

A. Tony Ferraro works f o r the Bureau of Land 

Management here i n Santa Fe. And according t o him, he s a i d we 

don't have any bonds on C&D Management. They don't e x i s t . 

And I s a i d , " I t ' s impossible. We had a b l a n k e t bond 

f o r a l l our f e d e r a l w e l l s . How do you t h i n k a l l t h i s s t u f f got 

done?" 

He says, "We don't have i t . You get i t . You f i n d 

i t . You show i t me, and I ' l l unplug your w e l l s . " 

I don't even know where the bond i s . We're l o o k i n g 

everywhere. Chris i s not communicating w i t h me t o f i n d out 

what bank i t might be. I went down, and I used some of the 

i n f o r m a t i o n t h a t was i n your packets t h e r e regarding the w e l l s . 

Down i n A r t e s i a , I'm asking every bank t h e r e -- was asking 

where t h i s f e d e r a l bond was, and nobody could f i n d i t . 

T h i r t y - s e v e n days l a t e r -- 37 days l a t e r -- Tony 

says, "Oh, I'm s o r r y . We have i t here in-house over here 

on" -- i n t h e i r b u i l d i n g -- "we received a check. We re c e i v e d 

i t . We're p u l l i n g i t . " 

So I had t o l d -- I had t o l d -- t h a t we were going t o 

t r y and get the w e l l s plugged b e f o r e , but the BLM won't a l l o w 

me t o p l u g them w i t h o u t the bond. And they're the ones -- and 

I don't know where the bond i s . And they f i n a l l y came through 
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and s a i d they l o c a t e d i t i n t h e i r house. "You're okay. Go 

ahead and f i l e your permits f o r p l u g g i n g . " 

I got t h a t faxed, and you have a copy of i t . I sent 

them a fax . That was on A p r i l 3rd or something. I went out 

immediately, and I f i l e d the next day f o r the permits f o r the 

plugging. That's why t h a t was a l i t t l e b i t delayed t h e r e . 

We weren't having any p r o d u c t i o n , you know. We were 

shut i n a t t h a t time. We were sealed i n a t t h a t time by then. 

So f o r 37 days d u r i n g t h i s process, the BLM came i n and closed 

us on t h e r e . Since then, what I've done w i t h r e g arding 

plugging the w e l l s -- the bonds are good. We got the approvals 

w i t h them, and the f e l l o w t h a t ' s working w i t h me i s a gentleman 

i n A r t e s i a t h a t ' s l i v e d t h e r e , and he works very c l o s e l y w i t h 

Mike Bratcher down t h e r e . 

And he -- u n f o r t u n a t e l y , he had a piece of casing 

r o l l over h i s f o o t and crushed i t -- h i s f e e t . So he was t i e d 

up f o r a couple of weeks t h e r e . But i t hasn't slowed us down 

at a l l on t h e r e i n terms of g e t t i n g the w e l l s ready f o r 

pl u g g i n g . 

Q. What i s your p r o j e c t i o n f o r pl u g g i n g now? 

A. I'm meeting tomorrow w i t h Michael down i n A r t e s i a 

because of t h i s new p i t r u l e t h a t you have. We have t o set up 

a temporary p i t next t o these p l u g g i n g s . And there's v a r i o u s 

r e p o r t s and t h a t we were supposed t o submit. I've been over t o 

the Bureau o f Hydrology. They don't know e x a c t l y which ones 
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are r e q u i r e d . He's given me a l o t of i n f o r m a t i o n , saying t h a t 

we can't do a ra d i u s search on these c e r t a i n w e l l s . The OCD i n 

t h e i r recommendation o f how t o get these t h i n g s -- p i t s and 

t h a t added t o them -- Mike s a i d i t ' s k i n d of new t o him. We're 

going t o have t o go through i t and e v e r y t h i n g . 

Q. Mike who? 

A. Mike Bratcher, down i n the OCD. And so I t o l d 

him I ' l l b r i n g i n e v e r y t h i n g t h a t I have t o show him and 

ev e r y t h i n g , and then i f he says t h a t ' s acceptable, w e ' l l go 

ahead and f i l e the permits w i t h him. He may r e q u i r e t h a t I go 

out and do them maybe a l i t t l e d i f f e r e n t l y . I may have t o 

r e q u i r e something. He sa i d he hasn't done t h a t many of them. 

He s a i d a l o t of the independent guys haven't done them and the 

l a r g e r companies are doing the closed-loop system on i t . 

But we're going t o be using a l i n e r on i t , and we 

w i l l be t a k i n g t h a t l i n e r and di s p o s i n g o f i t . So we don't 

have a l o t of the r e p o r t s t h a t are going t o be necessary. So 

he s a i d we should be able t o approve i t p r e t t y q u i c k l y . I've 

got the guys ready t o go, and I'm j u s t w a i t i n g f o r them t o okay 

and t a l k t o Mike on i t . And h e ' l l go over i t w i t h D a r r e l l . 

D a r r e l l i s overseeing --

Q. Do you have approved p l u g g i n g permits from the 

BLM? 

A. Sorry, s i r ? 

Q. Do you have approved p l u g g i n g permits from the --
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A. Yeah, I do. Like I s a i d , those were approved 

on -- I submitted them on A p r i l 4 t h . They d i d n ' t approve them 

u n t i l May 8th on t h e r e . 

Q. And what's been the delay since May 8th? 

A. Since May 8 t h , t h a t ' s when we had Mr. Finney had 

t h a t t h i n g r o l l over on h i s f o o t and crushed i t and t h a t . And 

then what we d i d , I had t o get some pumpers and some f e l l o w s 

l i n e d up t o schedule them i n and t h a t . And we were t r y i n g t o 

keep i t w i t h i n budget. You know, these f o u r w e l l s are going t o 

cost over $50,000, and t h a t was J e f f r i e s ' r e s p o n s i b i l i t y on 

t h e r e . 

So I had t o get -- i t ' s not something t h a t I r e a l l y 

budgeted f o r . They only produce -- they don't produce t h a t 

much out t h e r e . You know, i t ' s the lease t h a t has the value t o 

them i n the f u t u r e . 

Q. What's the s t a t u s of the w e l l s now? Can you t e l l 

the Commission t h a t ? 

A. Yeah. There's a t o t a l of 17 w e l l s t h a t are on 

the p r o p e r t y t h e r e . Of the 17 w e l l s on here --

Q. Let's t u r n t o E x h i b i t 26. That has at l e a s t two 

w e l l s . 

A. A l l r i g h t . This E x h i b i t 26? 

Q. Yes. 

A. Oh, a l l r i g h t . 

Q. On the f i r s t page. 
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A. Let's s t a r t here w i t h the Amoco, what you're 

l o o k i n g at t h e r e , the Amoco we l l s ? 

Q. Yes. 

A. The Amoco w e l l i s a gas -- and produces o i l 

t h e r e . What happened here i s t h a t -- and I have the p o l i c e 

r e p o r t s here -- what occurred was the r e was vandalism out 

th e r e . From where the w e l l i s l o c a t e d t o where the e l e c t r i c a l 

hookup i s , i t ' s about maybe 3/4, 1/2 mi l e t o 3/4 m i l e . We had 

some f e l l o w s t h a t came out d u r i n g the evening. 

Where my lease i s l o c a t e d i s an i n t e r e s t i n g l o c a t i o n . 

I t ' s as you come out of A r t e s i a . I t ' s r i g h t next t o the 

e l e c t r i c a l p l a n t . I t ' s probably the f i r s t road t h a t somebody 

can make a l e f t - h a n d t u r n on, and i t ' s frequented a l o t by guys 

t h a t go out d r i n k i n g a t n i g h t . F urther down, there's more 

w e l l s and the people -- mine are the only w e l l s out t h e r e , you 

know, except f o r the b i g f e l l o w s . And they've got the b i g --

and they are covered w i t h the fences and the l i k e . So my w e l l s 

are k i n d of out t h e r e , exposed. And you can see about t h r e e 

miles i f anybody i s coming w i t h l i g h t s or anything. 

So I'm s p e c u l a t i n g , of course. But what they went 

out and d i d was they went out and cut about h a l f of the 3/4 

mil e of the e l e c t r i c a l w i r e , t o r e i t out. We went and we f i x e d 

i t back up t o get i t t o g e t h e r . We have the p o l i c e r e p o r t s . 

Then they came back, and they t o r e the r e s t of i t out on t h e r e . 

They dragged i t out. They dragged out our e l e c t r i c a l boxes, 
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and they've taken a couple of motors from us out t h e r e on t h a t 

w e l l . 

So we're r e p l a c i n g them again. We've got the --

they're t r e n c h i n g them r i g h t now as we speak today. T h e y ' l l 

have the w e l l set up probably by tomorrow or Friday on t h i s . 

We're p u t t i n g i n e l e c t r i c a l w i r e , almost a m i l e of i t out 

th e r e , new boxes and new motors and would l i k e t o get the w e l l 

going. The w e l l was producing before u n t i l somebody p u l l e d 

e v e r y t h i n g out. I t gets t o be a l i t t l e expensive t o get those 

t h i n g s back up. But we've got the resources and t h a t t o do i t . 

So t h a t ' s on the Amoco. I t ' s been vand a l i z e d two or thr e e 

times now on t h e r e . 

The next w e l l t h a t you have here i s the H a s t i e . I f I 

could take the Hastie 016, 018, 019 and 021, they're a l l i n the 

same -- the 016, the 018, the 019 and the 021. A l l of those 

w e l l s were hooked up w i t h a compressor out t h e r e . I t was a 

l a r g e compressor. I t was a new compressor t h a t I was buying, 

and when news came down t h a t our -- because a l l t h i s 

i n f o r m a t i o n was sent t o the banks and t h a t . News spreads out 

there p r e t t y q u i c k l y . 

And I was making payments on t h i s t h i n g before out 

the r e , and they thought J e f f r i e s was out t h e r e . The f e l l o w s I 

was making payments t o , they came and they grabbed the 

compressor, and they took i t home f o r f e a r t h a t we wouldn't pay 

the balance of i t on t h a t . I have since p a i d them back again. 
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They put the compressor back on. And as of l a s t week, 

Monday -- the week before -- those w e l l s are back i n t o 

p r o d u c t i o n . They're back on the compressor. We're b u i l d i n g 

them up and we're producing gas and o i l and the l i k e r i g h t now 

on those w e l l s . 

As f a r as the Hastie No. 017 here, a motor was taken 

o f f t h a t u n i t , and i t appears we're going t o probably have t o 

go down and b r i n g i n a workover r i g and pump o f f the water on 

t h a t . I brought i n Mr. Finny t o do the c o n s u l t i n g t o look a t 

the w e l l s and t h a t . I'm not an engineer. My pumper, he knows 

the w e l l s , but he doesn't know enough t o a c t u a l l y make those 

k i n d of d e t e r m i n a t i o n s . And Mr. Finny i s out t h e r e . He's --

t h i s would probably be a w e l l t h a t would go i n t o p r o d u c t i o n . 

We j u s t need t o get i t pumped o f f and t h a t . 

And as f a r as the Hastie No. 020, as we speak today, 

t h i s w e l l was a w e l l t h a t was i n v o l v e d i n the contamination 

p a r t of the o r i g i n a l t h i n g back i n 2007 before t h a t they had 

w i t h J e f f r i e s . When they cleaned up the contamination, they 

moved the pumpjack t o the side and t h a t , and they j u s t never 

put i t back over the w e l l . And t h a t i s being moved over. I t 

should be over on the w e l l t h i s a f t e r n o o n . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Who i s they? 

THE WITNESS: I'm sorry? 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Who i s they? 

THE WITNESS: I guess i t was probably J e f f r i e s . They 
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moved the -- he had a u n i t come i n and move the pumpjack over 

t o another l o c a t i o n on the lease so i t appeared t h e r e was no 

pumpjack on i t . They had t o clean. They had t o go i n and d i g 

about ten f e e t down f o r the contamination and t h a t . And we've 

got the pumpjack, and i t ' s going back over the hole today on 

t h e r e . So i t should be -- t h i s a f t e r n o o n , i t should be back up 

and, w i t h maybe some minor m o d i f i c a t i o n s , t h a t w e l l should be 

back i n t o p r o d u c t i o n as w e l l on t h a t . 

The Michaels, the State, the Michaels, t h a t ' s a s t a t e 

w e l l . That w e l l i s pumped. I t pumps a l i t t l e water and t h a t . 

We're going t o be going i n t h a t w e l l i n any case and reworking 

i t and t r y i n g t o produce more o i l on i t -- excuse me. More gas 

on i t . 

The two Muncy w e l l s . I've heard them r e f e r r e d here 

as one of them as a s t a t e w e l l . I b e l i e v e they're both f e d e r a l 

w e l l s . The Muncy -- the two Muncys — w e l l , l e t me take the 

two Muncys and the Scott i n j u s t a moment. 

The Saunders w e l l i s producing gas. I t has always 

produced gas. I t ' s produced gas f o r years. I never T&A'd i t . 

Nothing on i t . That's been one of the t h i n g s t h a t provided a 

l i t t l e cash t o us as income and t h a t . • The Saunders i s working. 

The Schneider w e l l i s a s t a t e w e l l . That w e l l was 

producing gas, and i t slowed down i n the year 2007. And I j u s t 

r e c e n t l y received a l e t t e r here regarding the increase f o r the 

bond t o put f o r the depth of the bond. And I contacted the 
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o f f i c e s , and Dorothy t o l d me t h a t I have t o go over -- she 

couldn't make t h a t d e t e r m i n a t i o n . Because I had p r o o f . I have 

graphs and t h a t t h a t the w e l l was producing i n the l a s t year. 

And so she s a i d t h a t I have t o t a l k t o M i k a l , the a t t o r n e y . I 

have t o t a l k t o her t o get approval so I don't have t o increase 

the bond. But the r e i s a bond on i t . But i f i t takes the 

bonding t o r e s o l v e i t , so be i t . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Kiz e r , one of the problems i s 

t h a t i f you're not r e p o r t i n g p r o d u c t i o n , i t comes across on our 

system as --

THE WITNESS: That I r e a l i z e , s i r . That I r e a l i z e . 

That I r e a l i z e . But I have the r e p o r t s and t h a t , so -- I 

r e a l i z e t h a t , of course. That's what I say, i f i t ' s something 

l i k e $1,700, I ' l l put the bond -- my issue i s t h a t do I send 

the money t o you guys? Or do I send i t -- i f we increase the 

bond at the bank, we increase i t w i t h the bank, r i g h t ? That 

was one of my questions I have f o r them. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: That's a question f o r your 

a t t o r n e y . 

THE WITNESS: W e l l , I ' l l take the t h r e e w e l l s t h a t 

I ' m a l i t t l e u n c e r t a i n about what t o do a t t h i s t i m e . Al though 

we've t a l k e d about i t and we've discussed i t , t h a t ' s the Muncy 

Federa l 001, the Muncy Federa l 002, and the S c o t t Federa l 001 . 

R i g h t now w i t h the p l u g g i n g and a l l the o the r t h i n g s t h a t are 

go ing on, i t ' s go ing t o take me 45 t o 60 days t o ge t out t he re 
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t o get the resources t o get these other three on t h e r e . We're 

l o o k i n g a t doing the same t h i n g , p u l l i n g rods, going through i t 

and pumping i t . Based on the costs t h a t we see t o a c t u a l l y 

p l u g a w e l l , t h a t we're running on these l i t t l e shallow w e l l s 

at 400 or 500 f e e t , these have a much -- they're much deeper. 

I t ' s going t o cost a heck of a l o t more. I ' d r a t h e r go i n and 

see i f we can p u l l i t and see i f we can have t h a t done. 

Once J e f f r i e s s a i d , "I'm not doing a n y t h i n g ; I am out 

of here completely," I d i d n ' t have any problem at a l l t o step 

up w i t h i t . I had s a i d t h a t -- when I had s t a r t e d speaking 

w i t h the a t t o r n e y here, I sent him weekly updates on what I was 

doing out t h e r e . You don't have those. They were i n the f i l e 

here. They.covered about f i v e or s i x weeks. I sent them 

updates r e g a r d i n g the s t a t u s of the BLM w i t h the l o c a t i n g the 

bond, what we were doing w i t h the C-115s. On each issue, I was 

g i v i n g them updates every week. I d i d n ' t get a response back. 

So I guess he was j u s t t a k i n g them i n t h e r e , whatever i t might 

be. I was t r y i n g t o l e t him know I was working on i t t o get i t 

done on t h e r e . 

And as I s a i d , I had not planned f o r t h i s s t u f f a t 

t h a t time i n February w i t h the resources. I have since g o t t e n 

them t o g e t h e r , the resources, t o get i t completed and t h a t , and 

t h a t ' s why we're moving forward as q u i c k l y as we can and t h a t . 

I was t r y i n g t o avoid t h i s s t u f f . I could have 

e a s i l y moved t h i s t h i n g t o another c o r p o r a t i o n a long time 
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before. And t h a t wasn't my p o i n t . That wasn't i t . When I sat 

there i n t h a t o f f i c e t h a t day w i t h Ms. O'Connor — and I don't 

know why she i s n ' t here t o t a l k , you know. She s a i d , "Tom, you 

don't want r e s p o n s i b i l i t y on t h i s . " 

I says, "No." 

And she goes, "Then, w e ' l l w r i t e i t " -- she was a 

very nice lady. I t ' s J e f f r i e s . She knew i t was J e f f r i e s out 

the r e . J e f f r i e s has a t e r r i b l e r e p u t a t i o n i n A r t e s i a on i t 

and, u n f o r t u n a t e l y , now i t r e f l e c t s on me on t h e r e . He's l e f t 

a l o t of accounts w i t h a l o t of the vendors, thousands and 

thousands of d o l l a r s . And r a t h e r than j u s t walking away from 

them, I've been paying the vendors, because I need t h e i r 

s e r v i c e s . So I'm having t o pay the vendors on t h e r e . So i t ' s 

g e t t i n g a l i t t l e expensive, but w e ' l l get i t done on t h e r e . 

So -- d i d you have any other questions f o r me? 

Q. You don't need a lawyer. Mr. Kizer, what's the 

l a t e s t communications t h a t you have had w i t h Mr. J e f f r i e s ? 

A. Oh. What we were -- I j u s t r e ceived the other 

day from Mrs. J e f f r i e s . I was under the impression t h a t I had 

to f i l e a C-103 w i t h a n o t i c e of i n t e n t t o p l u g and abandon — 

to plug the w e l l s out t h e r e . And then I c a l l e d Mike and Mike 

says no. 

Q. Mike who? 

A. Mike Bratcher out of the O i l Conservation 

D i v i s i o n down i n A r t e s i a . He s a i d , "No, Tom, you don't do i t . 
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The BLM i s r e s p o n s i b l e f o r t h a t . Communicate w i t h Mr. B l a k l e y 

and Mr. Amos, who I've been t a k i n g t o t h i s e n t i r e time. 

They're w i t h the BLM i n Carlsbad. 

But I had sent them an e-mail, and I r e ceived an 

e-mail back yesterday j u s t t e l l i n g me t o b a s i c a l l y -- we don't 

want -- Mr. J e f f r i e s i s not a v a i l a b l e . He won't -- he's out i n 

the f i e l d . He won't be a v a i l a b l e . You can't reach him by 

e-mail or fax or pigeon or anything e l s e . We don't want 

anything t o do w i t h you. We don't have anyt h i n g t o do w i t h C&D 

and t h a t . So they j u s t b a s i c a l l y wiped t h e i r hands p r e t t y much 

clean on i t . 

I t h i n k we are a l l p r e t t y much taken by Mr. J e f f r i e s . 

I know -- I don't know when Sonny came i n . Maybe i f Sonny was 

here, and he's the one t h a t wrote up the agreement, i t would 

have been a l i t t l e t i g h t e r . But when you s i t down, and you 

t e l l me t h a t the guy's going t o v e r b a l i z e i t , and she w r i t e s i t 

down t h a t he's going t o take personal r e s p o n s i b i l i t y , t h a t ' s an 

agreement. That's a l l I was l o o k i n g a t . 

I wasn't concerned -- the 2005 and t h a t s t u f f . I 

d i d n ' t know t h a t u n t i l i t was l a t e r . I seen he's t o l d 

everybody back t o 2005. But I d i d n ' t -- the year t h a t I was 

o p e r a t i n g the w e l l s . I was not o p e r a t i n g the w e l l s or 

anything. But, you know, he p u l l e d the wool over my eyes. He 

got the l o c a l vendors, everybody e l s e , and i n c l u d i n g the 

a t t o r n e y and these guys. These guys are good guys. 
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Q. And when you say good guys, who are you 

A. Yeah. They're good guys. I t a l k e d t o them, you 

know. 

Q. Mr. Sanchez and Mr. Swazo? 

A. They're good guys. They're doing t h e i r j o b . But 

I.thought t h a t w i t h O'Connor and -- she's a lawyer. I know 

t h i s o r g a n i z a t i o n can make any agreement they want. She t e l l s 

me the guy i s p e r s o n a l l y r e s p o n s i b l e , t h a t ' s a l l I needed. 

That's okay. And everybody seems t o be okay a t t h a t time. Now 

l a t e r he hasn't kept up w i t h h i s o b l i g a t i o n s and t h a t , and I'm 

stepping up t o take care of them. I've stepped up t o take care 

of them. 

Q. When w i l l you complete p l u g g i n g the wel l s ? 

A. Plugging the w e l l s -- a f t e r I t a l k w i t h Bratcher 

down there tomorrow, w e ' l l f i n d out. H e ' l l probably take a 

couple of days t o review t h a t . And w e ' l l get the p i t s --

they're going t o be moving cement and s t u f f out probably next 

week w i t h i t . We're going t o t r y t o get e v e r y t h i n g going t h i s 

week. But i t depends on what Michael i s going t o do on t h e r e . 

We b a s i c a l l y have t o j u s t go down and pour some cement. I t ' l l 

take us about one day per w e l l t o do i t , one day per w e l l . So 

i t ' s about f o u r days. So I w i l l have them done before the time 

p e r i o d t h a t Daniel had sai d before on t h e r e . 

Q. W i t h i n 30 days? 

A. Yeah. I t ' l l be w i t h i n 30 days. Yeah. And the 
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r e p o r t s , as soon as Debbie gets back from her v a c a t i o n and 

t h a t . I t h i n k she's worked w i t h you guys before on th e r e w i t h 

the r e p o r t s and t h a t . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Debbie being Ms. McKelvey. 

THE WITNESS: Ms. McKelvey. I'm s o r r y . But, one of 

the t h i n g s t h a t r e a l l y k i n d of -- you know, we're a t t h i s spot. 

I t o r i g i n a t e d back when Chris was th e r e and the two p a r t i e s 

t h a t made t h a t agreement t h a t they were t a l k i n g t h e r e . And 

Daniel read i t l a t e r , t h a t l i n e 26. I t ' s ambiguous. 

To me, p e r s o n a l l y , i t -- why would you even use the 

words " p e r s o n a l l y responsible"? Why not use C&D a l l the way 

through? I've got e-mails before and a f t e r -- i f we got them 

i n as evidence -- we d i d n ' t , you know — be f o r e . I ' d be happy 

t o show them. I've given them t o t h i s gentleman. Ev e r y t h i n g 

he's s a i d he d i d n ' t --

Q. Who's " t h i s gentleman." 

A. Oh, Sonny. He's received e v e r y t h i n g t h a t there 

i s . I've sent him e v e r y t h i n g so I don't t h i n k i t should be a 

s u r p r i s e . He's l i t i g a t i n g i t , so, t h a t ' s the way i t i s on 

th e r e . But I t h i n k we a l l got taken t o the cleaners on t h i s --

w i t h t h i s guy. 

So -- and I'm not walking away. I haven't -- I've 

never made an agreement w i t h the OCD or any o r g a n i z a t i o n here 

i n New Mexico t h a t I haven't kept my word w i t h -- on i t . And 

I've never walked away from any of the o b l i g a t i o n s . I d i d n ' t 
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run out, cut and run, go t r y t o change the c o r p o r a t i o n , t r y t o 

hide i t and e v e r y t h i n g else on t h e r e . 

Q. Going back t o the p l u g g i n g permits f o r f o u r 

w e l l s , i s th e r e a procedure f o r p l u g g i n g t h a t was given t o you 

by the BLM? 

A. Yeah. What we d i d i s -- the procedure w i t h the 

BLM -- we b a s i c a l l y t e l l them what we're going t o be doing and 

they approve i t . That's i n s i d e the permits here. We m o d i f i e d 

i t a l i t t l e b i t , changing the class of cement, t h a t type of 

t h i n g . ' And t h a t ' s i t . So, and then w i t h the State we have t o 

do the p i t s . 

Q. I n a l l your dealings w i t h f e d e r a l w e l l s , who have 

you d e a l t with? 

A. I've d e a l t w i t h two gentlemen w i t h the BLM. One 

i s a gentleman by the name of J e r r y Amos, who i s the f i e l d 

s u p e r v i s o r . And the other i s J e r r y B l a k e l y . 

Q. Did they d i r e c t you t o anyone f o r p l u g g i n g the 

w e l l s or --

A. Oh, yes. They've been very, very h e l p f u l . They 

r e f e r r e d me t o some gentlemen out i n Hobbs, a custom cement 

group t h e r e . He r e f e r r e d me t o Mr. Finny. Mr. Finny, i f 

you -- the Michael lease I got l a t e r . I purchased i t from him. 

So we went from 740 t o 800 acres. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: When you say " I g o t , " you mean C&D 

purchased i t a f t e r you purchased C&D? 
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THE WITNESS: Yeah. Chris went out and he made a 

trad e one day, and I had a cable t o o l workover r i g t h e r e t h a t I 

could be using, and he went out and he swapped i t w i t h some 

other guy. The guy's a r e a l piece of work. But he went out 

and he swapped i t , and I ended up w i t h 40 acres. And t h a t ' s 

the Michael lease. 

And Mr. D a r r e l l Finny was the gentleman who had t h a t 

lease b e f o r e . And the BLM recommended Mr. Finny as a gentleman 

whose word -- t h a t he keeps h i s word. He knows -- he has a 

very good knowledge of t h a t f i e l d and the shallow w e l l s . And 

he's r i g h t next t o me. And t h a t ' s -- and I've known D a r r e l l 

f o r the l a s t t h r e e years. And so h e ' l l come out and oversee a 

l o t of the d e t a i l s on i t . And then he was recommended by the 

BLM, the f e l l o w s t h e r e . And the other -- and then Michael has 

been very h e l p f u l as w e l l out t h e r e -- Bratcher and t h a t . He's 

been very h e l p f u l . 

Q. (By Mr. P a d i l l a ) : What k i n d of forms do you have 

t o f i l l out i n order t o d i g your p i t s ? 

A. I t ' s a C-144 form, and i t ' s a f o u r - or five-page 

form. And i t used t o be -- I guess they went out and j u s t 

dropped t h e i r d e b r i s . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: They used t o go out and d i g a 

hole. 

THE WITNESS: Dig a hole. And as of the l a s t few 

years, the OCD has been working on t r y i n g t o get t h i s . And 
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i t ' s been m o d i f i e d the l a s t few weeks. I n f a c t , l a s t week on 

Jul y 21st, you guys put out a new form on i t . The form came up 

and t h a t ' s the form t h a t I'm using, i s the one t h a t you had 

l a s t week. And Mike says keep your eye on i t , because they may 

change again. I don't know. They had them before and t h a t was 

one t h a t showed up on the i n t e r n e t . And he s a i d go ahead and 

use t h a t one. But the requirements on t h a t form f o r an 

independent doing j u s t a shallow w e l l of g e t t i n g a l l the 

hydrology r e p o r t s , t h i s r e p o r t , t h a t r e p o r t -- there's a number 

of r e p o r t s t h a t you have t o o b t a i n as an independent and t h a t . 

That's what I have been t r y i n g t o work on t o get 

together w i t h Mike and he says you may not need t h i s form. You 

may need t h i s one. Come by on Thursday or Friday and w e ' l l go 

over so we know what needs t o be done w i t h i t . Plus we do t h i s 

i n Pennsylvania. I have some w e l l s t h e r e . We do a s i m i l a r 

t h i n g t h e r e . So I brought a packet of t h a t i n f o r m a t i o n of what 

we do t h e r e t h a t might be u s e f u l t o him. He can maybe use 

i t -- not as a template or an y t h i n g -- but j u s t a d d i t i o n a l 

i n f o r m a t i o n . 

Q. (By Mr. P a d i l l a ) : You're not t r y i n g t o apply 

Pennsylvania rules? 

A. No, no, no, no, no. And they've l i s t e d 

e v e r y t h i n g t h a t ' s t h e r e . They t e l l us t o do a hydrology 

r e p o r t , but you go the Bureau of Hydrology, and they've never 

even heard o f your C-144 form. The f i r s t time the gentleman 
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saw i t was yesterday, Mr. Alan Cutty, on t h e r e . I sat w i t h him 

f o r a few hours. And I'm i n s t r u c t e d t o go on t o IWaters and t o 

f i g u r e out what w e l l s are around me. And he says you can't do 

i t on t h e i r system because the system doesn't do a radius 

check. 

Q. What k i n d of wells? 

A. Water w e l l s . Water w e l l s . He says you can't do 

i t . I t can't be done. And he gave me a l e t t e r t o take down t o 

Michael t o show him. To show him i t can't be done on the 

system. And I'm maybe the f i r s t guy. There may be other 

independents t h a t are going t o be coming t o you t o do t h i s , you 

know. And most of us are t r y i n g t o do i t on our own, t r y i n g t o 

keep down the costs and t h a t . So t h e r e i s n ' t a group around 

t h a t does t h e i r r e g u l a t o r y work, you know, w i t h the f i l i n g s and 

t h a t , other than the C-115. 

Q. Mr. Kiz e r , when d i d you know t h a t Mr. J e f f r i e s 

was not going t o comply w i t h anything? 

A. When he f i n a l l y t o l d me i n January. I t got t o 

the p o i n t where he j u s t f i n a l l y came out and t o l d me, " I don't 

have any money." 

He was having -- he s a i d he was having some other 

issues i n Kentucky and t h i s and t h a t . I don't know i f t h e r e i s 

any t r u t h t o them. But he sa i d , " I don't have any money t o do 

i t . " 

So I s a i d , "Well, you know, can you help me defray 
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some of the costs, because I've got t o get t h i s t h i n g going. 

I've got Sonny and h i s group behind me here. I've got t o do 

something." 

He says, "I'm not going t o " -- and now he's not 

t a k i n g any c a l l s or anything. 

Q. So i s i t f a i r t o say t h a t a f t e r you found out 

t h a t t h i s h e a r i n g had occurred i n January, you got on the b a l l 

t o do a l o t of th i n g s ? 

A. The moment I got the fax from Sonny, you know. 

When I s a i d -- I had no clue even what was going on, not a 

cl u e . They would have gone through and f o r f e i t e d even the 

banker, when I saw him, everybody seemed t o have known. My 

banker knew t h a t my bonds were being p u l l e d . I n f a c t , he's 

asked t h a t I remove myself from t h e i r bank, you know, because 

of t h a t t h i n g . I've sat down w i t h him. He may reconsider. 

But I can't p u l l the bonds or anything u n t i l t h i s matter i s 

cl e a r e d . So I ' l l move them over t o somebody e l s e . 

The f e l l o w s came out, and they p u l l e d the compressor 

o f f the l o t there because they d i d n ' t t h i n k we were going t o 

pay -- they f i g u r e d I was j u s t walking from the p r o j e c t . And, 

you know, I guess they were communicating w i t h J e f f r i e s d u r i n g 

the time. They could have picked up the phone and c a l l e d me. 

Somebody could have c a l l e d -- picked up a phone and says, "Hey, 

l i s t e n . This i s coming down here against J e f f r i e s on here." 

Q. The a p p l i c a t i o n before the Commission s t a t e s t h a t 
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you w i l l f u l l y , C&D Management Company, w i l l f u l l y and knowingly 

v i o l a t e d the r u l e s of the OCD, i n c l u d i n g the f a i l u r e t o pl u g 

and t h a t s o r t of t h i n g . 

A. I don't know about t h a t language, w i l l f u l l y and 

knowingly. Those are very -- those are very -- l e g a l , c r i m i n a l 

terms f o r w i l l f u l l y and knowingly doing something l i k e t h a t . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Really? I never n o t i c e d t h a t . 

THE WITNESS: Yeah. They're using c r i m i n a l language 

t h e r e . 

Q. (By Mr. P a d i l l a ) : What's your o p i n i o n as t o 

whether or not you w i l l f u l l y and knowingly --

A. As I s a i d , going back t o the date t h a t I sat i n 

there w i t h Ms. Cheryl, and t h a t ' s when she s a i d how e v e r y t h i n g 

was going t o go. This i s what w e ' l l do. Don't take personal 

r e s p o n s i b i l i t y . We'll do i t so J e f f r i e s gets i t and you can 

have a clean s l a t e . Go. Good l u c k . You go out and do your 

w e l l s . 

I've always t r i e d t o communicate w i t h everyone. I've 

been asked not t o . I've been excluded from the n e g o t i a t i o n s . 

They s a i d they won't t a l k t o me, f o r whatever reason -- the way 

i t was w i t h J e f f r i e s . I have t o assume t h a t they f i g u r e d t h a t 

J e f f r i e s was p e r s o n a l l y r e s p o n s i b l e . That's why they were 

t a l k i n g t o him a l l the time and not i n c l u d i n g me i n the mix, 

you know? 

I wasn't r e c e i v i n g anything about t h e i r d i s c u s s i o n s . 
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I d i d r e c e i v e t h i n g s from, you know, reg a r d i n g the C-115s and 

t h a t , you know, the v i o l a t i o n s out a t the w e l l s and t h a t . 

That's as f a r as t h a t was. Any of the other t h i n g s t h a t were 

going on i n t e r n a l l y t o make sure t h a t J e f f r i e s complied w i t h 

t h i s , no. I d i d n ' t r e c e i v e a n y t h i n g . And J e f f r i e s wouldn't 

have t o l d me anyway. 

Q. Was J e f f r i e s communicating t o you a n y t h i n g about 

stage of compliance w i t h --

A. He had s t a t e d t h a t -- I was on him q u i t e a b i t 

making sure t h a t he was g e t t i n g e v e r y t h i n g done. And he 

b a s i c a l l y s a i d get o f f my ass -- which wasn't what he s a i d --

Quit b o t h e r i n g me about i t . I'm t a k i n g care of i t w i t h 

everybody, and I'm g e t t i n g e v e r y t h i n g done. And the e-mails --

you would have r e c e i v e d copies and the l i k e . 

And then I had asked him, w e l l , l e t me ask you -- I 

asked J e f f r i e s -- he t a l k e d t o me when he s a i d he d i d n ' t have 

any money. And I asked him, w e l l , d i d you ever t e l l these guys 

t h a t -- why d i d n ' t you ever t e l l me about t h i s n o t i c e ? Why 

d i d n ' t you have those guys contact me? 

And he then s a i d -- he sent me an e-mail t h a t he had 

sent i n communication w i t h the a t t o r n e y , Sonny -- Mr. Swazo, 

excuse me -- t h a t he had t o l d him t h a t he's no longer 

r e s p o n s i b l e , t o c o n t a c t K i z e r . And t h i s i s on January 19th. 

On January 19th, there was an e-mail t h a t J e f f r i e s had s a i d --" 

he sent me a copy of i t -- i t s a i d communicate w i t h K i z e r . And 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 

500 4th S t r e e t , NW, S u i t e 105, Albuquerque, NM 87102 



145 

a l l somebody had t o do i s p i c k up the phone and t e l l me 

something. By the time I heard i t , i t was too l a t e . And 

t h a t ' s why we're here w i t h the de novo. 

And he says -- at t h a t time, he sa i d he had t o l d 

these people numerous times t h a t you got t o t a l k t o K i z e r . You 

got t o t a l k t o Kizer on these m a t t e r s . But I d i d n ' t hear from 

anyone on i t . 

Q. But t h a t was i n January? 

A. That was January 19th of 2008. I have the e-mail 

here. 

Q. When was the h e a r i n g i n t h i s case i n January? 

A. I t h i n k they had scheduled i t -- i t was the 23rd 

or something. I t h i n k they had i t on the 23rd. Hold on. 

They had o r i g i n a l l y scheduled i t , I t h i n k , i n 

e a r l y -- at another time, because of the 20-day p e r i o d , you 

guys moved i t back. So i t was heard on January 24th. And then 

t h e r e was an order here i n March 3rd and t h a t . 

MR. PADILLA: I don't t h i n k I have any more 

questions. Pass the witness. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Why don't we take a ten-minute 

break. When we come back, Mr. Swazo, you can have your 

cross-examination at t h a t time. 

[Recess taken from 2:32 p.m. t o 2:44 p.m., and 

testimony continued as f o l l o w s : ] 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Let's go back on the record. Let 
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the record r e f l e c t t h a t t h i s i s a c o n t i n u a t i o n of Case 

No. 14055, t h a t a l l t h r e e commissioners are present and have 

been present f o r the e n t i r e h e a r i n g . And I b e l i e v e t h a t , 

Mr. Swazo, you were about t o begin your cross-examination of 

Mr. Kizer ; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

MR. SWAZO: That's c o r r e c t , s i r . 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. SWAZO: 

Q. Mr. Kiz e r , I wanted t o c l a r i f y some of your 

testimony because I was a l i t t l e confused about i t . Let's 

s t a r t w i t h your a c q u i s i t i o n of C&D Management Company. I f I 

understand i t c o r r e c t l y , you were e s s e n t i a l l y on a payment 

p l a n . And once you p a i d o f f whatever amount you bought these 

w e l l s f o r , you would then assume ownership of the w e l l s ; i s 

t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. P a r t i a l l y , yes. 

Q. Could you e x p l a i n ? 

A. Okay. When I came out - - when I made the 

payment - - when I came out and saw the p r o p e r t y and t h a t , I pu t 

a down payment on i t . But I s a i d I d i d n ' t want t o take over 

the w e l l s because I d i d n ' t know e v e r y t h i n g t h a t was go ing on 

w i t h the w e l l s and t h a t . P lus , I d i d n ' t have the resources t o 

pay. 

And J e f f r i e s s a i d , "Tha t ' s f i n e . Make payments t o 

me. When you can, pay me. Jus t get me p a i d so I j u s t know 
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t h a t somebody's going t o be t a k i n g over," and t h a t . He s a i d he 

would continue t o manage the w e l l s . And he had two more w e l l s 

t h a t he wanted t o d r i l l on t h a t p r o p e r t y . He had agreements 

w i t h people, i n v e s t o r s , t o d r i l l two w e l l s , the Becky and the 

Freedom, and t h a t i f he got any revenue, any o i l p r o d u c t i o n 

from t h e r e , t h a t I wouldn't p a r t i c i p a t e i n i t . I wouldn't get 

a t h i n g from i t . And t h a t he would take whatever t h e r e was 

from i t and t h a t . 

So I s a i d , "That's f i n e . As long as you take care of 

i t i f they don't work out." 

He s a i d , "They're shallow w e l l s . I've got enough 

we've r a i s e d enough money on these w e l l s . " 

"Okay. That's f i n e . " And t h a t — i t was a -- t h a t 

was b a s i c a l l y i t . 

Now, when I had f i n i s h e d paying him o f f -- I had p a i d 

him o f f w e l l before I took the t i t l e on i t because the issues 

s t a r t e d t o a r i s e then. He had f i n i s h e d completing d r i l l i n g the 

w e l l s , and he declared them dry. And then the OCD got 

i n v o l v e d , and they s t a r t i n g b r i n g i n g up contamination issues, 

signage issues, a l l these other t h i n g s . 

And I s a i d , "I'm not t a k i n g a n y t h i n g over" -- he was 

s t i l l managing the p r o p e r t y , working i t and t h a t -- " u n t i l you 

get a l l these t h i n g s i n order," and t h a t . 

He s a i d , " I ' l l take f u l l r e s p o n s i b i l i t y . I ' l l take 

over, and I ' l l go ahead and I ' l l do t h a t . " 
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And t h a t was i t . And then i t was g e t t i n g towards the 

end of the year of 2006, and i t had been going on f o r some 

time. I thought we b e t t e r get something exchanged here because 

I don't know what J e f f r i e s i s up t o on t h e r e . And we found out 

t h a t -- I'm t r y i n g t o keep the c o r p o r a t i o n a l l the way through, 

and they had f a i l e d t o keep the c o r p o r a t i o n up i n Kentucky and 

the State of Kentucky d i s s o l v e d the c o r p o r a t i o n on t h e r e . So 

then I went back -- they went back and got r e i n s t a t e d , and we 

got back on t r a c k t o make the t r a n s f e r and t h a t . 

Q. When d i d you make your f i r s t payment? 

A. The f i r s t day I came out and saw him. 

Q. And when was t h a t ? 

A. I don't remember. I remember i t was hot. I t 

must have been i n 2005 sometime. I drove out from San Diego, 

and I walked through the p r o p e r t y , went over the wellhead, had 

a scotch and a steak and s a i d , "Okay. Here we go." 

You know, t h a t ' s p r e t t y much i t . You look around, 

there's other o i l w e l l s . You see t h a t there's p o t e n t i a l t h e r e 

f o r f u t u r e t h i n g s . Get these t h i n g s , whatever t h e r e i s , and 

l e t ' s move forward. 

Q. I t ' s hot most of the time down t h e r e . Do you 

remember what season i t was? 

A. I t h i n k i t was d u r i n g the summertime. 

Q. Summer of 2005? 

A. Yeah, 2005, yes. 
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Q. When d i d you make the l a s t payment? 

A. That l a s t payment came i n i t was pa i d . I 

could t e l l you, i t was p a i d t o the d r i l l e r because J e f f r i e s 

d i d n ' t have the money t o pay the d r i l l e r t o d r i l l those two 

w e l l s . And he asked me i f I could advance him the funds 

against the d r i l l e r . And I don't know what day they spudded 

those w e l l s out t h e r e , the Becky and the Freedom, but t h a t was 

the day t h a t -- when I gave him -- I s a i d , "Here's the money." 

And I gave the d r i l l e r the money because I b a s i c a l l y 

wanted him t o get those w e l l s up and over w i t h on the r e so we 

could s t a r t moving forward. So I gave the money t o the d r i l l e r 

because the d r i l l e r needed t o buy some new b i t s or do 

something. 

Q. Do you remember what day t h a t was? 

A. When was the w e l l spudded on those, then? I t 

must have been 2006. I don't know when they were spudded. 

Q. Which w e l l s are you t a l k i n g ? 

A. The Becky and the -- the Shearn Becky and the 

Freedom. I t had t o be i n l a t e 2006 or something. 

Well, here -- I don't know. I t May have been 2007. 

I t h i n k i t ' s 2007 here. That's when he was t r y i n g t o pl u g 

them, so i t was bef o r e t h a t , so i t was probably i n the year 

2006 sometime. 

Q. Do you r e c a l l what time? 

A. I t h i n k i t was i n f a l l . I r e c a l l the weather 
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being pleasant. 

Q. So what was your arrangement w i t h Mr. J e f f r i e s i n 

terms of -- what was your r o l e w i t h C&D Management u n t i l you 

a c t u a l l y made the f i n a l payment? 

A. I came i n w i t h C&D Management at the time -- when 

we were t a l k i n g , we were l o o k i n g a t developing the p r o p e r t y 

w i t h -- and one of the t h i n g s t h a t I was going t o be doing was 

t r y i n g t o r a i s e funds w i t h i n v e s t o r s and the l i k e w i t h i t . So 

t h a t ' s what I was t r y i n g t o get i n v o l v e d w i t h t o r a i s e funds t o 

get the p r o p e r t i e s going before i t t r a n s f e r r e d over t o b r i n g i n 

money t o d r i l l some w e l l s w i t h C&D. 

And I had t o l d Chris a t t h a t time t h a t because of the 

company I wanted t o t r y t o keep the company a l l the way 

through w i t h the o r i g i n a l C&D. 

Q. Did your r o l e change a f t e r you made the f i n a l 

payment? 

A. Did I what? 

Q. Did your r o l e a t C&D Management Company change --

A. A f t e r the f i n a l payment, you guys were i n v o l v e d . 

You guys s t a r t e d doing the compliance issues, and I was k i n d of 

moved aside a t t h a t time, because he was out th e r e t r y i n g t o 

f i n i s h the contamination, the signage issues and a l l those 

t h i n g s . And I was behind you guys t r y i n g t o get him t o get 

these t h i n g s completed t o get the w e l l s plugged and move on. 

And so I was j u s t k i n d of s i t t i n g on the side, 
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b a s i c a l l y w a i t i n g f o r him t o get out of the way and t h a t . And 

then you guys had the h e a r i n g , and he was j u s t out there the 

whole time. He d i d n ' t want t o give up the management. He was 

then, u n f o r t u n a t e l y f o r me, he was te r m i n a t e d from Young O i l as 

the v i c e p r e s i d e n t of the company, and he wanted the p r o p e r t y 

back. And I s a i d no. But he d i d n ' t have anything t o do, so he 

sa i d , " I ' l l keep e v e r y t h i n g . " 

And he had these issues t h a t he had t o take care o f , 

so he was b a s i c a l l y managing the p r o p e r t y on t h e r e . 

Q. So a f t e r the f i n a l p a y o f f , before you a c t u a l l y 

assumed f u l l ownership of these w e l l s , you were s i t t i n g on the 

side? 

A. B a s i c a l l y , I d i d n ' t get i n v o l v e d w i t h a l o t of 

t h i n g s . He was -- the man was v i c e p r e s i d e n t of an o i l 

company. He was running t h i n g s out i n -- he's p r e t t y 

knowledgeable of the f i e l d and the workings of i t . He was 

s t a r t i n g another company t o do o i l f i e l d s e r v i c e work. I was 

j u s t -- my background i s , you know, i s more i n business and 

sales, and he was more or less the guy t h a t was running the 

t h i n g s . And I was out there watching, b a s i c a l l y l e a r n i n g what 

was going on. But, no, I wasn't making any dec i s i o n s i n s o f a r 

as, you know, l e t ' s p u l l rods, t h i s and t h a t , no. 

Q. When d i d you assume f u l l ownership of C&D 

Management? 

A. The f u l l ownership, according t o the records t h a t 
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we had f i l e d , was on February 21st, 2007. 

Q. Now, I was confused about your testimony w i t h --

I d i d n ' t even r i g h t down h i s l a s t name -- but Joe w i t h the 

State Land O f f i c e ? 

A. Yeah. I f you go onto the State Land O f f i c e 

website, a t the bottom of the website, i t gives the name of the 

gentleman and i t ' s -- I have i t r i g h t here. And i f you had 

given permission t o have a l l these e x h i b i t s , you'd have i t a l l 

r i g h t t h e r e . Here. I t ' s down here a t the bottom of the web. 

Would you care t o see i t ? 

Q. No. I j u s t d i d not understand what you were 

t e s t i f y i n g t o . 

A. You d i d n ' t understand what I was t e s t i f y i n g to? 

Q. I t was a l i t t l e ambiguous. 

A. Okay. I ' l l c l a r i f y i t . When I spoke t o you i n 

March -- or when I came out here on the 12th, you s a i d you 

d i d n ' t have any other address f o r me -- or you d i d n ' t have t o 

give me n o t i c e . I t wasn't your r e s p o n s i b i l i t y t o look f o r 

people t o f i n d them. 

And I s a i d , "I'm r e a l l y not t h a t hard t o f i n d . You 

can go t o your s i t e t h e r e . I'm r i g h t t h e r e on your s i t e t h e r e . 

I'm on the paperwork t h a t you f i l e d . " 

You know, i f you're going t o take my bond, you're 

going t o take the p r o p e r t y and t h a t -- I s a i d I'm r i g h t on t h i s 

s t u f f here. And you k i n d of ignored i t . You k i n d of 
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deaf-eared me w i t h i t , and you r e l i e d on the other s t u f f . 

What I d i d was, I went back and I p u l l e d up the 

i n f o r m a t i o n , and I sent i t t o you. And here i t shows here on 

February 22, 2007, the Thomas Kizer C&D Management here w i t h 

the w e l l s t h a t ' s on here, the State Land O f f i c e data access 

here, t h a t the address i s i n Albuquerque on here. And t h a t was 

as of March 19th, okay? 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: March 19th of what year? 

THE WITNESS: Of 2008, t h i s year. Then what occurred 

here i s I happened t o go back on and I looked a t i t again on 

March 29th, the e x a c t l y same s i t e , and I see t h a t the l a s t 

m o d i f i c a t i o n t h a t somebody had entered -- nobody has touched 

t h i s s i t e since February 22nd of 2007. And then i t shows here 

i t was m o d i f i e d on March 7, 2008. But there's n o t h i n g changed 

on the e n t i r e s i t e . 

I n f a c t , when I showed you t h i s , Mr. Swazo, i n your 

o f f i c e , and I showed you my address, you s a i d you t r i e d t o 

contact i t and c a l l the phone number. And I s a i d , w e l l -- what 

are you t r y i n g -- and I t o l d you I t h i n k i t goes t o J e f f r i e s ' 

o l d number. And I s a i d were you t r y i n g t o c a l l me or send me 

notice? 

And t h a t was the ex t e n t of i t . I s a i d , "The address 

was here. You could send me n o t i c e . You're not going t o phone 

me the package." 

And t h a t was where you l e f t i t . But on March 2 9th, I 
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went back on the s i t e , and the s i t e had been m o d i f i e d t o show a 

date of March 7 t h . I f you were t o go on t h e r e and take a look 

at t h a t s i t e and j u s t go through i t , you would say, Oh, i t 

looks l i k e here the e f f e c t i v e date here -- they probably gave 

n o t i c e of the address here on March 7th and t h a t . That's what 

anybody would i n t e r p r e t and t h a t . This i s the only evidence 

t h a t I have t h a t the OCD or somebody knew of my address on 

th e r e . 

And t h a t ' s when I went t o the bottom of the website 

t h e r e , and i t says c a l l t o have Joe Mraz a t the SOL here, the 

State Land O f f i c e here. So I e-mailed him, and he s a i d he i s 

not the one t h a t changed i t . He s a i d Dorothy P h i l l i p s changed 

i t . And he sent me back an e-mail. And he s a i d t h a t she 

changed i t on the 7th of March. But here on the 19th, I s t i l l 

show the 2007 date, but they s a i d i t was changed on the 7th. 

And what concerned me a t t h a t time was t h a t I hadn't 

received any i n f o r m a t i o n whatsoever, and you weren't 

communicating w i t h me, and I'm sending you updates and the 

l i k e , and I'm s t i l l not g e t t i n g any feedback. I d i d n ' t get any 

feedback before. Nobody communicated w i t h me. I was 

accessible. I was t h e r e . Everybody e l e c t e d not t o me speak t o 

me f o r whatever reason. I don't know. I d i d n ' t know who t o 

speak t o . You guys were t a l k i n g w i t h J e f f r i e s and the l i k e on 

t h i s . 

I f you're going t o take my p r o p e r t y and my bonds and 
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1 the money and e v e r y t h i n g t h a t we have t h e r e , you know, you got 

2 t o a t l e a s t l e t me know. And you've got the bonds s i t t i n g 

3 r i g h t t h e r e w i t h the capture bonds w i t h , you know, 48 on. And 

4 you s a i d you don't have t o look f o r people. That's what you 

5 s a i d : " I don ' t have t o go look f o r you guys." 

6 Q. Well, l e t me ask you t h i s : What e x h i b i t are you 

7 e x a c t l y r e f e r r i n g t o i n your testimony, s i r ? 

8 A. On what? 

9 Q. You j u s t s a i d t h a t we had your address and you're 

10 r e f e r r i n g t o t h a t . You had --

11 A. I ' l l go r i g h t t o the e x h i b i t on here. Okay. 

12 This e x h i b i t . I can't show you. You guys can go on the 

13 website, and you can see what the changes t h a t are on i t there 

14 and the l i k e . Let's go back t o -- l e t ' s see which one you're 

15 p u l l i n g the bonds on. I t h i n k i t was your -- i s was one of the 

16 capture bonds t h a t you have t h a t you sent t o the bank down i n 

17 New Mexico. 

18 Q. You j u s t s a i d t h a t a Mr. Mraz --

19 A. That's the website. 

20 Q. Well, what -- you j u s t t e s t i f i e d about us having 

21 your address. Where are you g e t t i n g t h a t i n f o r m a t i o n from? 

22 What e x h i b i t ? 

23 A. You won't a l l o w my e x h i b i t i n . I'm t e l l i n g you 

24 the website. 

25 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: He's not the one who made the 
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1 d e c i s i o n on whether or not t o al l o w those e x h i b i t s . 

2 THE WITNESS: You can go d i r e c t l y t o the State Land 

3 database t h e r e . I n f a c t , you even had i t i n your o f f i c e t h a t 

4 day. And I've sent i t t o you. You say you don't know. Come 

5 on, I've sent t h i s t o you th r e e times on t h e r e . Hold on. I ' l l 

6 get you the other one here. This i s your --

7 Q - Just show me the documents, s i r , where you're 

8 saying t h a t the State Land O f f i c e had your address. That's a l l 

9 I•want. 

10 A. This one I've sent you th r e e times. 

11 Q • And so t h a t ' s the document t h a t you --

12 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Kiz e r , would you s i t down, 

13 please? 

14 THE WITNESS: Yes, s i r . 

15 Q. (By Mr. Swazo): This i s the document t h a t you 

16 c l a i m we had your address f o r . 

17 A. I don't know what you had. 

18 Q. Didn't you j u s t t e s t i f y , s i r , t h a t t h i s was your 

19 address, and we should have had your address based on t h i s 

20 i n f o r m a t i o n ? 

21 A. Am I saying t h a t ? 

22 Q - Yes . 

23 A. I don't know how your o r g a n i z a t i o n works 

24 i n t e r n a l l y . I do know t h i s : t h a t I was r e c e i v i n g l e t t e r s from 

25 everybody else from your o r g a n i z a t i o n a t t h a t 4801 address, 
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d a t i n g a l l the way back t o March and May of 2007. 

Q. But d i d n ' t you j u s t say t h a t we had your address 

based on t h i s i n f o r m a t i o n coming from t h i s website? 

A. You had i t t h a t day when I walked i n your o f f i c e . 

I was here the other day. You had i t i n your hand. 

Q. That i s not t r u e . 

A. Yes, i t i s . And — 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. Stop. He asks the 

questions; you answer, okay? 

Q. (By Mr. Swazo): This i s a yes-or-no questi o n . 

Are you saying t h a t we had your address based on t h i s 

i n f o r m a t i o n you had w i t h the State Land O f f i c e ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. A r e you aware t h a t we a r e n o t p a r t o f t h e S t a t e 

Land O f f i c e ? 

A . I d o n ' t know i f you a r e o r n o t . No, I d o n ' t . 

Q. D i d you s u b m i t a s u n d r y n o t i c e b a c k on A p r i l 

7 t h , 2008 , t o t h e OCD a s k i n g them t o change t h e a d d r e s s 

t o 4801? 

A . What d a t e i s t h a t ? 

Q. A p r i l 7 t h , 2008 . 

A . Can I see i t ? 

MR. SWAZO: May I approach? 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: You may. 

THE WITNESS: D i d I send t h i s t o who? 
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Q. (By Mr. Swazo): I s t h a t your handwriting? 

A. Did you ask me who I sent t h i s to? The Bureau of 

Land Management i n Carlsbad here. I sent i t t o the Bureau of 

Land Management here changing the address on the w e l l s . J e r r y 

B l a k l e y t o l d me I should sign t h i s and send t h i s i n . I sent 

t h i s i n w i t h the permits on the 7th when I f i n a l l y l o c a t e d my 

bond on t h e r e . That's i n c l u d i n g the bond number t h e r e . I sent 

t h i s w i t h the pe r m i t s t o him. I d i d n ' t send you anyth i n g l i k e 

t h i s . 

Can I have the e x h i b i t s back? 

Q. I put them r i g h t t h e r e . 

A. Thanks. 

Q. Wasn't t h i s document submitted t o the OCD A r t e s i a 

o f f i c e ? 

A. Not t o my knowledge, no. I t was a l l the per m i t s . 

There were f o u r p l u g g i n g permits t h a t were set up on A p r i l 7 t h , 

because on the 6th th e r e I received f i n a l l y the bond. Y o u ' l l 

see the bond numbers on th e r e , the f e d e r a l bond number, f o r the 

blanket bond. And we j u s t got i t the day befo r e . And I had 

sent i t t o -- I had sent i t down t h e r e . That's an o r i g i n a l 

stamp by the Bureau of Land Management i n the r i g h t - h a n d 

corner. I don't have t h a t stamp. 

MR. SWAZO: May I approach? 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: You may, s i r . 

Q. (By Mr. Swazo): I s n ' t i t stamped a t the top by 
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the OCD i n A r t e s i a ? 

A. Yeah, but i t ' s down here. Bureau of Land 

Management, Carlsbad, A p r i l 26. I don't know what day you got 

i t . You got i t the 29th. 

Q. But i t was re c e i v e d by OCD, c o r r e c t ? 

A. I don't know i f you guys r e c e i v e d i t . I t wasn't 

from me. I d i d n ' t send i t t o you. 

Q. I s n ' t t h a t your -- t h i s i s the document t h a t you 

submitted, though, w i t h the BLM. 

A. I submitted i t t o the BLM. They may have 

forwarded i t t o you. I d i d n ' t send you copies, I don't t h i n k , 

of the permits e i t h e r . I t o l d you t h a t I had f i l e d them. 

Q. Mr. K i z e r , you're an a t t o r n e y by prof e s s i o n ? 

A. I was a l i c e n s e d a t t o r n e y i n C a l i f o r n i a , but I 

haven't p r a c t i c e d i n 15, 16 years. 

Q. I s the Saunders No. 012 c u r r e n t l y on OCD approved 

TA status? 

A. According t o what Daniel t e s t i f i e d --

Q. No. I don't want t o --

A. I've never done anything, TA'd or done anything 

w i t h t h a t w e l l . There's never been any papers t h a t we've f i l e d 

on t h a t w e l l . 

Q. I s i t t r u e t h a t the Muncy Federal No. 001 i s not 

on OCD TA s t a t u s at t h i s p o i n t , c o r r e c t ? 

A. Correct. 
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Q. You've a c t u a l l y known about seeing these 

r e p o r t i n g issues since at l e a s t March of 2007; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yeah. Right around t h e r e . I t was i n March of 

2007, yes. 

Q. And t h i s conference t h a t occurred between OCD and 

Chris J e f f r i e s , weren't you present d u r i n g the telephone 

conference? 

A. Nope. Daniel t e s t i f i e d t h a t a f t e r i t was done, 

i t was Michael Bratcher, i t was him and O'Connor. I was not 

present d u r i n g i t . 

Q. This i s a l e t t e r t h a t you sent me on --

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Swazo, do you want t o approach 

the witness? 

MR. SWAZO: May I approach? 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: You may. 

Q. (By Mr. Swazo): I s t h i s a l e t t e r t h a t you sent 

me on March 30th, 2008? 

A. Uh-huh. 

Q. That's a yes? 

A. Yeah. 

Q. I'm s o r r y . Just f o r the record. 

A. I sent you l i k e f i v e o f them, yeah. Updates, 

yes . 

Q. Well, i n t h i s l e t t e r , d i d n ' t you s t a t e t h a t , " I 

was present d u r i n g the telephone conference"? 
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A. Yes, i n March. That was w i t h -- t h a t ' s when I 

sat w i t h O'Connor i n her o f f i c e , and she brought me up, and she 

was t a l k i n g t o J e f f r i e s on the phone. Daniel was t h e r e , but 

then he had l e f t . I t wasn't l i k e -- they were t a l k i n g w i t h 

each other p r e p a r i n g the paperwork on what they were doing 

because they had j u s t dismissed the case downstairs and 

O'Connor j u s t made the appearance f o r i t . And she knew I was 

here and she s a i d , "Why don't you j u s t come up here w h i l e I'm 

doing my paperwork and w e ' l l t a l k . " 

And t h a t ' s when he got J e f f r i e s on the phone and 

s t a r t e d going through i t . And then she s a i d , "You j u s t bought 

t h i s here?" She sa i d , "You don't want t o accept r e s p o n s i b i l i t y 

f o r t h i s . " 

And I s a i d , "No." 

And she s a i d , "Okay. Then w e ' l l have him take i t on 

personal r e s p o n s i b i l i t y . " 

Q. And how long have you had your e-mail address? 

A. Oilfreedom? 

Q. Yes. 

A. I would say since 2005. 

Q. And you're t e s t i f y i n g t h a t you d i d not receive 

t h i s e-mail from Cheryl O'Connor? 

A. I received t h a t e-mail. I rec e i v e d the t e x t of 

i t , but th e r e was no attachment. I n f a c t , here's the e-mail 

t h a t I have t h a t I j u s t -- Carol sent back t o me here --
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Cheryl. I had sent her an e-mail here on A p r i l 12th asking her 

f o r the t h i n g s here. 

And she s a i d , "I'm no longer w i t h OCD" -- t h i s i s on 

the 12th -- "but I ' l l forward you the e-mail t o Mr. Sanchez," 

on t h e r e , "Compliance Enforcement Manager and G a i l MacQuesten, 

a t t o r n e y . H o p e f u l l y they can PDF a copy of the signed 

agreement. But i t must go through a process a t the D i v i s i o n . 

So a photocopy may be what i s sent. As I s t i l l work w i t h the 

State, I w i l l s t i l l have the same address. Got your note," and 

then t h e r e was some personal t h i n g s t h a t I had sent a --

because I went down t o Hobbs, and I sent her a post c a r d from 

down t h e r e and the l i k e . And t h a t was as of A p r i l 12th. 

And she d i d send me -- I d i d get t h a t e-mail, but 

ther e was no attachment -- there was no attachment on i t . And 

t h a t ' s why I went back, and I asked her. And t h i s was the 

e-mail from her sending back t o me. She s a i d c o n t a c t David on 

i t -- I mean, Daniel, on i t . 

Q. Did you ever contact Daniel? 

A. I don't r e c a l l i f I d i d . We've never r e a l l y 

spoken except on two occasions. Once was when I met him w i t h 

Cheryl. The other time was when I met him w i t h you here on 

March 12, 2008. 

Q. Did you ever contact Gail? 

A. No. 

Q. Were you aware t h a t Agreed Compliance Orders are 
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a v a i l a b l e on the OCD online'website? 

A. I wasn't aware of i t a t t h a t time, I don't t h i n k , 

no. No. I d i d n ' t -- I had the d i a l - u p t h i n g and t h i n g took --

no. I saw t h i s s t u f f t h a t was t h e r e , but I cou l d n ' t get access 

t o the s t u f f . Just l i k e you can't get access t o a l o t o f your 

logs on t h e r e . I j u s t couldn't get access t o i t and t h a t . 

Q. So when d i d you become aware t h a t t h a t was the 

case t h a t these records -- these orders were a v a i l a b l e t o the 

pu b l i c ? 

A. Oh, I don't know. During the process of -- what 

records? Your records, or the w e l l records, whose records? 

Q. This Agreed Compliance Order t h a t you contacted 

Cheryl O'Connor on, d i d you, once you became aware t h a t they 

were o n l i n e -- w e l l , when d i d you become t h a t they were 

a v a i l a b l e o n l i n e ? 

A. I don't t h i n k i t was -- I don't t h i n k I got i t 

o n l i n e . I t h i n k I may have reached you, Daniel, and maybe he 

dropped a copy i n the ma i l or something. But I ended up w i t h a 

copy of i t . I d i d contact someone. I d i d n ' t j u s t ignore i t . 

I d i d get a copy of i t , but i t wasn't when i t was s a i d i t was 

done. I t was probably i n l a t e A p r i l or something. I wasn't 

p u t t i n g my head i n the sand, i f t h a t ' s what you're saying. I 

took i t , and I saw what i t s a i d . 

Q. And the person who a c t u a l l y t o l d you not t o get 

in v o l v e d , wasn't t h a t Chris? 
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A. Not t o get involved? Yeah. You guys were having 

a telephone conference, and I asked -- I t r i e d t o get i n v o l v e d 

on t h a t d i s c u s s i o n because I knew t h a t i t would probably have 

some bearing -- I wanted t o f i n d out what was r e a l l y going on. 

And he t o l d me t o j u s t stay the out of e v e r y t h i n g and t h a t i t 

was h i s r e s p o n s i b i l i t y and i f I wanted t o get i n and mess --

s t a r t r o c k i n g t h i s baby, I could and he would j u s t walk. 

Q. And you t e s t i f i e d t h a t he a c t u a l l y t o l d you t o 

stay the F out of i t ? 

A. I have the e-mail from him. Yes. 

Q. And he had a c t u a l l y t o l d you t h i s at va r i o u s 

times? 

A. Well, I was pushing. As I say, I was behind you 

guys t o get a l l t h i s s t u f f done, the contamination issues, the 

signage issues. I wanted t o get i n v o l v e d w i t h the p r o p e r t y . 

And i f he d i d n ' t do these t h i n g s , I r e a l i z e d you guys weren't 

going t o permit me t o do anyth i n g else or t o develop the f i e l d 

anymore i f a l l these issues were o u t s t a n d i n g , you know, out 

th e r e . So I was pushing him t o t r y t o get e v e r y t h i n g done. 

And he t o l d me t h a t he had funds. I t r i e d t o get him 

more funds t o do the t h i n g s . He d i d a few of the t h i n g s , but 

he d i d n ' t f o l l o w up on g e t t i n g , you know, the w e l l s plugged. 

And he was, you know, t a r d y w i t h the other items t h e r e . The 

g i r l -- a d m i t t e d l y , Debbie, she had a l o t of s t u f f t o catch up 

w i t h . The records t h a t Chris and they had, t h a t they had 
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brought i n from the Matthews who owned i t before and t h a t , i t 

was k i n d of hard f o r him, t o put them a l l t o g e t h e r , I guess, 

from e v e r y t h i n g t h a t he had t h e r e . 

Q. So the answer i s yes, t h a t he d i d t e l l you on 

variou s occasions? He d i d t e l l you --

A. Oh, yeah. He says I've done t h i s , I haven't done 

t h a t , we're g e t t i n g the w e l l s plugged on here. 

Here's what he s a i d -- he s a i d , "Damn i t , Tom, c h i l l 

out. This was done s e v e r a l days ago." This i s regarding 

l o g g i n g on f o r changing the address and t h a t . This i s on March 

10th of 2007, okay? " I got a conference c a l l on Monday at 

10 a.m., Cen t r a l Time, between me and the OCD about the f i n e s 

charged t o me t h a t I am re s p o n s i b l e f o r and a plan of a c t i o n 

t h a t I am s o l e l y r e s p o n s i b l e f o r . And i f you want t o c a l l on 

i t and get i n on i t , I guess maybe t h a t ' s your r i g h t . But you 

have t h i n g s t h a t are more d i f f i c u l t or severe" -- or 

something -- "then i t ' s your baby t o rock, not mine. I w i l l 

get every s i n g l e damn t h i n g done and i n compliance." And he 

says up here, "Even f o r the approval here before you make any 

ac t i o n s , so get the F o f f my back." 

That was days before you guys had your -- r i g h t 

before you had your conference w i t h him. 

Q. Did you f e e l t h a t you were g e t t i n g the runaround 

from Mr. J e f f r i e s ? 

A. Well, you know, I don't know a l o t of o i l guys. 
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I know some of them. Some of them are p r e t t y s t r a i g h t f o r w a r d . 

I thought t h a t he was t a k i n g care of the t h i n g s on t h a t . I was 

g i v i n g him funds, and t h i n g s were moving -- they appeared t o be 

moving forward and t h a t , u n t i l he d i d n ' t do the t h i n g s and the 

compliance -- t h a t h e aring was coming up on t h a t . 

And then he s a i d , " I ' l l get i t o f f the docket and 

I ' l l make an agreement w i t h them. I'm a Kentucky o i l guy. I 

know the o i l and gas business. You don't. Stay out of i t . I 

know what I'm doing here." 

I s a i d , "Just get the t h i n g s done. Get them done and 

then t h a t ' s i t . " 

And he s a i d , " I ' l l get i t o f f the docket so there 

i s n ' t -- I ' l l make an agreement w i t h them." 

But I showed up anyway. Just l i k e I showed up f o r 

every other meeting here, but nobody -- t h i s i s the f i r s t time 

I've been able t o t a l k , so. 

Q. At t h i s time, you were purchasing the w e l l s , 

r i g h t ? 

A. Yeah. I n 2007 we were j u s t -- a t t h a t time, we 

were j u s t going through the t h i n g . I j u s t went -- on the 8th 

e v e r y t h i n g went through i n Wyoming at the same time you guys 

were having t h a t hearing. A l l those t h i n g s were going on at 

the same time -- the t r a n s f e r , I had j u s t got the shares and 

e v e r y t h i n g . We were j u s t moving over a t t h a t time on t h e r e . 

And t h a t ' s why, when we spoke w i t h Cheryl, she s a i d , 
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"The guy j u s t s o l d , he s o l d i t t o him on t h e r e . The sale j u s t 

went through. You don't want any p a r t of t h i s , do you?" 

I says, "No." 

"Don't take any p a r t of i t , " she s a i d . " I ' l l w r i t e 

i t up t h a t he's p e r s o n a l l y r e s p o n s i b l e . " 

"That's f i n e . " 

You know, she does arm's l e n g t h t r a n s a c t i o n s , she can 

do what she l i k e d . 

Q. Well, i f you were not g e t t i n g any cooperation 

from Mr. J e f f r i e s , and t h i s was a c t u a l l y p r o p e r t y t h a t you were 

a c q u i r i n g , how come you d i d n ' t i n j e c t y o u r s e l f more i n t o the 

operation? 

A. I d i d show up. I showed up f o r your hearing. I 

d i d show up f o r the hearing. I d i d know when the conference 

c a l l was going on. I couldn't get i n on i t . I d i d n ' t even 

know who t o speak t o . So I d i d n ' t know who t o con t a c t . You 

guys were r i g h t i n the middle of the n e g o t i a t i o n s . What am I 

going t o jump i n and say -- I d i d n ' t even know how t o approach 

i t a t t h a t time. 

He had s a i d he has t h i n g s under c o n t r o l . Maybe the 

guy w i l l take care of i t i f he's got i t under c o n t r o l and t h a t . 

A f t e r he came out of t h a t conference, he s a i d , "I'm t a k i n g care 

of t h i s s t u f f . We've got i t . I t ' s j u s t got t o be put on 

paper, and you don't have t o show up a t t h i s h e a r i n g . " 

I s a i d , "I'm coming anyway. I'm coming i n March of 
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2007, anyway." 

That's when -- I wanted t o show up and i n t r o d u c e 

myself. I t was never my i n t e n t i o n t o s t a r t an a d v e r s a r i a l 

r e l a t i o n s h i p w i t h t h i s o r g a n i z a t i o n -- or any of them. I know 

you guys are k i n d of p a r t n e r s , q u a s i - p a r t n e r s , w i t h us t o get 

ev e r y t h i n g done. And t h a t ' s a l l I'm t r y i n g t o do. I know we 

have t o work t o g e t h e r . Do you t h i n k I wanted t o s t a r t out l i k e 

t h a t ? I t ' s not my p e r s o n a l i t y , b e l i e v e me, t o be a d v e r s a r i a l 

w i t h people and the l i k e . You don't know me t h a t w e l l , Sonny. 

I'm not r e a l l y t h a t way. 

And I r e a l l y wanted t o get -- I don't know when you 

came i n . I don't know when you f i r s t p i c ked up t h i s f i l e or i f 

you guys even had a chance t o even t a l k t o Cheryl about i t . I 

don't know when you picked up the f i l e , b ut when you picked i t 

up there had t o be other people t h a t had looked at t h i s t h i n g 

before up t h e r e . 

Everybody j u s t missed i t . You guys missed i t . I t 

was r i g h t t h e r e i n f r o n t of you. She t o l d me he was t a k i n g 

personal r e s p o n s i b i l i t y . She's the a t t o r n e y f o r the OCD. I 

got t o go w i t h t h a t . That's i t . That's a l l I needed t o know. 

I'm okay. 

Q. And you had s a i d d u r i n g your testimony you d i d 

not know why Cheryl was not here. Did you c a l l her as a 

witness? 

A. No, I d i d n ' t . 
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Q. And you also t e s t i f i e d t h a t you d i d not know why 

Chris J e f f r i e s wasn't here. Did you c a l l him as a witness? 

A. I've t r i e d t o t e l l him t o come on out. He won't 

show up. He wouldn't come out i n March. He wouldn't come 

out -- do you know how many times he's promised t o come out t o 

these w e l l s out here t o do, you know, t o s i t and meet? I must 

have counted 10, 15 times t h a t he's never shown up out t h e r e . 

And as f a r as Cheryl, I t h i n k she has -- I don't know, maybe 

you guys have a t t o r n e y / c l i e n t p r i v i l e g e . I don't know. But I 

do know t h a t ' s what she wrote. That's what she t o l d me. I f 

she was here, I don't t h i n k she would say anything d i f f e r e n t , 

you know? 

Q. Did you t r y t o subpoena Mr. J e f f r i e s ? 

A. No. We d i d n ' t t r y t o subpoena Mr. J e f f r i e s . I 

would l i k e t o address one t h i n g . You asked me a questi o n 

before, and I d i d n ' t get t o answer because I --

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. J e f f r i e s , your a t t o r n e y w i l l 

have a chance t o --

THE WITNESS: Oh, I'm s o r r y . You c a l l e d me 

Mr. J e f f r i e s . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I'm s o r r y . Mr. Ki z e r . 

THE WITNESS: Yes. I t ' s h u r t f u l . That's h u r t f u l . 

Q. (By Mr. Swazo): Mr. Kizer, you've been aware of 

Rule 115 -- or 1115, the r e p o r t i n g r u l e -- i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. I'm aware of i t , yes. I can't t e l l you e x a c t l y 
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the date. 

Q. Well, you're aware t h a t OCD r u l e s r e q u i r e 

operators t o f i l e monthly p r o d u c t i o n r e p o r t s ; i s n ' t t h a t true? 

A. Yep. I'm aware of t h a t . 

Q. And haven't you been aware of t h a t since at l e a s t 

March of 2007? 

A. And they were f i l i n g r e p o r t s i n March of 2007. 

You guys had i n your requirement t h a t J e f f r i e s f i l e them. And 

t h a t ' s when he s t a r t e d f i l i n g them. 

Q. Now, you s a i d you took ownership on February 

21st, 2007? 

A. From -- i t was t r a n s f e r r e d over February 21st 

t o March 8th, when i t went i n t o Wyoming and they made the 

approvals and t h a t . So i t was r i g h t d u r i n g t h a t p e r i o d . 

Q. Well, i f you've known about the r u l e and you took 

over ownership on February 21, 2007, why haven't you f i l e d any 

re p o r t s u n t i l r e c e n t l y ? 

A. Well, I can t e l l you. The order t h a t you guys 

had against -- or the agreement t h a t you had w i t h J e f f r i e s , he 

was f i l i n g the r e p o r t s . He was f i l i n g them. That was one of 

the requirements t h a t you guys had. So he was f i l i n g the 

r e p o r t s . I had no reason not t o t h i n k t h a t he wasn't u n t i l --

when I had spoken t o him, he was working w i t h McKelvey. I t was 

the f i r s t I had heard t h a t she -- and now i t makes sense. She 

d i d say t h a t J e f f r i e s wrote her some bad checks. And I t h i n k 
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t h a t ' s why she stopped and came back on and t h a t , and t h a t ' s 

why she had me pay a l l up f r o n t . 

So I d i d go back and get them i n order because I 

r e a l i z e d t h a t J e f f r i e s hadn't brought them up-to-date w i t h you 

people completely. He d i d do i t p a r t i a l l y . He d i d do i t 

p a r t i a l l y , and then I brought them up a l l the way t o 2007, back 

from 2006. I don't know why he stopped. He may have run out 

of money. She stopped. Something went on w i t h money t h e r e . 

Q. But the -- i s n ' t i t t r u e t h a t the Agreed 

Compliance Order i s f o r r e p o r t s t h a t were d e l i n q u e n t up u n t i l 

t h a t p o i n t ? 

A. What order? 

Q. The Agreed Compliance Order. The one t h a t we've 

been t a l k i n g about w i t h regards --

A. Up t o t h a t p o i n t i n time t h a t you had, t h a t ' s 

what he was doing. That's what he s a i d he was doing. 

Q. But the order was f o r r e p o r t s t h a t were 

d e l i n q u e n t up u n t i l t h a t p e r i o d of time; i s n ' t t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. I don't f o l l o w . 

Q. The Agreed Compliance Order was f o r past 

v i o l a t i o n s ; i s n ' t t h a t true? 

A. I haven't gone through i t t h a t c a r e f u l l y . You 

guys have a l o t of v i o l a t i o n s i n t h e r e . You had t h i n g s i n 

ther e t h a t were already done, t h a t he was -- t h a t you weren't 

h o l d i n g him r e s p o n s i b i l e f o r . You want me t o read through i t ? 
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Q. Well, my p o i n t i s t h i s : Did you expect Chris 

J e f f r i e s t o f i l e r e p o r t s f o r as long as C&D Management operated 

these w e l l s ? 

A. Forever? 

Q. Yes. 

A. Oh, no. Not a t a l l . 

Q. Well, when were you going t o become r e s p o n s i b l e 

and s t a r t f i l i n g the r e p o r t s a f t e r you assumed ownership of C&D 

Corporation? 

A. This year. He was going t o b r i n g them up-to-date 

and e v e r y t h i n g he had out t h e r e . I f i g u r e d he was going t o be 

keeping h a n d l i n g them out t h e r e u n t i l he got a l l of h i s s t u f f 

done. He t o l d me he was working on i t ; he's g e t t i n g e v e r y t h i n g 

done out t h e r e . 

And then f i n a l l y he j u s t s a i d , " I don't have the 

money. I'm washing my hands of i t , " and t h a t ' s i t . 

Q. And w i t h regards t o E x h i b i t No. 26, paragraph 13, 

which appears on page 3, the ACO s t a t e s t h a t Chris J e f f r i e s was 

assuming r e s p o n s i b i l i t y , not t h a t OCD was h o l d i n g him 

res p o n s i b l e f o r t h a t r e p o r t i n g period? 

A. You're asking me a l e g a l q u e stion, i s n ' t i t ? 

You're asking me t o comment on t h a t ? 

Q. Well, I t h i n k --

A. What I'm doing i s I'm t a k i n g i t i n t o context also 

what she t o l d me at t h a t time when I was s i t t i n g w i t h Cheryl. 
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And how she d r a f t e d i t i s how she d r a f t e d i t . I can t e l l you 

e x a c t l y what she t o l d me, okay? And t h a t she was going t o be 

ho l d i n g him p e r s o n a l l y responsible f o r i t . He was v o l u n t e e r i n g 

f o r i t : " I ' l l be p e r s o n a l l y r e s p o n s i b l e . 

I have e-mails from even before where he s a i d he 

would be p e r s o n a l l y responsible f o r i t . And he must have t o l d 

you guys as w e l l . You know, he must have t o l d you guys as 

w e l l . He t o l d everybody e l s e . He communicated w i t h Cheryl, 

you know? You weren't t h e r e . Were you t h e r e d u r i n g the 

d r a f t i n g ? I know I'm not supposed t o ask questions, but you 

were th e r e d u r i n g the d r a f t i n g of i t . 

Q. And i s n ' t i t t r u e t h a t the OCD has t r i e d s e v e r a l 

times t o get you t o come i n t o compliance w i t h the r e p o r t i n g 

requirements of OCD Rule 1115 since 2007? 

A. Yeah. And he has -- they d i d give him the 

r e p o r t s . He d i d n ' t b r i n g them a l l the way up-to-date. And 

when I heard t h a t , I immediately d i d i t . 

Q. But I'm also t a l k i n g about r e p o r t s t h a t occurred 

on your watch? 

A. Yeah. For example, r i g h t now, they're not i n . 

So I take f u l l r e s p o n s i b i l i t y f o r t h a t . 

Q. But the OCD d i d send you l e t t e r s t o the e f f e c t --

A. Oh, yeah. I've never denied t h a t . I've never 

denied t h a t . 

Q. And you d i d n ' t f i l e those r e p o r t s by the 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 

500 4th Street, NW, Suite 105, Albuquerque, NM 87102 



174 

c o r r e c t i v e due date i n those l e t t e r s ; i s n ' t t h a t t r ue? 

A. You're going t o have t o go by example, by the 

c o r r e c t i v e date, yeah. They're t a r d y . They're t a r d y , okay? 

She has the ones up t o 2007. Now the ones f o r 2008 are t a r d y . 

They're l a t e . They're overdue. 

Q. How many years d i d you p r a c t i c e as an attorney? 

A. Probably about maybe seven, e i g h t ? E i g h t , yeah. 

Q. And what was your primary p r a c t i c e ? 

A. I worked i n C a l i f o r n i a , and I d i d some 

entertainment law, personal i n j u r y . I worked on some 

i n t e r n a t i o n a l law and the l i k e . 

Q. Did you ever sue corp o r a t i o n s ? 

A. Me? 

Q. Yes. 

A. No. I d i d n ' t sue anybody. I g e n e r a l l y t r i e d t o 

ne g o t i a t e and t r y t o work deals out. I'm not a b i g suer. I 

t r y t o get everybody t o t r y t o avoid suing each other and t r y 

to work something out. No. 

Q. Are you aware t h a t personal s e r v i c e can be 

e f f e c t e d on a company o f f i c i a l , a corporate o f f i c i a l ? 

A. Okay. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Kizer, would you c l a r i f y t h a t 

answer, "Okay"? 

THE WITNESS: Well, he's making a statement. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Are you aware? 
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THE WITNESS: Yes. I am aware, yes. I don't t h i n k 

you ever served me w i t h anything, though. I've shown up f o r 

e v e r y t h i n g you guys have had, and you haven't ever served me. 

So, come on. I mean, I come knocking at your door asking f o r 

t h i s s t u f f . You d i d n ' t have t o serve me. You j u s t t e l l me; 

I ' l l j u s t show up. 

Q. (By Mr. Swazo): What i s your i n t e n t i o n w i t h 

regards t o the Muncy? Because the Agreed Compliance Order w i t h 

C&D Management s t a t e s t h a t t h a t was one of f i v e w e l l s t h a t C&D 

intended t o p l u g . I n a d d i t i o n , there's been subsequent 

correspondence w i t h C&D Management where they s t i l l i n d i c a t e 

t h a t you f o l k s i n t e n d t o p l u g t h a t w e l l . 

A. That was one t h a t -- I see you guys have i t i n 

your other orders i n here. You don't have the Muncy i n c l u d e d 

i n t h a t . And t h a t ' s why I d i d n ' t permit i t t h i s time t o go 

through w i t h i t . And i n speaking w i t h the f e l l o w s out t h e r e , 

the Muncy i s a f e d e r a l w e l l . I t ' s r i g h t next t o the Muncy 002. 

There's two of them out t h e r e . 

What we're going t o do i s p u l l the s t u f f out and go 

back i n and t r y t o rework the w e l l i n t h e r e . H i s t o r i c a l l y , i t 

has p r o d u c t i o n on i t , and r e c e n t l y i t j u s t went f l a t . I t a l k e d 

t o Mr. Mathews, the p r i o r owner of the lease, and he s a i d t h a t 

the w e l l , you know, i t can produce. I t ' s not any g r e a t 

numbers, but i t would probably be cheaper t o get i t producing 

than i t i s t o go through and p l u g i t . And so I w i l l need a 
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l i t t l e time w i t h t h a t one because t h a t ' s probably the l a s t one. 

The other ones I can get on a l o t f a s t e r . That one w i l l 

p robably take a l i t t l e b i t of work w i t h i t . Because i t ' l l be 

the Scott and the two Muncys. 

Q. And w i t h regard t o these l e t t e r s of v i o l a t i o n 

t h a t Mr. Amos sent you i n May and June of 2007, you t e s t i f i e d 

t h a t you d i d not respond t o those l e t t e r s o f v i o l a t i o n u n t i l 

February 29th when you sent him t h a t w r i t t e n response. 

A. Right. I d i d n ' t respond -- I had t a l k e d t o 

J e f f r i e s about t h i s b e f o r e . These were the w e l l s t h a t J e f f r i e s 

was working on out t h e r e . And I j u s t had them on my desk, and 

I was going t o f i l e them and I j u s t p u l l e d out -- I sat down 

and wrote a l e t t e r before I f i l e d them. I thought i t was going 

t o be p r e t t y much the -- J e f f r e y was out t h e r e working on them 

and I j u s t thought t o get something on f i l e , and t h a t was i t . 

And then you came down w i t h your avalanche t h a t you had t h e r e . 

But as f a r as the Schneider and the Michael, the 

Michael i s working on t h e r e , and we took over t h a t i n 2006 or 

something. And the Schneider, we're going t o p u l l the rods and 

e v e r y t h i n g and pump o f f the water. We'll get t h a t back i n t o 

p r o d u c t i o n . 

Q. Now, w i t h regard t o the Amoco No. 001, the Hastie 

No. 016, the Hastie No. 017, the Hastie No. 020, when we met, 

you never mentioned the vandalism, the f a c t t h a t the compressor 

had been taken, the f a c t t h a t t here had been no pumpjack on the 
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No. 02 0. When d i d these events happen? 

A. I have a p o l i c e r e p o r t here when they happened 

here, and I could also supply you w i t h photographs on here. I 

have a p o l i c e r e p o r t from the s h e r i f f . I t ' s happened on more 

than one occasion on t h e r e . And we thought we'd get -- we 

put -- when something l i k e t h a t happens, I j u s t got t o f i x i t , 

r i g h t ? I don't know i f I have t o r e p o r t i t . Somebody s t e a l s 

the motor, I j u s t put the motor back on. 

I t ' s o c c u r r i n g more than -- i t ' s r e o c c u r r i n g . And 

what i t i s , i s they are -- and Dani e l , you've probably heard --

they're s t e a l i n g the wir e out the r e f o r the copper t h a t ' s i n 

i t . A l o t of people w i t h the -- they have a meth problem out 

th e r e , and a l o t of those guys are bur n i n g i t and s e l l i n g the 

copper on i t . And when you've got a mile of i t -- they took 

pieces of i t t o cut i t because i t was too much. And then they 

had t o b r i n g i n a t r u c k on t h e r e . 

And they're h i t t i n g us a l l the time. And the motors 

go out t h e r e . And what do I do? The policemen out t h e r e , they 

j u s t r e c e n t l y had r e p o r t s i n the A r t e s i a newspaper, and they 

r e p o r t them i n a l i t t l e b l o g t h e r e . But they've j u s t got t o be 

replaced. I j u s t got t o replace them. And i t ' s not cheap t o 

get a l l t h a t w i r e . And the motors and e v e r y t h i n g else go and 

the e l e c t r i c a l boxes and t h a t . As I s a i d , I had t o get 

together the resources. And now w i t h the p l u g g i n g of the w e l l s 

and then paying back the back s t u f f t h a t J e f f r i e s hasn't p a i d 
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t o the l o c a l vendors, which i s almost $75,000 t o those f e l l o w s . 

Q. When Chris t o l d you t h a t he was not going t o 

comply w i t h the OCD i n January, d i d you con t a c t OCD a t t h a t 

,time? 

A. Did I con t a c t you? No. I d i d n ' t say he wasn't 

going t o comply. He t o l d me he d i d n ' t have any money. He s a i d 

he d i d n ' t have any money, and he was going t o walk from i t . I 

d i d n ' t know t h a t you guys had t h i s order t h a t was going on. He 

sa i d he d i d n ' t have any money. And t h a t ' s when I s t a r t e d 

l o o k i n g around -- w e l l , I've got t o r a i s e money t o get t h i s 

s t u f f moving forward. And, you know, you j u s t don't show up 

w i t h 50,000, 60,000 o v e r n i g h t -- a t l e a s t I don't. 

Q. Did you enter i n t o a c o n t r a c t w i t h Debbie 

McKelvey? 

A. Yes, I d i d . 

Q. When d i d you enter i n t o t h a t c o n t r a c t ? 

A. I t h i n k i t was i n March, I t h i n k . I have a copy 

of i t i f you want t o enter i t as evidence, but you won't l e t 

me. I t h i n k i t ' s i n my box. I sent you a copy of t h a t . I 

sent you updates every week. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: The c o n t r a c t was w i t h who? 

THE WITNESS: Debbie McKelvey f o r the f i l i n g of the 

r e p o r t s . 

Q. (By Mr. Swazo): When d i d you c o r r e c t the PRC 

i n f o r m a t i o n concern ing C&D's c o r p o r a t i o n ? 
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A. PRC? 

Q. Rig h t . When d i d you pro v i d e the --

A. What's the acronym f o r the PRC? 

Q. Pub l i c --

A. Oh, department of c o r p o r a t i o n s . The way we --

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: C l a r i f y t h a t . Not our "department 

of c o r p o r a t i o n s , " the Pub l i c Regulatory Commission. 

Q. (By Mr. Swazo): Well, PRC stands f o r Public 

Regulation Commission? 

A. Uh-huh. 

Q. When d i d you update the c o r p o r a t i o n i n f o r m a t i o n 

f o r C&D Management? 

A. Okay. When we took over -- when I t r i e d t o get 

the t r a n s i t i o n going through, the o f f i c e r s were the only t h i n g 

to change. The company was t o remain the same so t h a t I could 

s t i l l operate here i n New Mexico under C&D and Freedom Ventures 

and keep the same corporate number and the o r i g i n a t i o n date of 

2004 and e v e r y t h i n g and t h a t . 

When my a t t o r n e y , Bagley, got the i n f o r m a t i o n and 

t h a t , we b a s i c a l l y sent i t i n t o the department of c o r p o r a t i o n s . 

And i t has been l i k e p u l l i n g t e e t h t o get them t o f i n a l l y 

accept what we were doing. And, f i n a l l y -- I sent you copies, 

11 pages of them -- f i n a l l y , Mr. Bagley went through and he 

gave them the s t a t u t e s and the laws and r u l e s i n terms of 

moving the c o r p o r a t i o n over. And then f i n a l l y they came 
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through and gave us a form t h a t was t o be completed. And they 

had t o speak w i t h one of the f o l k s t h e r e a t the PRC other than 

one of the c l e r k s and t h a t . And they f i n a l l y accepted i t . 

But we d i d go through q u i t e a -- f o r months, o f f and 

on, t r y i n g t o get the t h i n g accepted on t h e r e w i t h the new 

i n f o r m a t i o n t o change i t . And they s a i d they would not change 

i t . They won't change the i n f o r m a t i o n on i t even i f i t was the 

other company on i t . But I d i d not want t o open up a new 

company here t o operate i n New Mexico because I had -- you 

know, I had the corporate number. I had the consistency of the 

f o u r years and the l i k e . I wanted t o show l o n g e v i t y and the 

l i k e when i t comes t o a p p l y i n g f o r any c r e d i t w i t h any of the 

vendors or a n y t h i n g of t h a t n ature. So i t was tough. 

Q. So when e x a c t l y d i d you s t a r t the process f o r 

t h a t ? 

A. We s t a r t e d i t back i n 2007. A t t o r n e y Bagley 

s t a r t e d a l l t h a t . And he k i n d of came on i t , and then he k i n d 

of l e f t i t and s a i d l e t ' s w a i t f o r the answer. And by the time 

he wrote a -- I s t a r t e d out w r i t i n g a l e t t e r because I was 

t r y i n g t o save on some l e g a l fees. And they kept throwing the 

t h i n g out and then f i n a l l y he got f u r t h e r i n v o l v e d . And 

f i n a l l y , I j u s t had t o engage him completely t o make c e r t a i n 

t h a t i t wasn't, you know, t h a t somebody would take n o t i c e on 

i t . 

And f i n a l l y , he put t o g e t h e r almost a b r i e f f o r them 
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on why the company -- how a company can move from one s t a t e t o 

another and remain the same. But I t o l d -- even when I saw 

Cheryl what we were doing and why I was doing i t . 

Like I say, I d i d n ' t come i n t o t h i s s t a t e t o cause 

t r o u b l e . I d i d n ' t want t o have the appearance of being a 

carpetbagger, you know? 

Q. And when was t h a t completed? 

A. That was j u s t completed back here i n -- we 

f i n a l l y got the t h i n g here i n -- I have i t r i g h t here. I t was 

A p r i l . I t f i n a l l y went through. Here i t i s . P u b l i c 

Regulations here, o f f i c e s here, C&D Management, same corporate 

number, same e v e r y t h i n g here. They have here the date A p r i l 

16. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Of what year? 

THE WITNESS: This year, s i r . A p r i l 16th of t h i s 

year, s i r . 

MR. SWAZO: I d o n ' t have any f u r t h e r q u e s t i o n s . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: M r . P a d i l l a ? 

MR. PADILLA: I have no q u e s t i o n s . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commiss ione r B a i l e y ? 

EXAMINATION 

BY COMMISSIONER BAILEY: 

Q. You made y o u r l a s t payment on t h i s company 

F e b r u a r y 2 1 s t , 2007 . A t t h a t p o i n t , d i d M r . J e f f r i e s become 

y o u r employee? 
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A. No. I d i d not make a payment. I made i t before 

t h a t time. I made the payment back i n -- i t was i n , a c t u a l l y , 

2006. And what we t r i e d t o do i s -- you can go on -- you f o l k s 

can go on the Kentucky website f o r C&D Management, and y o u ' l l 

see what occurred where they d i s s o l v e d t h a t c o r p o r a t i o n there 

because the J e f f r i e s d i d n ' t keep i t up-to-date. 

And t h a t ' s the one we were t r y i n g t o t r a n s f e r over. 

And I t o l d him I'm not going t o buy a darned t h i n g because you 

l e t the c o r p o r a t i o n lapse. And my whole i n t e n t i o n was t o t r y 

t o keep i t through. So I had already p a i d him on t h a t . I had 

already p a i d him back i n 2006 on t h a t , but I wouldn't take i t 

because I couldn't get the stock. 

Q. So at what p o i n t d i d Mr. J e f f r i e s become an 

employee? 

A. He's never been an employee. 

Q. You had no b u s i n e s s / f i n a n c i a l r e l a t i o n s h i p w i t h 

him? 

A. F i n a n c i a l ? No. He was t a k i n g -- no. 

Q. So he d i d a l l of the f i l i n g s and a l l of the 

appearances and a l l of the l e t t e r s back and f o r t h out of the 

goodness of h i s heart? 

A. No, no, no. He had the o b l i g a t i o n t o do them. 

I t was h i s r e s p o n s i b i l i t y based on 2007. I wasn't asking him 

t o do an y t h i n g new. I t was these t h i n g s t h a t he had before 

t h a t he had t o get done. 
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Q. But the f i l i n g s f o r l a t e r e p o r t i n g 

A. Uh-huh. 

Q. -- according t o the agreement, was f o r d e l i n q u e n t 

f i l i n g s , 

A. Uh-huh. 

Q. E v e r y t h i n g from t h a t date forward became your 

r e s p o n s i b i l i t y , then, as owner of the company? 

A. Yeah. What he was going t o do then, he s a i d 

because he had h i r e d Debbie at t h a t time t h a t he was going t o 

keep her going w i t h i t -- on i t . She charges l i k e $200 a 

month, I t h i n k , and he had overpaid her, I t h i n k . And t h a t was 

j u s t a c r e d i t a gainst i t . I t was going t o go on and he said 

w e ' l l go ahead and j u s t keep -- the pumper was j u s t sending the 

paperwork t o her. So i t wasn't t h a t much t h a t was on t h e r e . 

And I had also advanced him some money t o get some other t h i n g s 

done as w e l l t h e r e , you know, some minor t h i n g s out i n the 

f i e l d . 

Q. So you had p a i d him a c e r t a i n amount of money? 

A. No. I d i d n ' t pay him. I p a i d the vendors. I 

was paying the vendors on t h a t . There were -- the f o l k s l&W, 

they had t o b r i n g a dozer out. He d i d n ' t have the money f o r 

i t . I had p a i d f o r t h a t . These are the t h i n g s t h a t he was 

g e t t i n g done. So he j u s t took over t h a t . No, he was not p a i d 

a s a l a r y or anything, commissions, or anything on i t . He took 

on t h a t r e s p o n s i b i l i t y t o get t h a t done. He took i t on before 
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and he had -- t r u t h be t o l d , he r a i s e d a l o t of money on these 

w e l l s t h a t he was d r i l l i n g , those two w e l l s t h a t he ended up --

Q. On your property? 

A. What? 

Q. On your property? 

A. Yeah. I t was s t i l l h i s then. He r a i s e d a l o t of 

money from i n v e s t o r s on t h a t . And when we d r i l l e d those 

w e l l s -- so he had a p r e t t y -- he had a l o t of money. He o n l y 

d r i l l e d them down t o 600 f e e t . But he r a i s e d a heck of a l o t 

more 

Q. You were the l e g a l owner? 

A. Sorry? 

Q. You were the l e g a l owner? 

A. No, I was not. Not back when he d r i l l e d the 

w e l l s 

Q. That was before? 

A. That was before. 

Q. 2000 --

A. 2007. Yeah. That was before. He d r i l l e d them 

back i n 2006. 

Q. Okay. But you advanced him money t o pay o f f --

A. Well, I was coming i n t o check -- he was running 

s h o r t w i t h cash, you know. So I advanced him some of the money 

to get some of the t h i n g s done on t h a t . 

Q. Okay. For a l l of h i s appearances and work w i t h 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 

500 4th Street, NW, Suite 105, Albuquerque, NM 87102 



185 

OCD and paper f i l i n g s , you d i d not g i v e him any money f o r t h a t ? 

A. Commissioner, he brought t h i s on h i m s e l f . He was 

c l e a r i n g up h i s own messes. I d i d n ' t -- these t h i n g s t h a t 

e x i s t e d -- O'Connor r e a l i z e d i t -- these t h i n g s t h a t predated 

my purchase on here. These t h i n g s predated my purchase. When 

I purchased i t , he was j u s t c l e a r i n g them up on t h e r e . 

Q. Do you have any c o n t i n u i n g business r e l a t i o n s h i p 

w i t h Mr. J e f f r i e s ? 

A. No, ma'am. 

Q. Why d i d you not r e f u t e some of the r e c i t a t i o n s i n 

t h i s agreement --

A. That's a very good q u e s t i o n . 

Q. -- which are now coming through? 

A. When I had received on t h e r e -- a t t h a t time, 

when I had seen the -- when I f i n a l l y got a copy and read over 

i t and t h a t , I saw what she wrote. I n f a c t , I even wrote on my 

own personal copy "wrong" on the date. But I see t h a t J e f f r i e s 

had wrote other t h i n g s as w e l l t h a t s a i d t h a t I took over i n 

2005. I t was h i s statement t h a t he had w i t h i t . I d i d n ' t 

w r i t e i t out t o you f o l k s or any t h i n g . He knew t h a t i t wasn't 

the date. I knew t h a t i t wasn't the date. 

Q. But he was not the agency i n charge of e n f o r c i n g 

a c t i o n . 

A. Sorry? 

Q. He was not the agency i n charge of e n f o r c i n g 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 

500 4th. S t r e e t , NW, Su i t e 105, Albuquerque, NM 87102 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

186 

a c t i o n . 

A. I thought the agency was pu r s u i n g Mr. J e f f r i e s 

p e r s o n a l l y , not me. Not C&D. That's the way I i n t e r p r e t e d i t . 

That's why when I sat down w i t h O'Connor, she t o l d me t h a t ' s 

the way we're going t o do i t . I t predates. We'll be pursuing 

him and he's agreed. And t h a t ' s i t . I d i d n ' t have anything t o 

do w i t h i t -- on i t . And a t t h a t time, i t wasn't r e a l l y 

a d v e r s a r i a l at a l l . I t wasn't a s i t u a t i o n where -- you know, 

he was going t o be g e t t i n g the t h i n g s done. And t h a t was i t . 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: I have no more questions. 

THE WITNESS: I n r e t r o s p e c t — i n r e t r o s p e c t , yes. I 

should have -- something should have been done at t h a t time 

w i t h i t . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. There are no more 

questions. Commissioner Olson? 

EXAMINATION 

BY COMMISSIONER OLSON: 

Q. Mr. K i z e r , j u s t as a f o l l o w - u p on t h a t , you're 

saying t h a t Mr. J e f f r i e s wasn't employed, but he was s t i l l an 

o f f i c e r of C&D Management a f t e r February of 2007? 

A. No. He was not an o f f i c e r . You can -- i f you 

would l i k e , you can go onto the Kentucky website and look i t 

up. They were no longer o f f i c e r s as of February 21st. I was 

the p r e s i d e n t of the company then -- not Darla J e f f r i e s , nor 

Chris J e f f r i e s , and they have not been since then. 
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Q. Well, I see on the e x h i b i t s t h a t OCD had 

presented, OCD E x h i b i t 30 and 33, and 35, t h a t Darla J e f f r i e s 

was s i g n i n g on March 12th of 2007 as p r e s i d e n t of C&D 

Management. 

A. What e x h i b i t i s t h a t , s i r ? 

Q. As an example, j u s t look at OCD E x h i b i t No. 30. 

A. Okay. 

Q. So how i s she s i g n i n g as p r e s i d e n t of the company 

when you had taken 

A. I don't know why she's s i g n i n g as p r e s i d e n t of 

the company on t h e r e . I t ' s signed here on March 12th of 2007. 

She marked i t as p r e s i d e n t . This i s when she was t r y i n g t o get 

the w e l l s plugged. I t h i n k they d i d i t j u s t t o expedite t h i n g s 

as a matter of -- j u s t t o expedite them f o r themselves t h e r e . 

I d i d n ' t see these t h i n g s . Just as the correspondence t h a t 

they have t o the J e f f r i e s i n Kentucky where they address them 

as v i c e p r e s i d e n t and p r e s i d e n t , I never saw those. 

Q. But I guess you're saying as of 

February 21st, 2007, you were the sole o f f i c e r of C&D --

A. I was the sole o f f i c e r t h a t came i n and then the 

stock at t h a t time, and then i t was t r a n s f e r r e d -- e v e r y t h i n g 

was t r a n s f e r r e d i n Wyoming on --

Q. And then i f I look the at the OCD E x h i b i t 

No. 26 --

A. Uh-huh. 
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Q. -- which i s the Agreed Compliance Order, t h a t was 

signed on March 26th o f 2007, and i t was signed by J e f f r i e s as 

v i c e p r e s i d e n t . So how could he be s i g n i n g as v i c e p r e s i d e n t 

i f you are the sole o f f i c e r of the company? 

A. Well, I t h i n k t h a t would be more of a question 

f o r him. He d i d n ' t have a u t h o r i t y t o s i g n . He d i d n ' t have 

a u t h o r i t y t o s i g n . 

Q. But I guess you had t e s t i f i e d e a r l i e r t h a t you 

had received t h i s t h i n g maybe i n A p r i l of 2007? 

A. Uh-huh. 

Q. And i f he i s not an o f f i c e r of the company, then 

he has no a u t h o r i t y t o s i g n , a u t h o r i z e t h i s , why d i d n ' t you 

r a i s e t h i s issue? 

A. Well, as I s t a t e d , i t was an o v e r s i g h t on my 

p a r t . I had understood i t t o be t h a t he was p e r s o n a l l y being 

r e s p o n s i b l e f o r these. And I l e f t i t p r e t t y much a t t h a t . 

E v e r y t h i n g was moving forward on t h a t . I agreed t h a t i t 

wasn't. 

Q. Well, I guess, d i d you read t h i s agreed order? 

A. Yes. I may have pursued i t , but I don't know i f 

I a c t u a l l y went i n t o the d e t a i l t h a t i s was on i t , you know. 

Q. And d i d you n o t i c e --

A. This order was between J e f f r i e s and t h i s group 

here. I wasn't p r i v y t o i t when they were w r i t i n g i t . And now 

you're asking me i f I read i t and e v e r y t h i n g , and you're 
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h o l d i n g me re s p o n s i b l e when the a t t o r n e y of t h i s agency i s the 

one t h a t wrote i t and she prepared i t , and she sat th e r e w i t h 

the f e l l o w s w i t h i t . And I'm now being h e l d r e s p o n s i b l e t o 

what they agreed t o on here. 

Q. Well, we can look a t page 8 of t h a t e x h i b i t , and 

i f you look a t the acceptance of t h i s , t h i s was an agreement 

between -- i t wasn't an agreement between Mr. J e f f r i e s and the 

D i v i s i o n . I t was an agreement between C&D Management and the 

Di v i s i o n ? 

A. Uh-huh. 

Q. And C&D Management i s the operator of these 

w e l l s ; i s n ' t t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. C&D was the operator of them, yes, s i r . 

Q. And t h i s agreement, would you agree, i s between 

C&D Management and the D i v i s i o n ; i s n ' t t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. I t ' s w i t h -- as Ms. O'Connor s a i d , the v i o l a t i o n s 

predated on here, the v i o l a t i o n s were predated and t h a t was 

a t t r i b u t a b l e t o him, p e r s o n a l l y . He was t a k i n g them on 

p e r s o n a l l y on t h e r e . 

Q. But i f I look at page 8, the acceptance i s 

between C&D Management and the D i v i s i o n ; i s n ' t t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. That's what i t says t h e r e . That's what they 

completed on t h e r e . 

Q. So i f you had taken over the company on February 

21st 2007, why d i d n ' t you n o t i f y the OCD of t h a t pursuant t o 
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D i v i s i o n r u l e s ? 

A. We d i d . That was i n February 22nd. That's why 

you had t h i s on here. We n o t i f i e d somebody on here on 

2/22/2007 here. Now, i f you're t e l l i n g me i t was the wrong 

people, t h a t may be the case. But, you know, I was r e c e i v i n g 

l e t t e r s s h o r t l y a f t e r t h a t , so somebody had i t . Was there 

o f f i c i a l f i l i n g on there? I don't r e c a l l doing t h a t myself on 

the r e , no. 

Q. Well, I guess I'm j u s t confused on t h i s s i g n a t u r e 

issue. I f Mr. J e f f r i e s was no longer an o f f i c e r of the 

company, how could he be s i g n i n g a n y t h i n g on behal f of C&D 

Management? 

A. He had no a u t h o r i t y t o do so, s i r , no. Not from 

me. 

Q. But you had rec e i v e d t h i s and you r a i s e d no 

o b j e c t i o n s t o him s i g n i n g t h i s on b e h a l f of C&D Management. 

A. I d i d n ' t have a w r i t t e n o b j e c t i o n t o i t , no, s i r , 

t h a t was on t h e r e . I had read i t d i f f e r e n t l y t h a t he was 

p e r s o n a l l y -- he had p e r s o n a l l y -- on i t . 

Q. But you would agree t h a t C&D Management i s the 

operator of these w e l l s ? 

A. C&D has been the operator since the day. I'm not 

d i s p u t i n g t h a t . We t r i e d t o c a r r y the c o r p o r a t i o n a l l the way 

through on i t . As I say, i f I was going t o walk on the t h i n g , 

you know, I would t r y t o change the c o r p o r a t i o n and e v e r y t h i n g 
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e l s e . That was not my i n t e n t i o n , s i r . I haven't done t h a t . 

I've shown up f o r a l l the hearings and e v e r y t h i n g t h a t I could 

w i t h i t on here. And I was o p e r a t i n g w i t h what O'Connor had 

t o l d me. I d i d not a n t i c i p a t e s i t t i n g here i n f r o n t of you 

people. Not at a l l , ever. 

Q. Well, i t sounds l i k e what you r e a l l y have i s a 

dis p u t e amongst y o u r s e l f and former o f f i c e r s of the company, 

then. The company hasn't changed. Just the o f f i c e r s have 

changed. 

A. Well, the o f f i c e r s -- yeah, but using the name 

unauthorized, yes. But also i t does say personal 

r e s p o n s i b i l i t y i n t h a t agreement. And she sat th e r e --

O'Connor even v e r b a l i z e d i t t o me, then she memorialized i t . 

Q. Again, but I ' l l p o i n t out, i f you look at the 

agreement, the agreement i s between C&D Management and the 

D i v i s i o n . I t i s not between C&D Management and Mr. J e f f r i e s . 

A. Okay. I'm s o r r y . I d i d n ' t d r a f t i t . And I 

don't know i f they would have even changed i t even i f I had. 

I f I had walked i n here today and s a i d -- t o l d you -- t h a t 

Mr. J e f f r i e s was t a k i n g on r e s p o n s i b i l i t y w i t h no paperwork, 

you wouldn't have b e l i e v e d me. Now, i f I had walked i n here 

and s a i d Mr. J e f f r i e s was t a k i n g on r e s p o n s i b i l i t y w i t h h i s 

e-mails between ourselves, you wouldn't have b e l i e v e d me. 

But she wrote i t t h e r e . She's the one t h a t wrote 

t h a t . And you take t h a t i n c o n j u n c t i o n -- and these gentlemen 
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l a t e r , they communicated d i r e c t l y w i t h J e f f r i e s on what was 

being done. Not w i t h me. 

Q. Again, I guess maybe --

A. I agree w i t h you t h e r e . I'm not d i s p u t i n g i t . 

I t ' s j u s t the issue and t h a t . 

Q. So t o make sure I understand what, I guess, the 

purpose of why you're here. You're not here c o n t e s t i n g the 

a l l e g a t i o n s of the v i o l a t i o n s t h a t have occurred t o the r u l e s . 

The only t h i n g t h a t you're r e a l l y c o n t e s t i n g i s you be assessed 

a penalty? 

A. Yeah. I'm concerned w i t h the p e n a l t i e s t h a t they 

have w i t h i t on here. They're very severe. I've been 

pen a l i z e d now w i t h having t o take on a l l t h i s luggage of h i s 

t h a t he has w i t h i t . I w i l l get the j o b done f o r you f e l l o w s 

here. I ' l l get the j o b done. We'll have i t done. That's what 

I would get those -- I w i l l take care of those t h i n g s on th e r e . 

And yes, I know what's happened here between January 

and now, you know. We've got f o u r months t o two months or 

whatever the other ones, yes, they are t a r d y . There's 

no t h i n g -- yes, she has them. I t ' s the p e n a l t i e s t h a t were 

assessed before. They're very severe. And I've never even had 

an o p p o r t u n i t y t o even go over i t w i t h those on t h e r e . And 

argue the -- t h i s i s the f i r s t time I've had t o do i t . 

Had I been given the o p p o r t u n i t y the f i r s t time, i t 

would have been g r e a t . Had I been i n c l u d e d i n t h a t 
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d i s c u s s i o n -- they knew I was buying the company. They knew 

i t . I wasn't i n c l u d e d i n . Had I been i n c l u d e d i n January, 

maybe we wouldn't be a t t h i s s i t u a t i o n and maybe we could have 

s e t t l e d t h i s t h i n g up before w i t h o u t the p e n a l t i e s . I'm t a k i n g 

on q u i t e a f i n a n c i a l burden w i t h f i n i s h i n g the w e l l s , t a k i n g on 

h i s other t h i n g s t h e r e and anything else associated. And i t ' s 

not t h a t b i g of a f i e l d . These w e l l s don't produce much a l l 

r i g h t now. I'm hoping t o develop the f i e l d . 

As I say, i t was never my i n t e n t i o n t o get here at 

a l l -- t o come i n t o t h i s town t o work here i n t h i s s t a t e . And 

t h a t ' s why I kept the company. I t r i e d t o keep the company and 

e v e r y t h i n g as s t a t u s quo, and the l i k e , so. 

Q. But I'm j u s t t r y i n g t o understand. Your p o s i t i o n 

i s you should be assessed no p e n a l t i e s ? I s t h a t what you're 

p o s i t i o n i s ? 

A. Yes, yes. 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: That's a l l I have. 

EXAMINATION 

BY CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: 

Q. Mr. K i z e r -- and n o t i c e I got the name r i g h t t h i s 

time -- I want t o t a l k about a statement t h a t you made about 

knowing and w i l l f u l . You were o b j e c t i n g t o t h a t being i n the 

Agreed Compliance Order? 

A. Oh, yeah. 

Q. Have you ever -- have you not seen t h a t ? 
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A. I've seen i t . You know, I walked o u t s i d e and I 

wanted t o come i n and apologize. That's something I would say 

at a bar. I ' d l i k e t o r e t r a c t t h a t . I t ' s what you have s t a t e d 

t h e r e , and we have discussions about v a r i o u s t h i n g s and t h a t 

j u s t came out and I apologize. 

Q. Do you t h i n k t h a t ' s --

A. I t ' s not a p p r o p r i a t e . 

Q. Do you t h i n k t h a t ' s unreasonable f o r us t o --

A. No. I can see t h a t t h e r e are a l o t of people 

knowingly and w i l l f u l l y v i o l a t e . One of your persons i s 

Mr. J e f f r i e s . 

Q. So you t h i n k Mr. J e f f r i e s knowingly and w i l l f u l l y 

v i o l a t e d --

A. He's d e f i n i t e l y walked away from h i s o b l i g a t i o n s . 

He's d e f i n i t e l y l e f t them. There's no doubt about t h a t . He's 

l e f t me hanging w i t h a l o t of the t h i n g s t h a t were t h e r e . But 

as f a r as I'm concerned, I have not w i l l f u l l y or -- I haven't 

i n t e n t i o n a l l y done anyt h i n g a t a l l . That's not my i n t e n t i o n . 

So I d i d n ' t come i n here, as I say --

Q. But you t h i n k Mr. J e f f r i e s d i d knowingly and 

w i l l f u l l y v i o l a t e d the ru l e s ? 

A. Did he? When somebody t e l l s me I don't have the 

money and I'm not going t o be doing t h i s . 

Q. I'm asking you the question . I s t h a t a yes? 

A. Was t h a t i n t e n t i o n t o begin with? 
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Q. Do you t h i n k he knowingly and w i l l f u l l y v i o l a t e d 

the rules? 

A. You know, when he f i r s t came i n , he had the cash 

to do the t h i n g s , and I gave him some more money t o get t h i n g s 

going. And why he d i d n ' t do i t , I don't know. Maybe he saw an 

op p o r t u n i t y t h a t maybe he could, a f t e r he saw t h i n g s , t h a t 

maybe he could get out, s k i r t out the si d e , t r y t o -- or 

whatever i t i s . 

Q. I've got the a b i l i t y t o keep us here u n t i l I get 

an answer. 

A. Okay. 

Q. Do you t h i n k he knowingly and w i l l f u l l y v i o l a t e d 

the rules? 

A. I don't know. I'm not i n a p o s i t i o n t o answer 

t h a t . 

Q. Okay. Have you ever seen t h a t requi rement i n 

a d m i n i s t r a t i v e law be fore? 

A. I n a d m i n i s t r a t i v e law? Probably so. I t ' s 

p robab ly i n some c i v i l . I d o n ' t know i f i t ' s i n 

a d m i n i s t r a t i v e , yes . 

Q. Okay. Now, you opera te i n Pennsylvania , you say? 

A. I a l so work i n Pennsy lvan ia . 

Q. How many w e l l s do you opera te there? 

A. We j u s t have - - I have one, two i n o p e r a t i o n . 

We're comple t ing two o f them r i g h t i n the next couple of weeks 
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and we're s t a r t i n g a couple -- i t ' l l be a t o t a l of s i x t o 

e i g h t . By the end of the year, I should maybe have t e n . 

Q. Okay. And C&D doesn't operate them, you do? 

A. No. I t ' s under a completely d i f f e r e n t 

c o r p o r a t i o n f o r the State of Pennsylvania. 

Q. What's the name of t h a t c o r p o r a t i o n ? 

A. Freedom O i l Ventures. 

Q. Okay. And the name -- and t h a t ' s d i f f e r e n t from 

Freedom Ventures here i n New Mexico? 

A. Ri g h t . I t ' s a completely d i f f e r e n t yeah. 

I t ' s an LLC. I t o r i g i n a t e s out of Wyoming, and i t ' s 

i n c o r p o r a t e d t o do business i n the State of Pennsylvania. 

Q. And do you have i n t e r e s t s i n Kentucky? 

A. No, s i r . 

Q. Do you have any other o i l and gas i n t e r e s t s 

anywhere? 

A. No, s i r . 

Q. So these 17 w e l l s and the f o u r you've got i n 

Pennsylvania are the w e l l s t h a t you -- or c o r p o r a t i o n s t h a t you 

own and operate; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes, s i r . At t h i s time. 

Q. L e t ' s b u i l d a qu i ck t i m e l i n e . When d i d you f i r s t 

purchase an i n t e r e s t i n C&D? 

A. As I s a i d , back i n 2005. 

Q. And you s a i d i t was warm, i t was i n the summer? 
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1 A. Yeah. I t h i n k i t was the summer of 2005. Well, 

2 I d i d n ' t purchase i t . I s t a r t e d t o make a payment on i t , you 

3 know. I s t a r t e d t o make a payment. I don't consider i t a 

4 purchase. I s t a r t e d t o make payment. 

5 Q- Did you buy the stock? 

6 A. I bought the stock and t h a t was completely — 

7 Q. Did you buy a l l the stock? 

8 A. Yes . 

9 Q. You bought a l l the stock t o C&D i n the summer of 

10 2005? 

11 A. No. I bought -- I d i d n ' t -- February of 2007. 

12 Q. Okay. The question I'm asking i s : When d i d you 

13 f i r s t purchase an i n t e r e s t i n C&D? 

14 A. I d i d n ' t have an i n t e r e s t i n C&D a t t h a t time. 

15 This i s money going toward the purchase. I d i d n ' t have a 

16 f r a c t i o n a l i n t e r e s t ; I d i d n ' t have a percentage i n t e r e s t ; and, 

17 i t wouldn't t r a n s f e r u n t i l I made the f u l l payments. 

18 Q. Okay. So what you d i d was s o r t of put i t on 

19 layaway? 

20 A. That's a f a i r way of p u t t i n g i t , yeah. 

21 Q. And you a c t u a l l y d i d not acqui r e an i n t e r e s t i n 

22 C&D u n t i l 2007? 

23 A. Correct, s i r . 

24 Q. February of 2007? 

25 A. Yes, s i r . 
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Q. Okay. The t r a n s a c t i o n t h a t occurred i n 2005, can 

you describe t h a t t o me? 

A. I came out, drove out, went around the f i e l d t o 

take a look a t the --

Q. And I know about the steak here. Let's j u s t --

A. And t h a t was i t . We went back and I s a i d , " I ' l l 

take i t . " 

And he s a i d , "Give me a down payment," you know, some 

good earnest money, and I wrote i n a check. 

Q. Did you memorialize t h a t t r a n s a c t i o n --

A. We had i t memorialized i t i n a Memorandum of 

Understanding on i t . B a s i c a l l y , t h a t was t o secure i t on 

the r e , and then we went our separate ways. And we s t a r t e d 

going back and f o r t h . I was asking more questions about the 

p r o p e r t y and the l i k e s t a r t i n g t o --

Q. What were the c o n d i t i o n s of the Memorandum of 

Understanding? 

A. The c o n d i t i o n s of the Memorandum of Understanding 

was t h a t I would take over the p r o p e r t i e s when payments were 

made, and t h a t he would complete the d r i l l i n g of h i s two w e l l s 

t h a t he had on t h e r e , and t h a t he would take r e s p o n s i b i l i t y of 

the o u t s t a n d i n g vendors t h a t he had a t t h a t time, and b a s i c a l l y 

b r i n g e v e r y t h i n g up-to-date and then i t would t r a n s f e r . 

Q. So between the summer of 2005, sometime when i t 

was hot, and -- was i t February of 2007 -- when you complete 
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the purchase --

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. -- d i d you memorialize your agreement, your f i n a l 

agreement? 

A. What we got i n t o i s , we were g e t t i n g f u r t h e r i n t o 

i t , and my a t t o r n e y s a i d , "You're g e t t i n g the stock. That's 

what you're going t o want a t the end. Let's j u s t get the stock 

t r a n s f e r r e d . And t h a t ' s what you need. When you get the stock 

t r a n s f e r r e d , you're done." And t h a t was i t . 

Q. Okay. And t h a t stock t r a n s f e r occurred --

A. Excuse me. I n November 2006, we d i d w r i t e 

another -- we brought a -- we d i d w r i t e another Memorandum of 

Understanding of what had t o be done on t h a t . And t h a t was the 

t h i n g , g e t t i n g those w e l l s completed and making -- b a s i c a l l y , 

r e p e t i t i v e t h i n g s . 

Q. Did you b r i n g those documents w i t h you today? 

A. Yeah. 

Q. And can you t e l l me what the c o n d i t i o n s o f the 

second memorandum were? 

A. Sure. They go on here f o r --

Q. Let's t a l k about the second one. 

A. Yeah, t h i s i s the one r i g h t here. Yeah. P a r t i e s 

here -- b i n d i n g e f f e c t and t r a n s f e r --

Q. Transfer? 

A. Yeah. When we were going t o t r a n s f e r . 
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Q. T y p i c a l l y what --

A. (I n a u d i b l e ) — b i n d i n g agreement between the 

p a r t i e s . 

Q. So t h a t document d i d n ' t t r a n s f e r anything? 

A. No. I t wasn't t r a n s f e r r i n g . 

Q. Okay. 

A. And — 

Q. So d i d anyt h i n g happen between November 2006 and 

February of 2007? 

A. Oh, yeah. 

Q. Oh, yeah? 

A. Yeah. That's when these f e l l o w s s t a r t e d coming 

i n and s t a r t e d b r i n g i n g a l o t of issues. 

Q. So a t t h a t time, you had no i n t e r e s t i n the 

company? 

A. No. 

Q. Okay. And they had n o t i f i e d C&D as a c o r p o r a t i o n 

of t h i s a c t i o n ? 

A. Yes, they d i d . 

Q. You're not c o n t e s t i n g t h a t n o t i f i c a t i o n , are you? 

A. No, I d i d n ' t -- wasn't -- no. 

Q. So a l l t h a t s t a r t e d happening. What happened 

between you and Mr. J e f f r i e s between t h a t time? 

A. What do you mean, what happened? 

Q. What happened f i s c a l l y ? I mean, d i d you t r a n s f e r 
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anything? Did you have any more contact w i t h Mr. J e f f r i e s ? 

A. No. We were i n the process of g e t t i n g the 

company t r a n s f e r r e d , and t h a t ' s when he t r a n s f e r r e d e v e r y t h i n g 

before the he a r i n g on March 8th, 2007. 

Q. Okay. So du r i n g the p e r i o d , November 2006 t o 

February 2007, d i d you p h y s i c a l l y t r a n s f e r anything? 

A. No. 

Q. Did you f i s c a l l y t r a n s f e r anything? 

A. No. 

Q. Did you i n a business sense t r a n s f e r anything? 

A. No. 

Q. So i n February of 2007 -- and I b e l i e v e you s a i d 

the date was the 21st? 

A. February -- yeah. 

Q. On the 21st of 2007, you t r a n s f e r r e d the stock 

from Mr. and Mrs. J e f f r i e s -- and I'm assuming t h a t they were 

100 percent owners at t h a t p o i n t ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Okay. And you t r a n s f e r r e d t h a t stock t o them on 

February 21st -- I mean, they t r a n s f e r r e d t h a t stock t o you on 

February 21st, 2007? 

A. Yes. 

Q. What was Mr. J e f f r i e s ' p o s i t i o n w i t h the company 

at t h a t time? 

A. He was completely what he had s t a r t e d w i t h these 
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f e l l o w s here. 

Q. Okay. That's not answering my qu e s t i o n . What 

was Mr. J e f f r i e s ' p o s i t i o n immediately a f t e r the t r a n s f e r ? 

A. He d i d n ' t have a p o s i t i o n w i t h the company. 

Q. Did you a u t h o r i z e him t o act f o r C&D t o complete 

those t r a n s a c t i o n s ? 

A. He was completing the requirements t h a t he had 

t h a t they had -- f o r him w i t h the signage and e v e r y t h i n g --

Q. And I t h i n k I agree w i t h you, but he d i d t h a t 

w i t h your a u t h o r i z a t i o n , d i d he not? 

A. At what time? 

Q. Let's say February 22nd, 2007, the day a f t e r the 

t r a n s f e r . 

A. When he s t a r t e d working w i t h the t h i n g s on ther e , 

he was going t o be t a k i n g those t h i n g s on. He went t o go 

complete them. 

Q. Okay. So he was a c t i n g a t t h a t p o i n t w i t h your 

a u t h o r i z a t i o n ; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. I don't t h i n k he was a c t i n g w i t h my 

a u t h o r i z a t i o n . He was j u s t completing what he s t a r t e d b e fore. 

Q. Let's come about i t a d i f f e r e n t way, then. Did 

he act w i t h your knowledge f o r C&D? 

A. Did he act w i t h my knowledge? 

Q. He d i d act f o r C&D w i t h your knowledge. 

A. He wasn't doing anything w i t h C&D. He was 
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completing the w e l l s t h a t he already s t a r t e d --

Q. Wasn't he — 

A. -- per our agreement. 

Q. Wasn't he doing the t h i n g s t h a t the v i c e 

p r e s i d e n t of C&D would do? Wasn't he a c t i n g f o r C&D i n several 

c a p a c i t i e s ? 

A. He d i d n ' t have a ca p a c i t y . He wasn't i n ca p a c i t y 

as v i c e p r e s i d e n t , no. He was a c t i n g as probably -- f o r l a c k 

of any other word -- l i k e a foreman of the p r o p e r t y t o make 

sure t h a t e v e r y t h i n g was g e t t i n g done. 

Q. You knew he was a c t i n g i n some c a p a c i t y f o r C&D; 

i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. Well, he was completing the w e l l s , o f course I 

knew t h a t . 

Q. Okay. 

A. He was doing what he knew what was r e q u i r e d . 

Q. And I assume sometime around the time t h a t you 

t r a n s f e r r e d the stock, the C&D board of d i r e c t o r s met; i s t h a t 

c o r r e c t ? 

A. Well, i t ' s j u s t me. 

Q. Did you meet? Being a l awyer , you know t h e r e ' s 

c e r t a i n f o r m a l i t i e s t h a t you have t o comply w i t h . 

A. Yeah, uh-huh. 

Q. Did you meet? Did you h o l d a meeting? 

A. I d o n ' t r e c a l l , no. 
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Q. Okay. Did you r e t a i n a lawyer t o act f o r C&D? 

A. For what purpose? 

Q. For the purposes of making sure t h a t the 

c o r p o r a t i o n was sound, t h a t the c o r p o r a t i o n , a t l e a s t w i t h 

respect t o the t h e i r f i l i n g s w i t h the d i f f e r e n t s t a t e s , was 

sound. 

A. Yeah, t h a t was Mr. Bagley. 

Q. Did Mr. Bagley recommend t h a t you ho l d a board of 

d i r e c t o r s meeting? 

A. He may have i n c l u d e d i t i n the minutes t h a t we 

had w i t h i t on t h e r e , I don't know. He has the books. 

Q. He has the books --

A. Yeah. 

Q. -- but you s a i d you d i d n ' t h o l d a meeting. 

A. Well, I don't know i f we d i d or not. I don't 

r e c a l l . I don't have any r e c o l l e c t i o n of i t , no. 

Q. Okay. So you don't know whether you he l d the 

i n i t i a l an i n i t i a l board of d i r e c t o r s meeting? 

A. No. 

Q. Did you take any a c t i o n t o replace the v i c e 

p r e s i d e n t ? 

A. No. 

Q. Did you take any a c t i o n t o replace the president? 

A. I was the p r e s i d e n t . 

Q- You were the p r e s i d e n t . Were you e l e c t e d 
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1 p r e s i d e n t by the board of d i r e c t o r s ? 

2 A. I t ' s a company I j u s t took as p r e s i d e n t . 

3 Q. You j u s t became p r e s i d e n t by f i a t , huh? 

4 A. Yes . 

5 Q. And you owned 100 percent o f the stock? 

6 A. Yes, s i r . 

7 Q. But you d i d n ' t take any a c t i o n t o replace the 

8 o f f i c e r s , d i d you? 

9 A. I'm not b i g , s i r . 

10 Q. You're not t h a t big? 

11 A. My company i s not t h a t b i g . There's not t h a t 

12 much a c t i v i t y ( i n a u d i b l e ) . 

13 Q. As a c o r p o r a t i o n , you saw a s i g n i f i c a n t value i n 

14 the corporate s t r u c t u r e , and as a c o r p o r a t i o n , there are 

15 c e r t a i n f o r m a l i t i e s t h a t they're r e q u i r e d t o adhere t o ; i s 

16 there not? 

17 A. C e r t a i n l y . 

18 Q. Okay. And one of them i s t a k i n g a c t i o n as a 

19 board of d i r e c t o r s , r i g h t ? 

20 A. Okay. 

21 Q. Okay. I s t h a t acquiescent, or i s t h a t surrender? 

22 A. I ' l l w a i t f o r the next questi o n . I don't know 

23 what your p o i n t i s . 

24 Q. The p o i n t I'm t r y i n g t o make i s Mr. and 

25 Mrs. J e f f r i e s were a c t i n g as the p r e s i d e n t and v i c e p r e s i d e n t 
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of C&D u n t i l February 21st, 2007, when 100 percent of the stock 

was t r a n s f e r r e d t o you; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. Corr e c t . 

Q. Okay. And a t t h a t p o i n t , you took no a c t i o n t o 

replace the o f f i c e r s ? 

A. Just me, the p r e s i d e n t , yes. 

Q. Just you. So e x t e r n a l l y , how was the wo r l d t o 

know t h a t Mr. And Mrs. J e f f r i e s were not s t i l l the o f f i c e r s --

e s p e c i a l l y Mr. J e f f r i e s , i n the a c t i v e r o l e t h a t he was t a k i n g 

w i t h r e h a b i l i t a t i n g these p r o p e r t i e s and doing work on these 

p r o p e r t i e s w i t h a t l e a s t your knowledge? 

A. Uh-huh. 

Q. I s t h a t a yes? 

A. I'm acknowledging what you're saying. 

Q. Okay. So l e t ' s t u r n t h a t i n t o a qu e s t i o n . To 

the w o r l d as a whole, would i t not have appeared t h a t Mr. and 

Mrs. J e f f r i e s were s t i l l the p r e s i d e n t and v i c e p r e s i d e n t of 

the company? 

A. I don't see why i t would. 

Q. Okay. Let's t a l k about Mr. J e f f r i e s s p e c i a l l y . 

He had been v i c e p r e s i d e n t . He was doing e x a c t l y the same 

t h i n g he had been doing before. He was, i n f a c t , s i g n i n g 

documents a month l a t e r on be h a l f of C&D. 

A. Uh-huh. 

Q. You knew about t h i s document. You t a l k e d t o 
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Lawyer O'Connor about i t ; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. R i g h t . Yes. A f t e r the f a c t when i t was signed, 

yes . 

Q. You a t l e a s t had seen one p r o v i s i o n i n t h e r e . 

Did you see the e n t i r e document? 

A. I was concerned, b a s i c a l l y , w i t h t h a t p r o v i s i o n . 

The other t h i n g s were b a s i c a l l y i n f r a c t i o n s and t h a t were 

being -- t o him. 

Q. So you knew about t h i s document. You knew t h a t 

t here was an agreement between C&D and the OCD, d i d n ' t you? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Okay. And you knew t h a t i t was signed by 

Christopher J e f f r i e s as v i c e p r e s i d e n t ? 

A. I had seen t h a t l a t e r , yes. 

Q. So sometime a f t e r then and bef o r e now, you had 

seen t h a t and you knew he was a c t i n g as v i c e p r e s i d e n t . 

A. Well, I saw he put h i s name as v i c e p r e s i d e n t , 

yes . 

Q. At t h a t p o i n t or any time subsequent t o t h a t 

d iscovery, d i d you take a c t i o n t o negate t h a t agreement w i t h 

the OCD? 

A. No. That's what you have both asked me and I 

sa i d no, t h a t I r e g r e t t h a t I d i d n ' t on t h e r e . I was working 

w i t h what, as I s a i d , O'Connor had t o l d me, and t h a t was i t . 

Q. Okay. Now, a l i t t l e w h i l e ago, when you were 
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t a l k i n g about the l a c k of f i l i n g s , you s a i d , "They're not i n , " 

meaning they hadn't been f i l e d , "so I take f u l l 

r e s p o n s i b i l i t y . " 

Are you r e p r e s e n t i n g t o us t h a t you p e r s o n a l l y are 

t a k i n g f i n a n c i a l r e s p o n s i b i l i t y , or are you t a k i n g 

r e s p o n s i b i l i t y i n your p o s i t i o n as an employee of your 

corporation? 

A. I w i l l -- these records t h a t you have here since 

January on here t h a t she has not f i l e d , t h a t t h e y ' r e not f i l e d 

w i t h you people --

Q. We're not t a l k i n g about t h a t . That was a 

question t h a t Commissioner B a i l e y asked you. But what I'm 

saying i s t h a t you s a i d you were t a k i n g personal r e s p o n s i b i l i t y 

f o r t h a t . 

A. For what? 

Q. For them not having been f i l e d ? 

A. Who else i s going to? 

Q. Okay. Now, are you t a k i n g t h a t -- do you mean 

you w i l l pay the f i n e y o u r s e l f or the p e n a l t y y o u r s e l f or t h a t 

i t w i l l come from the corporate assets? 

A. I w i l l s i g n as p r e s i d e n t of the company t o make 

sure t h a t gets p a i d . 

Q. Even though you had taken personal r e s p o n s i b i l i t y 

f o r i t r i g h t then when you turne d t o Ms. Prouty and s a i d , " I 

w i l l take personal r e s p o n s i b i l i t y f o r t h a t " ? 
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A. I have no problem w i t h . 

Q. I s n ' t t h a t the same k i n d of personal 

r e s p o n s i b i l i t y t h a t Mr. J e f f r i e s was taking? He was t a k i n g 

personal r e s p o n s i b i l i t y f o r g e t t i n g i t corrected? 

A. I wasn't p r i v y t o t h a t c o n v e r s a t i o n . I know t h a t 

when I t e l l t h i s lady here t h a t I ' l l do i t -- I've never done 

anything -- I've never t o l d you people I was going t o do 

something and not do i t . 

Q. Okay. 

A. I've never done t h a t s i r . I've never done t h a t 

as many times as I've been --

Q. Can we get on w i t h my questions? 

A. Okay. 

Q. Now, on January 19th of 2008, i n your 

conversation w i t h Mr. J e f f r i e s , you i n d i c a t e d t h a t a t t h a t 

p o i n t , he t o l d you he had no more money and would do no more 

f o r C&D; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. He s a i d he d i d n ' t have any money. I asked him 

when he was going t o get -- we were t a l k i n g about j u s t the 

st a t u s of t h i n g s , e v e r y t h i n g done, and he -- I don't know i f i t 

was the 19th, but i t was i n the month of January. 

Q. Okay. 

A. And he s a i d -- he f i n a l l y came out and sa i d , " I 

don't have the money t o do i t . I'm not going t o do i t . " 

Q. But up t o January -- sometime around the 19th --
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of 2008, you expected him t o act f o r C&D t o take on some of the 

r e s p o n s i b i l i t y , or the r e s p o n s i b i l i t y , f o r accomplishing t h i n g s 

t h a t were the a c t u a l p h y s i c a l r e s p o n s i b i l i t y of C&D; i s t h a t 

c o r r e c t ? 

A. No. See, I don't i n t e r p r e t t h a t -- I say t h a t 

they were h i s r e s p o n s i b i l i t y . He d r i l l e d those w e l l s . He took 

them on. He t o l d me bef o r e . He t o l d me afterwards t h a t he was 

respo n s i b l e , as w e l l as he t o l d Cheryl 

Q. Okay. 

A. -- and she wrote i t i n t h e r e . 

Q. So l e t ' s go back, then, t o E x h i b i t 26. When 

e x a c t l y d i d you become aware of E x h i b i t 2 6? 

A. What's E x h i b i t 26? 

Q. I t ' s the Agreed Compliance Order? 

A. When ex a c t l y ? 

Q. Yes. 

A. I don't know e x a c t l y the date. I t had t o be 

a f t e r the A p r i l 21st -- 12th or something -- because I had 

not --

Q. A p r i l 21st of 2007? 

A. 2007. I t was i n A p r i l . 

Q. But i t was p r i o r t o the di s c u s s i o n you had w i t h 

him on January 19th — about January 19th, 2008? 

A. Oh, of course. 

Q. So the t h i n g s t h a t he was doing you had already 
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known were the r e s p o n s i b i l i t y of C&D, and he continued t o do 

them w i t h your acquiescence i n the name of C&D. He continued 

t o act f o r C&D, d i d n ' t he? 

A. He was -- these are r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s t h a t 

predated. 

Q. ( I n a u d i b l e ) . 

A. ( I n a u d i b l e ) . 

Q. -- Agreed Compliance Order which made t h a t the 

r e s p o n s i b i l i t y of C&D; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. I don't f o l l o w . 

Q. You have seen the Agreed Compliance Order which 

made those a c t i o n s the r e s p o n s i b i l i t y of C&D; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. I had seen the compliance order, yes. The second 

p a r t of your question, no, I don't agree t h a t t h a t was the case 

at a l l . 

Q. Now, you changed your address, the o f f i c i a l 

address w i t h the OCD on A p r i l of 2008; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. Well, at the time, I thought we were changing i t 

back i n 2007. I guess t h a t was not the r i g h t t h i n g t o be 

doing. 

Q. But the document Mr. Swazo asked you about was an 

o f f i c i a l address change w i t h the OCD i n A p r i l of 2008? 

A. He d i d n ' t show me a document f o r t h a t . 

Q. Okay. But — 

A. He showed me a document t h a t I had sent t o the 
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BLM t h a t he was showing me t h a t he r e c e i v e d from them. 

Q. Okay. 

A. On t h e r e . 

Q. Okay. 

A. That showed an address. 

Q. And then he represented t o you t h a t t h a t was the 

f i r s t time t h a t the OCD had seen t h a t change? 

A. Okay. 

Q. Okay. And t h a t was an o f f i c i a l form f i l e d w i t h 

the BLM. Did you change your address w i t h the BLM before t h a t ? 

A. J e r r y t o l d me t o send t h i s document w i t h t h a t . 

To my knowledge, no, we had not changed t h a t . 

Q. Okay. 

A. I had not f i l e d any permits or an y t h i n g or 

anything d i f f e r e n t w i t h i t , no. 

Q. Okay. Now, you s a i d t h a t the c o r p o r a t i o n 

s t r u c t u r e f o r C&D was extremely v a l u a b l e t o you, more v a l u a b l e , 

I t h i n k -- and I may be misquoting you here, so please c o r r e c t 

me -- more v a l u a b l e than the w e l l s i t s e l f . 

A. Not more valuable than the w e l l s . The w e l l s are 

the f o u n d a t i o n of what gives you your c o r p o r a t i o n . That's the 

value. 

Q. Okay. 

A. I thought when I came here, I thought i t was 

important t o keep c o n t i n u i t y . 
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Q. Why i s t h a t ? 

A. Well, we had an Ogrid number t h a t was w i t h i t ; 

the w e l l s already had signage on them. What was i t going t o 

cost t o change e v e r y t h i n g over on i t ? We had vendors i n the 

area t h a t knew us, t h a t we had accounts w i t h and t h a t . You 

f o l k s knew us as C&D, the BLM knew us as C&D, and t h a t . I t 

wasn't my i n t e n t i o n t o come i n and j u s t s t a r t , you know, j u s t 

changing a l o t of the t h i n g s and t h a t . 

Q. So the corporate s t r u c t u r e had some s i g n i f i c a n t 

value t o you? 

A. S i g n i f i c a n t ? 

Q. Okay — 

A. I t i s was j u s t keeping the same name, keeping 

c o n t i n u i t y and the l i k e w i t h i t , yeah. 

Q. Okay. And I t h i n k t h a t the r e c o r d shows at l e a s t 

arguably t h a t C&D as a c o r p o r a t i o n , a t l e a s t the people who had 

been a c t i n g f o r C&D, p r i o r t o the address change, had n o t i c e of 

the proceedings, d i d i t not? 

A. I don't f o l l o w . 

Q. Well, the record -- doesn't the recor d show, a t 

l e a s t arguably, t h a t the people who were a c t i n g f o r C&D had 

n o t i c e of the proceedings t h a t were brought against C&D? 

A. What time frame are we t a l k i n g about? A l l of 

them? 

Q. P r i o r t o A p r i l of 2008. 
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1 A. P r i o r t o A p r i l of 2008, the people t h a t were 

2 operating? 

3 Q. Yes . 

4 A. No, I was not the --

5 Q. P r i o r t o January, about the 19th of 2008. 

6 A. Was J e f f r i e s aware of them? Are you asking me? 

7 Q. Yes. That might be a b e t t e r --

8 A. He s a i d he sent them the records on i t . J e f f r i e s 

9 never t o l d me anything on t h e r e . So I don't know i f he ever 

10 received them or i f he ever acknowledged r e c e i p t on them, or 

11 p e r s o n a l l y -- s i g n i n g f o r them p e r s o n a l l y on t h e r e . 

12 Q. You d i d make one statement t h a t k i n d of makes me 

13 c u r i o u s . You p o i n t e d t o the OCD r e p r e s e n t a t i v e s and s a i d , 

14 "Aren't we quasi-partners? Aren't you qu a s i - p a r t n e r s ? " 

15 What d i d you mean by t h a t ? 

16 A. Well, I t h i n k we k i n d of a l l have t o work 

17 tog e t h e r . They're overseeing the w e l l s t o make c e r t a i n 

18 they're -- a d m i n i s t r a t i v e l y and e v e r y t h i n g i s i n order on t h a t . 

19 And our job i s t o get them pumped, get -- b r i n g money i n , get 

20 the p r o d u c t i o n and t h a t . And t h e i r j o b i s t o make we do i t 

21 p r o p e r l y and t h a t . 

22 And the whole idea i s you t r y t o work t o g e t h e r . I f 

23 you're doing something -- t h i s i s what I need t o do t o get the 

24 permits and e v e r y t h i n g , make sure she gets her records and t h a t 

25 so everybody gets p a i d , the State gets p a i d , the funds go out 
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and e v e r y t h i n g . So everybody's got t o work t o g e t h e r . I don't 

t h i n k i t ' s meant t o be an a d v e r s a r i a l r e l a t i o n s h i p . I don't 

t h i n k t h a t ' s the case. 

I ' d l i k e t o be able t o p i c k up the phone and t a l k t o 

Daniel, and say, " I got a l i t t l e issue here. What do I need t o 

do?" 

And by and l a r g e , t h e y ' r e very i n s t r u c t i v e . This i s 

what you need t o do t o get -- whatever your o b j e c t i v e i s . So, 

you know, maybe I'm using the wrong term, quasi, but i f t h a t ' s 

the wrong term -- but I t h i n k t h a t we have t o work togethe r t o 

get t h i n g s done. And i t wasn't my i n t e n t i o n t o come i n here 

and be a d v e r s a r i a l w i t h you people. 

Q. Okay. And you were r e f e r r i n g t o Chris J e f f r i e s 

when you made t h i s statement: You s a i d t h a t you d i d n ' t see 

n o t h i n g out of l i n e a t the time. And I f o r g o t the exact 

context of t h a t , but I was curious enough about t h a t t o w r i t e 

i t down and ask a question about t h i s . 

"Nothing out of the l i n e a t the time;" do you 

remember what you mean by t h a t comment? 

A. One time when I o r i g i n a l l y came i n , e v e r y t h i n g 

seemed t o be 

Q. No. This was a f t e r the s i g n i n g . 

A. A f t e r the signing? 

Q. The s i g n i n g of the agreement. 

A. Well, everybody had seemed t o be -- they had made 
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t h e i r agreement. Everybody was working t o g e t h e r . He was 

g e t t i n g h i s t h i n g s done; I was communicating w i t h them; I was 

t a l k i n g t o him. He s a i d I'm t a l k i n g and we're moving forward, 

I'm g e t t i n g t h i n g s -- I'm g e t t i n g the guys out, g e t t i n g 

e v e r y t h i n g pumped, Debbie i s working on the f i l i n g s on i t , I'm 

g e t t i n g the t h i n g s together t o get these w e l l s plugged. 

Q. So a f t e r the agreement, you d i d n ' t see anything 

wrong w i t h Chris a c t i n g i n whatever c a p a c i t y he was a c t i n g i n 

at the time? 

A. No. But t h a t was 2007 and by the end of -- what 

was t h a t -- the end of -- mid-March, or whatever. And then 

towards the l a s t q u a r t e r , t h i n g s s t a r t e d t o d e t e r i o r a t e , and he 

wasn't g e t t i n g t h i n g s done. I could j u s t t e l l by the tone 

t h a t , you know, you're supposed t o be g e t t i n g t h i n g s done and 

i t ' s not done on t h e r e . And when I was -- when I would be i n 

town or something, somebody would mention or something -- I 

couldn't move forward. I couldn't do anyth i n g u n t i l he was 

g e t t i n g these w e l l s done. 

Q. Okay. Now, the proceedings t h a t l e d t o the 

Agreed Compliance Order, d i d you get n o t i c e f o r those? 

A. Sorry? 

Q. Did you get n o t i c e o f the proceedings t h a t l e d t o 

the Agreed Compliance Order? 

A. What? 

Q. The l e t t e r s of v i o l a t i o n and the n o t i c e o f 
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v i o l a t i o n t h a t l e d t o the Agreed Compliance Order, E x h i b i t 26, 

f o r the OCD? 

A. The one here i n January? 

Q. No. 

A. 2007? 

Q. This i s the one t h a t was sighed i n --

A. No. 

Q. You d i d not get i t ? 

A. No, I d i d not get any t h i n g . 

Q. But Mr. J e f f r i e s did? 

A. I assume he d i d , yeah. I had not seen - - n o . I 

d i d n ' t get any of t h a t . 

Q. Okay. And t h a t was signed a f t e r the t r a n s a c t i o n 

was completed? 

A. Yeah. We were going through t h a t p e r i o d there 

when e v e r y t h i n g was going on at the time. 

Q. Okay. And l a t e r you became aware of the Agreed 

Compliance Order. At the time you had some knowledge of i t , 

and then l a t e r you acquired a copy and read i t , r i g h t ? 

A. Well, when they had set out t h e i r v i o l a t i o n s on 

i t , t h e r e were a number of issues t h a t were on th e r e and then 

he --

Q. This i s a r e a l simple q u e s t i o n , Mr. Kiz e r . Later 

you s a i d -- you have t e s t i f i e d today t h a t l a t e r you saw t h i s 

agreement and became aware of what was i n i t . At t h a t time, 
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d i d you remove or r e s c i n d the agreement because i t was between 

OCD and--

A. No. That's what I've t o l d the t h r e e of you. I 

r e g r e t t h a t I d i d n ' t . But e v e r y t h i n g was going w e l l and I had 

t a l k e d t o -- as I s a i d , O'Connor s a i d he's r e s p o n s i b l e w i t h i t . 

These are t h i n g s t h a t predated you on i t . 

FURTHER EXAMINATION 

BY COMMISSIONER OLSON: 

Q. Can I f o l l o w up w i t h t h a t ? I thought you had 

sa i d e a r l i e r -- maybe I'm j u s t confused on the t i m e l i n e -- but 

I thought you had s a i d , or t e s t i f i e d e a r l i e r , t h a t you were 

p a r t of a d i s c u s s i o n p r i o r t o the one when t h i s was signed? Or 

was t h a t Ms. O'Connor? 

A. No. The day t h a t they were -- they had t h e i r own 

p r i v a t e d i s c u s s i o n . I was never p r i v y t o them. I wasn't 

i n v i t e d t o them. I wasn't on the phone or any t h i n g . I t was 

the day of the h e a r i n g . She j u s t i n v i t e d her up t o her room. 

She was pr e p a r i n g and doing some other s t u f f , and she got 

J e f f r i e s on the phone. She sai d , "This i s what we're going t o 

do. We're going t o change t h i s f o r you," and t h a t , and t h a t 

was i t . 

There wasn't anything -- t h a t ' s the day I met Daniel. 

I came i n . I t wasn't anything f o r m a l . There wasn't a 

scheduled meeting or anything. I j u s t showed up on my own 

accord here. 
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Q. But then you had knowledge, then, of what was 

going on f o r the v i o l a t i o n s and actions? 

A. I d i d n ' t -- no. She had them a l l i n her t h i n g , 

and she was g e t t i n g ready f o r another case. I t wasn't t h a t we 

sat there and went over t h i n g s . 

Q. Wasn't t h a t why you were i n Santa Fe here because 

of t h i s issue? You had knowledge of t h i s and you had concerns 

about i t ? 

A. I had concerns, yes, of course. I had concerns. 

But they hadn't made an agreement y e t . 

Q. So how d i d you have knowledge t h a t a l l of these 

v i o l a t i o n s and a l l these a c t i o n s were going on t o be here i n 

Santa Fe? 

A. I t was p r i n t e d i n the newspaper i n A r t e s i a . And 

I happened t o be there t h a t weekend when i t came out on t h a t . 

And my pumper t o l d me t h a t you've got a heari n g . That's how I 

found out about i t . I found out about i t from your p u b l i c a t i o n 

and t h a t down i n A r t e s i a . I was th e r e t h a t weekend, and my 

pumper s a i d you've got -- there's a hearing here. 

Chris hadn't t o l d me on t h e r e . And I approached 

Chris about i t , and so I s a i d , "I'm showing up. Somebody's got 

to show up. You g o t t a show up f o r t h a t . That's i t . " 

Q. I know. But I t h i n k t h a t ' s d i f f e r e n t than what 

you're saying t h a t you d i d n ' t have knowledge of t h i s before 

hearing was coming up. 
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A. I d i d n ' t have knowledge of what the substance of 

the t h i n g . I knew th e r e was something going on. I d i d n ' t know 

what the v i o l a t i o n s and t h a t were. I knew t h a t t h e r e were 

v i o l a t i o n s t h a t he had before w i t h the contamination and 

signage and those types of t h i n g s and t h a t . But i n s o f a r as the 

c o n t r a c t , I d i d n ' t have knowledge of t h a t . 

Q. So then you came t o Santa Fe t o f i n d out what the 

contents of i t were; i s t h a t i t ? 

A. Commissioner, I sat here and I wanted t o hear --

they s a i d i t was going t o be dismissed. And I was going on t o 

A r t e s i a anyway t o look a t the w e l l s , and I was concerned. I 

wanted t o show up f o r i t . Somebody's got t o show up f o r these 

t h i n g s . You j u s t don't go and nobody shows up. So I showed 

up. And I i n t r o d u c e d myself t o Ms. O'Connor and she was on her 

way out, and t h a t was i t . She s a i d , "Come on up and w e ' l l t a l k 

a l i t t l e b i t , " and t h a t . So i t wasn't a formal meeting. I t 

was here. I was coming through and t h a t was i t . 

Q. But t h a t was p r i o r t o t h i s being signed; i s t h a t 

c o r r e c t ? 

A. Well, I guess they had n e g o t i a t e d t h a t on a 

d i f f e r e n t day. I don't know. Yeah, t h a t was March 12th. I 

t h i n k i t was March 12th they had a hea r i n g -- they had a -- i t 

was on docket, and i t was dismissed. And she -- i t was before 

you f o l k s here, and i t was acknowledged t h a t i t was dismissed, 

and t h a t they were working out an agreement, and she l e f t the 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 

500 4th Street, NW, Suite 105, Albuquerque, NM 87102 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

221 

room. And t h a t was i t . She came down j u s t f o r t h a t case and 

t h a t was i t . 

Q. Right. But then you had knowledge t h a t they were 

n e g o t i a t i n g a se t t l e m e n t t o t h i s ? 

A. They had n e g o t i a t e d on about the 10th. They had 

t h a t conversation t h a t I wasn't p r i v y t o . That's where Daniel, 

Michael, and Chris were a l l on the l i n e t o g e t h e r . And t h a t ' s 

where Chris s a i d I'm being assessed -- I've accepted t h i s . 

They are t e l l i n g me what my f i n e s are, and we're working out a 

plan t o f i n i s h the p r o p e r t y . That was the e-mail t h a t he had. 

That's when he t o l d me, "Don't get i n v o l v e d . I'm the 

Kentucky o i l guy. You're going t o get i n and you're going t o 

screw t h i n g s up." 

Q. What I'm g e t t i n g at i s you had knowledge t h a t 

they were t r y i n g t o s e t t l e issues r e l a t e d t o v i o l a t i o n s of C&D 

Management of o i l and gas w e l l s i n New Mexico? 

A. Yeah. 

Q. Okay. 

FURTHER EXAMINATION 

BY CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: 

Q. What's a t the Albuquerque address? 

A. Sorry? 

Q. What's a t the Albuquerque address? 

A. We took the Albuquerque -- i t ' s l o c a t e d a t 4801. 

I t ' s l i k e a v i r t u a l o f f i c e s i t u a t i o n t h a t I have. Because when 
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I come i n , I g e n e r a l l y spend most of my time down i n A r t e s i a a t 

the w e l l s , but I have people t h a t come i n . And they won't go 

down t o A r t e s i a a l o t of times. So I've got an o f f i c e down i n 

Albuquerque. I've got i t -- from the a i r p o r t s t a n d p o i n t , i t ' s 

close. I've been t h e r e since about 2005 i n t h e r e . 

Q. What's a v i r t u a l o f f i c e ? 

A. A v i r t u a l o f f i c e i s you have o f f i c e space. You 

j u s t don't use i t a l l the time. I t ' s a f u l l b u i l d i n g . I t ' s a 

f u l l b u i l d i n g and you go i n t o i t . There's s e c r e t a r i e s and 

e v e r y t h i n g . You have your phones and e v e r y t h i n g i s t h e r e , the 

m a i l . I take r e c e i p t s f o r the c o r p o r a t i o n , e v e r y t h i n g i s l i n e d 

up t h e r e . I t ' s a l e g i t i m a t e i t ' s not a post o f f i c e . I t ' s 

two b u i l d i n g s , and t h a t . 

So you're able t o come i n , and i t ' s a l o t cheaper f o r 

us t o m a i n t a i n the o f f i c e t h e r e . And when I come i n , I have an 

o f f i c e . Anybody comes i n , I have use of a l l my f a c i l i t i e s and 

t h a t . And they had j u s t opened i t a t the time. And I d i d n ' t 

know where t o get an o f f i c e at the time, and I thought I should 

have something, and t h e r e . And the g a l was k i n d enough t o open 

up f o r me so I've been t h e r e . I was one of her o r i g i n a l 

tenants t h e r e . So I've been there since. 

And when I o r i g i n a l l y went i n , I had re n t e d a whole 

o f f i c e and t h a t . I found out t h a t I wasn't r e a l l y using i t . 

A l l t h i s s t u f f would come i n , and she would send i t t o me 

wherever I was or would I come i n . And so then she s a i d , "Tom, 
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you're wasting money." 

So she s a i d , I t e l l you what. Why don't you keep 

t h i s , keep t h a t . We have -- i f somebody c a l l s on the phone, 

e v e r y t h i n g goes i n t h e r e . E v e r y t h i n g i s t h e r e . 

Q. So you k i n d of have an o f f i c e when you come i n t o 

town by arrangement w i t h your l a n d l o r d ? 

A. Yes. That's the -- they c a l l i t a v i r t u a l 

o f f i c e . They're used i n Los Angeles a l o t . They're used many 

places, yeah. 

Q. Who's your l a n d l o r d there? 

A. I t ' s c a l l e d O f f i c e A l t e r n a t i v e s . 

Q. Okay. Who's your l a n d l o r d there? 

A. Sue i s the g a l t h a t takes care o f e v e r y t h i n g f o r 

me, and Maryann. They're the owners. 

Q. Okay. And a n y t h i n g t h a t was sent there you got? 

A. Oh, yeah. They're very good about t h a t . They 

put phone c a l l s d i r e c t l y through t o me. Anything t h a t i s 

t h e r e . So i f you c a l l i n t h e r e , t h e y ' l l put them r i g h t through 

t o me on t h e r e . E v e r y t h i n g -- i t ' s not something t h a t i f you 

go i n t h e r e -- i t ' s a very l e g i t i m a t e f a c i l i t y . I t ' s very 

nice . 

Q. Why would you be concerned t h a t I wouldn't t h i n k 

i t was a l e g i t i m a t e f a c i l i t y ? 

A. Well, you make i t sound maybe i t ' s l i k e I'm, you 

know, I'm behind the corner and t h i n g s . And, no, i t ' s not l i k e 
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t h a t a t a l l . I t ' s a very n i c e f a c i l i t y . I b r i n g c l i e n t s i n 

th e r e . My c l i e n t s t h a t come i n , they come i n and we meet 

th e r e . We have a conference room. There are a l o t of 

companies t h a t are i n t h e r e . 

Q. What k i n d of c l i e n t s do you have i n the o i l 

business ? 

A. Sorry? 

Q. What k i n d of c l i e n t s ? 

A. I f I have an i n v e s t o r t h a t ' s come i n maybe t o 

look at t h i n g s . I have other businesses and other i n t e r e s t s 

and the l i k e . People w i l l come i n t o Albuquerque. They don't 

n e c e s s a r i l y want t o go a l l the way down t o A r t e s i a , so I ' l l 

meet them here and t h e r e . And I don't r e a l l y l i k e t o get them 

i n t o Las Vegas because they don't pay t h a t much a t t e n t i o n . 

They get there and then they're gone. So here t h e y ' l l s i t w i t h 

me a l l day. 

Q. How much C&D stock i s outstanding? How much 

t r e a s u r y stock? 

A. I t ' s j u s t the 1,000 shares, common. 

Q. And i t ' s a l l 1,000 shares i n c i r c u l a t i o n ? 

A. Not i n c i r c u l a t i o n . 

Q. Well, I mean, you're h o l d i n g them. 

A. Yeah. Yes, s i r . 

Q. You made a statement t h a t you p a i d o f f 

Mr. J e f f r i e s before you took t i t l e ? 
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A. Yeah. 

Q. You were saying t i t l e t o the stock or t i t l e t o 

the p r o p e r t i e s ? 

A. What we wanted t o do i s when I p a i d him o f f , I 

expected t o have e v e r y t h i n g t r a n s f e r r e d then. But then he --

we went t o go get the c o r p o r a t i o n t o move i t over, and they had 

d i s s o l v e d i t i n Kentucky, h i s c o r p o r a t i o n . 

Q. "They" being the State of Kentucky? 

A. To the s t a t e , because he had not p a i d h i s t h i n g s . 

And so we had t o go through the process of g e t t i n g i t 

r e i n s t a t e d . I was ready t o go then. But e v e r y t h i n g wasn't 

ready. And so --

Q. And when was t h a t ? 

A. About 2006, November. Yeah. That was i n 

November of 200 6. 

Q. I'm s o r r y I i n t e r r u p t e d you. You s t a r t e d t o t a l k 

some more about t h a t . 

A. No. That was i t . Then they got i t r e i n s t a t e d . 

I t took them awhile. They d i d n ' t get r e i n s t a t e d u n t i l January. 

Q. Of 2007? 

A. Of 2007. And then e v e r y t h i n g went t o -- who was 

h a n d l i n g i t was my a t t o r n e y i n Wyoming, Mr. Bagley. 

Q. And i t took him a year t o get e v e r y t h i n g 

s t r a i g h t e n e d out so t h a t you could t r a n s f e r i t ? 

A. Well, as f a r as t o New Mexico? 
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Q. Yes. 

A. Well, the t h i n g was, he was corresponding w i t h 

the PRC t h e r e t e l l i n g them i t was the same company. They kept 

going no. They kept sending t h i n g s back. No, f i r s t I went and 

t o l d them what the t h i n g was, t h a t we were j u s t t r a n s f e r r i n g a 

change of the p a r t i e s only, same company. And they j u s t kept 

dropping i t i n t h i s deaf area, b a s i c a l l y . 

And then what we had t o do, l i k e I say, i s b a s i c a l l y 

put t o g e t h e r a small l i t t l e b r i e f and get i t before the r i g h t 

person t o somebody els e up high i n t h e i r l e g a l department t o go 

through and say, yes, they can do t h i s . But i t ' s not something 

t h a t ' s c u s t o m a r i l y done. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I have no f u r t h e r questions. 

Anything e l s e from the Commission? 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: No. 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: No. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Swazo? 

MR. SWAZO: I have no questions. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. P a d i l l a ? 

MR. PADILLA: No questions. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Thank you very much, Mr. Ki z e r . 

THE WITNESS: What i s the process now? 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Well, w e ' l l have c l o s i n g 

statements. 

THE WITNESS: Okay. A l l r i g h t . 
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CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Swazo, are you prepared f o r a 

c l o s i n g statement? 

MR. SWAZO: B r i e f l y , Mr. Chairman. I j u s t want t o 

p o i n t out s e v e r a l m a t t e r s . I ' l l l e t the Commission read the 

documents. 

With regard t o the ACO, what I want t o p o i n t out i s 

t h a t the ACO was f o r r e p o r t s t h a t were d e l i n q u e n t up u n t i l t h a t 

time. The hope was t h a t C&D Management would come i n t o 

compliance and would m a i n t a i n compliance w i t h the r e p o r t i n g 

requirements. That hasn't happened. So I j u s t want the 

Commission t o r e a l i z e t h a t t h i s document was d r a f t e d f o r 

v i o l a t i o n s t h a t were i n e f f e c t a t t h a t time. 

Also, I wanted t o p o i n t out t h a t there's been a l o t 

of focus on Mr. J e f f r i e s t a k i n g r e s p o n s i b i l i t y . I f you read 

the ACO, a c t u a l l y t h a t ' s a r e p r e s e n t a t i o n t h a t Mr. J e f f r i e s 

made. That's not a de t e r m i n a t i o n t h a t the OCD made. And i f 

you look a t the e n t i r e document, the e n t i r e document i s w i t h 

C&D Management Company, d.b.a. Freedom Ventures Company, and 

not w i t h Mr. J e f f r i e s s p e c i f i c a l l y . 

Mr. K i z e r made a l o t o f r e p r e s e n t a t i o n s on the stand 

regarding t h i n g s t h a t Mr. Sanchez or myself may or may not have 

done. That's not evidence. I was not able t o t e s t i f y on t h a t , 

so I would ask the Commission not t o draw any conclusions on 

any of the statements t h a t Mr. Kizer made. 

With regard t o any defects i n n o t i f i c a t i o n which 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 

500 4th Street, NW, Suite 105, Albuquerque, NM 87102 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

228 

we -- f i r s t of a l l , we don't b e l i e v e t h a t t h e r e were any 

defect s i n the n o t i f i c a t i o n because n o t i c e was served on 

corporate o f f i c e r s , and the a c t u a l a d m i n i s t r a t i v e h earing was 

published i n the A r t e s i a D a i l y Press, which i s the area where 

the w e l l s were l o c a t e d . But even i f d e f e c t s were made i n the 

n o t i c e , t h a t has been curd by t h i s de novo hearing today. 

Mr. -- C&D Management got t h e i r due process and they got t h a t 

due process today by having t h i s hearing and being allowed t o 

present -- being allowed the o p p o r t u n i t y t o present t h e i r case. 

And then one f i n a l t h i n g i s t h a t I t h i n k i t ' s very 

important f o r p e n a l t i e s t o be imposed i n t h i s case. The p o i n t 

of p e n a l t i e s i s t o t r y t o get operators -- t o f i r s t of a l l , t o 

t r y t o prevent operators from engaging i n bad behavior -- but 

i f operators do engage i n bad behavior, then p e n a l i z i n g them 

f o r engaging i n such behavior. That way i n the f u t u r e they 

don't engage i n t h a t behavior. 

I n t h i s case, C&D Management has been aware of the 

r e p o r t i n g requirements since 2006, and an Agreed Compliance 

Order was entered i n t o -- they entered i n t o an Agreed 

Compl iance Order w i t h the OCD. They were f u l l y aware of the 

r e p o r t i n g requirements, and they s t i l l w i l l f u l l y disobeyed 

those r e p o r t i n g requirements. And i f I could j u s t put i t 

simply -- knowing and w i l l f u l i n simple terms -- knowing and 

w i l l f u l simply means t h a t the operator i s aware of a v i o l a t i o n 

and allows the v i o l a t i o n t o occur. And t h a t ' s e x a c t l y what 
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happened i n t h i s case. 

You've heard testimony t h a t C&D Management has been 

aware of the r e p o r t i n g requirements f o r q u i t e some time and yet 

they s t i l l allowed the r e p o r t i n g v i o l a t i o n s t o occur. And 

based on t h a t testimony, I ask t h a t you f o l k s impose the c i v i l 

p e n a l t i e s t h a t we asked f o r d u r i n g Mr. Sanchez' testimony. 

I don't have any other c l o s i n g statement at t h i s 

p o i n t . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. P a d i l l a ? 

MR. PADILLA: Members of the Commission, I'm p r e t t y 

t r o u b l e d w i t h the n o t i c e of the D i v i s i o n ' s -- the n o t i c e issues 

t h a t have been i n v o l v e d i n t h i s h earing. I t ' s t r u e t h a t i t 

appears as though, based on the questions of the Chairman, t h a t 

Mr. J e f f r i e s may have had apparent a u t h o r i t y t o act as v i c e 

p r e s i d e n t f o r the c o r p o r a t i o n when he signed the March of 2007 

A d m i n i s t r a t i v e Compliance Order, but the f a c t of the matter i s 

t h a t he was not a v i c e p r e s i d e n t . Darla J e f f r i e s was not a 

v i c e p r e s i d e n t . We d i d n ' t submit any type of r e s i g n a t i o n 

documents here. 

But the p o i n t i s , i s t h a t t h i s c o r p o r a t i o n had been 

having problems i n the State of Kentucky. That got 

s t r a i g h t e n e d out and e v e n t u a l l y got t r a n s f e r r e d t o the State of 

Wyoming f o r f a v o r a b l e corporate reasons. The a u t h o r i t y t o do 

business here i n New Mexico was u l t i m a t e l y obtained i n A p r i l of 

2008 of t h i s year. 
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But I t h i n k i n terms of -- yes, t h e r e were issues, 

but I t h i n k the evidence i s c l e a r t h a t Mr. Kizer r e l i e d , 

p r o p e r l y r e l i e d t o h i s d e t r i m e n t , t h a t Mr. J e f f r i e s was going 

t o do what he s a i d he was going t o do. He d i d n ' t . His 

conducted may meet the knowing and w i l l f u l c r i t e r i a , but i f you 

examine Mr. Kizer's conduct since the hearing t h a t was had here 

before the D i v i s i o n i n January of 2008, he's been p r e t t y 

d i l i g e n t . B r i n g i n g a l l the C-115s up-to-date i s a problem. 

I t ' s time-consuming, e s p e c i a l l y when you have m u l t i p l e years of 

r e p o r t i n g . That r e a l l y was on J e f f r i e s ' watch. 

A f t e r January -- a f t e r t h i s order was issued by the 

D i v i s i o n , and as a r e s u l t of the h e a r i n g where Mr. J e f f r i e s d i d 

not appear, I t h i n k you see a change i n the compliance 

requirements here and some due d i l i g e n c e . The testimony 

t h a t -- Mr. Kizer's testimony -- has been t h a t he's ready t o 

p l u g these w e l l s . T h e y ' l l be plugged i n 30 days, w i t h i n the 

time recommended by Mr. Sanchez t h i s morning. 

But we also have t o go back and look at t h i s 

compliance order. I t wasn't d r a f t e d by Mr. Kizer . I t wasn't 

even d r a f t e d by Mr. J e f f r i e s . I t was d r a f t e d by the D i v i s i o n ' s 

a t t o r n e y . She used some language here t h a t probably i s -- I 

don't want t o use the word, n e c e s s a r i l y "ambiguous," but when 

you use the wording " p e r s o n a l l y r e s p o n s i b l e , " or words t o t h a t 

e f f e c t , then I t h i n k Mr. J e f f r i e s at t h a t p o i n t i s assuming 

r e s p o n s i b i l i t y f o r v i o l a t i o n s t h a t have occurred before then. 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 

500 4th Street, NW, Suite 105, Albuquerque, NM 87102 



231 

He's also a c c e p t i n g v i o l a t i o n s f o r any p e n a l t i e s t h a t were 

assessed under the A d m i n i s t r a t i v e Compliance Order. 

Mr. Kizer i s nowhere i n v o l v e d i n any of t h i s . And so 

the u l t i m a t e conclusion t h a t I reach here i s t h a t today we 

f i n a l l y got a he a r i n g . This i s the f i r s t time Mr. Kizer has^ 

been given an o p p o r t u n i t y t o respond and where he's a c t u a l l y 

i n v i t e d d e s p i t e the D i v i s i o n ' s e x h i b i t s here t h a t c o n t a i n the 

Albuquerque address. The Albuquerque address i s used here. 

Ms. Prouty t e s t i f i e d t h a t -- I don't want t o put words i n her 

mouth -- but they've used the Albuquerque address. That i s 

Mr. Kizer's address. 

I n f a i r n e s s , I t h i n k the D i v i s i o n , or the Commission 

I should say, needs t o step back and look at t h i s o b j e c t i v e l y 

and not g r a n d f a t h e r a l l t h i s s t u f f and make i t a t t r i b u t a b l e t o 

Mr. K i z e r . You know, i t may appear, as I s a i d b e f o r e , t h a t 

Mr. J e f f r i e s had apparent a u t h o r i t y where t h e r e was some k i n d 

of acquiescence -- I c a l l i t more r e l i a n c e -- on Mr. J e f f r i e s 

p e r f o r m i n g . I n September of 2007, i t became evi d e n t t h a t 

Mr. J e f f r i e s was beginning t o drop the b a l l . He wasn't doing 

what he was supposed t o do. And those issues of compliance 

were becoming more prominent. And I t h i n k by t h a t time, 

Mr. K i z e r s t a r t e d becoming more aware and concerned t h a t e i t h e r 

r e p o r t i n g or non-compliance t h a t Mr. J e f f r i e s had agreed t o do 

was not being performed. 

Then we have the hearing i n January. I t h i n k i t ' s 
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elementary t h a t as f a r as due process i s concerned and t h a t 

s o r t of t h i n g -- basic f a i r n e s s , r e a l l y . I t ' s not so much 

c o n s t i t u t i o n a l issues, but basic f a i r n e s s t o be able t o address 

the issue and come before a body t h a t i s going t o take your 

bonds and cause your w e l l s t o be plugged. 

I f you look a t t h i s e x h i b i t , p a r t of the e x h i b i t s --

i n E x h i b i t 1-A, 1-B -- i f you look a t the s i n g l e w e l l bonds 

here by the D i v i s i o n as a p a r t of t h e i r E x h i b i t 1-A, they a l l 

have the Albuquerque address. I t would seem t o me t h a t i f 

you're going t o take the bonds, a t the very minimum, you have 

t o give or send a n o t i c e t o the address f o r which the bonds are 

l i s t e d . They're not -- there's no Kentucky address here. I t ' s 

Albuquerque, New Mexico. No evidence has been submitted by the 

D i v i s i o n t h a t the bonds were, or t h a t n o t i c e of the hearing 

was, given i n Albuquerque. Ms. Prouty t e s t i f i e d t h a t very 

o f t e n they w i l l have t o send t o d i f f e r e n t addresses, m u l t i p l e 

addresses. I guess t h a t ' s what her p r a c t i c e i s . But i t j u s t 

seems t o me t h a t when the proceeding becomes the t a k i n g or 

c a p t u r i n g of those bonds t h a t you have t o have the r i g h t 

address. 

Now, I understand Mr. Swazo's problem i s t h a t he 

can't be going around f i g u r i n g out where everybody i s . But 

there's p l e n t y of evidence here j u s t i n t h i s e x h i b i t and i n the 

one we submitted, which I asked t o be submitted i n t o evidence, 

E x h i b i t 6 -- I f o r g o t t o do t h a t . I don't know i f Mr. Swazo 
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has a problem w i t h i t . But b a s i c a l l y , a l l of the D i v i s i o n ' s 

e x h i b i t s c o n t a i n i n some form or another the Albuquerque 

address. 

Now, s t a r t i n g from then, you look a t compliance 

issues. And I t h i n k the D i v i s i o n ' s p r a c t i c e and procedure has 

been t h a t you give a warning and then i f the warning i s not 

complied w i t h , then you ad m i n i s t e r a f i n d i n g . This i s the 

f i r s t time t h a t we have had -- or at l e a s t Mr. Kizer has had --

some defense and been able t o present some defense t o t h i s 

proceeding where a l l o f a sudden, you know, the D i v i s i o n i s 

asking f o r $30,000 immediately, based on the past. The past i s 

t h a t they had deal i n g s w i t h Mr. J e f f r i e s . Mr. J e f f r i e s d i d n ' t 

comply. 

Obviously, i f you're going t o reach a conclusion t h a t 

a c o r p o r a t i o n i s a c o r p o r a t i o n , you know, Mr. Kizer i s probably 

stuck w i t h t h i s t h i n g . But i t ' s not f a i r . I t ' s not f a i r t h a t 

a l l of a sudden he's t r y i n g t o p l u g the w e l l s , he's t r y i n g t o 

do t h i s compliance work, and a l l of a sudden you have, you 

know, a b i g p e n a l t y t h a t you have t o pay. 

And so I would ask the Commission t o give him some 

time t o b r i n g e v e r y t h i n g i n t o compliance. I f he doesn't do i t , 

then I would say maybe at t h a t p o i n t p e n a l t i e s would be 

ap p r o p r i a t e . But today, based on h i s very f i r s t time t o 

address these issues, I would say the p e n a l t i e s are 

i n a p p r o p r i a t e . 
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Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Thank you, Mr. P a d i l l a . I assume 

i t ' s the Commission's preference t h a t we go i n t o Executive 

Session and d e l i b e r a t e t o n i g h t ? 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: Yes. 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: Yes. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. At t h i s p o i n t , w e ' l l go 

i n t o Executive Session f o r the sole purpose of d e l i b e r a t i n g i n 

Case No. 14057, and we w i l l reopen the proceedings t o the 

p u b l i c a f t e r we've made t h a t d e c i s i o n t h i s evening. 

MR. PADILLA: Before we adjourn, I'm j u s t wondering 

about t h a t E x h i b i t 6. I don't know whether Mr. Swazo has an 

o b j e c t i o n t o E x h i b i t 6. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: E x h i b i t 6 of the --

MR. SWAZO: This i s a c t u a l l y Respondent's 

E x h i b i t No. 6, C&D Management's E x h i b i t 6. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: We can take a d m i n i s t r a t i v e n o t i c e 

of -- t h i s i s p a r t of the OCD record, r i g h t ? 

MR. PADILLA: A l l of them are OCD as f a r as I r e c a l l . 

MR. SWAZO: I a c t u a l l y don't have a problem w i t h i t , 

but I have issues w i t h -- t h i s i s a l l E x h i b i t 6; i s t h a t 

c o r r e c t ? 

MR. PADILLA: Yes. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I t says E x h i b i t 7 i s attached t o 
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MR. PADILLA: Well, no. These are e x h i b i t s t h a t 

Mr. Swazo used a t other hearings. 

MR. SWAZO: Right. So I j u s t want t o make sure t h a t 

the r e c o r d i s c l e a r t h a t some of t h i s i n f o r m a t i o n i s a c t u a l l y 

i n our e x h i b i t packet, but some of the i n f o r m a t i o n i s also from 

i n f o r m a t i o n from the e x h i b i t s t h a t we entered a t the lower 

l e v e l h e a r i n g . And a c t u a l l y , i t shows the e x h i b i t 

i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . 

And I j u s t don't want the Commission t o be -- I want 

the r e c o r d t o c l e a r l y r e f l e c t t h a t t h i s i s not our e x h i b i t . 

This i s p a r t of t h e i r E x h i b i t No. 6. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Oh, okay. 

MR. PADILLA: Our only e x h i b i t stamp i s the one i n 

the f r o n t . 

MR. SWAZO: The f i r s t page. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Let's c a l l the one marked 

E x h i b i t 6 as C&D E x h i b i t 1, and the one marked OCD E x h i b i t 7 i n 

the case below as C&D E x h i b i t 2. And w i t h t h a t , Mr. Swazo, 

would you o b j e c t t o admission i n t o the record? 

MR. SWAZO: Well, I j u s t want t o c l a r i f y something. 

There's pages here t h a t say C&D Management Company, OCD E x h i b i t 

No. 14, OCD E x h i b i t No. 13, OCD E x h i b i t No. 1-A, and so on. I t 

goes on f o r several documents. 

I j u s t want t o make c l e a r t h a t these are not -- OCD 

i s not t e n d e r i n g these documents i n t h i s h earing. This i s 
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a c t u a l l y a l l of C&D Management's E x h i b i t 6. And I have no 

o b j e c t i o n o ther than t h a t -- I have no o b j e c t i o n t o the 

admission. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: The rec o r d w i l l so r e f l e c t t h a t 

the e x h i b i t s t i c k e r s from the case below, Case No. 14055, are 

n u l l and v o i d . 

MR. PADILLA: N u l l and v o i d . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: And they do not apply t o t h i s 

h earing i n Case No. 14057. Anything else? 

[Respondent's E x h i b i t s 1 and 2 admitted i n t o 

evidence.] 

MR. SWAZO: That's i t . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. With t h a t , we w i l l go i n t o 

Executive Session. 

* * * 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Let the recor d r e f l e c t t h a t i t ' s 

5:10 p.m. on Wednesday, J u l y 30th, 2008. This i s the r e g u l a r l y 

scheduled J u l y meeting of the New Mexico O i l Conservation 

Commission. During the recess, d u r i n g the break, d u r i n g the 

time t h a t we were o f f the record, the Commission met i n 

Executive Session t o discuss and d e l i b e r a t e Case No. 14057. 

I'm s o r r y , Case No. 14055. I f I have been saying 

14057 a l l day, i t should be Case No. 14055. And d u r i n g t h a t 

time, we discussed n o t h i n g but 14055. The Commission has 

reached a d e c i s i o n and i n s t r u c t e d Counsel Bada t o d r a f t an 
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order t h a t r e f l e c t s t h a t d e c i s i o n , t o c i r c u l a t e i t t o the 

Commissioners t o be reviewed by them, and she's agreed t o do 

t h a t . 

So a t t h i s time, we w i l l recess Case No. 14055, the 

de novo A p p l i c a t i o n of New Mexico O i l Conservation Through the 

Enforcement and Compliance Manager f o r a Compliance Order 

Against C&D Management Company d/b/a Freedom Ventures Company. 

* * * 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: We w i l l proceed t o the next it e m 

on the docket, which i s Case No. 14047, the A p p l i c a t i o n of 

Celero Energy I I , LP f o r Expansion o f a Waterflood P r o j e c t , 

Chaves County, New Mexico. That case w i l l be continued t o the 

August l l t h docket. August l l t h . I s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: August 14th. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: August 14th docket. The next case 

before the Commission i s Case No. 14001, the A p p l i c a t i o n of 

Chesapeake Energy E x p l o r a t i o n , LLC, f o r S t a t u t o r y U n i t i z a t i o n 

of the Quail Queen U n i t Area, Lea County, New Mexico. 

That case w i l l also be continued t o the August 14th 

r e g u l a r l y scheduled meeting -- the September l l t h Commission 

meeting. 

And the next case w i l l be Case No. 14002. I t ' s the 

de novo A p p l i c a t i o n of Chesapeake Energy, LLC, f o r Approval of 

a Waterflood P r o j e c t and Q u a l i f i c a t i o n of the P r o j e c t f o r the 

Recovered O i l Tax Rate Pursuant t o the Enhanced O i l Recovery 
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Act, Lea County, New Mexico. 

This case w i l l a l s o be continued t o the 

September l l t h Commission meeting. I s t h e r e any other business 

before the commission today? 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: No. 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: No. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: At t h i s time, the c h a i r would 

e n t e r t a i n a motion t o adjourn. 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: I so move. 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: I second. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: A l l those i n favor? 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: Aye. 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: Aye. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Aye. Let the recor d r e f l e c t t h a t 

the motion was unanimously passed and the Commission meeting 

was adjourned at 5:15 p.m. 

[Hearing adjourned.] 
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